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Vision

To position “YULE” as a leading brand by providing state-of-the-art products & commodity 
through continuous improvement & innovation.

Mission

•	 To	make	AYCL	a	profitable	and	dividend	paying	Company	in	the	FY	2020-21.
•  Tapping new market to promote growth
•  To deliver quality product and services on time
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    Dear Shareholders,

Welcome to the 72nd Annual General Meeting of Andrew Yule & Co. Ltd. (AYCL). It is a great pleasure 
to connect with you all again, although this time we meet virtually. On behalf of the AYCL Board of 
Directors, I want to thank you once again for taking the time out to join us today. Your support and 
confidence in us, even in uncertain times like these, drive us to look for many ways to do more and 
create greater value. I hope you and your family members are remaining healthy and staying safe.

    The COVID-19 pandemic is extraordinary and unprecedented. It has impacted the entire economy  
 of the world. Nevertheless encouraging sign is that we are learning to live and work in the changed  
             circumstances. I must salute the spirit of the Government authorities, healthcare workers, police and  
             the public, in fighting the pandemic. 

 As you know, I took charge as Chairman cum Managing Director of the Company in September, 2020. Shri Debasis Jana 
ceased to be the Chairman & Managing Director of the Company with effect from the close of the business on 31st August, 
2020 on reaching his superannuation. 

Shri Partha Dasgupta, erstwhile Director (Finance); Shri Amit Varadan and Shri Arvind Kumar, erstwhile GOI Nominee 
Directors ceased to be Directors of the Company during the financial year 2020-21 whereas Shri Pravin L. Agrawal, erstwhile 
GOI Nominee Director; Dr. Dhanpat Ram Agarwal, Shri Sudhir Jhunjhunwala and Smt. Sipra Goon, erstwhile Independent 
Director of the Company ceased to be Directors during the financial year 2019-20.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I place on record its deep appreciation of the valuable services and guidance rendered by 
all of them during their association with the Company.

As you know due to lockdown, your company had to temporarily suspend operations at its units and gardens as per the 
directives of the Government and keeping in mind the paramount need of safety of the employees. Hence, production and 
dispatches partially for March, 2020 and for in April-June, 2020 suffered severally. The operations, though in a scaled down 
manner, have since commenced after obtaining permissions from the State authorities concerned and putting in place all 
safety measures including social distancing, sanitization, health check-up etc. As a result of partial lifting of restrictions, 
operative levels have increased but it will take more time to reach at normal capacity. 

During the year ended 31st March, 2020, your Company earned total revenue of Rs.329.96 crores as against Rs.352.60 
crores in 2018-19, registering a decrease of 6.42 % from the previous year. Profit before Tax (PBT) during the financial year 
2019-20 stood negative at Rs.(21.25) crores (Rs.10.51 crores positive in 2018-19) and Total Comprehensive Income (TCI) 
stood at Rs.(15.68) crores (Rs.1.37 crores in 2018-19) after making necessary Income Tax provisions and other adjustment 
of losses under the category of other comprehensive income for example, adjustment of actuarial gains/losses relating to 
employee benefits, loss on re-measurement of investments, etc.

Your company always strives to attain highest level of Corporate Governance practices. Implementation of Integrity Pact, 
adoption of code of conduct and a well- defined Internal Control Framework add to the transparency of the Company’s 
business practices. AYCL is complying with the Government Guidelines and listing regulations on Corporate Governance. 
However filing up of vacant posts of Director which is one of the requirements of Corporate Governance, is under process at 
Government level. A report on Corporate Governance compliance has been made part of the Board’s Report. Your Company 
has been getting “Excellent” rating from Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) for complying with various norms of Corporate 
Governance. I am sure that the trend will continue.

Being a good corporate citizen, AYCL has always been on the forefront in extending its assistance for upliftment of the less 
privileged class of the society through development and improvement of the quality of life with our limited resources. AYCL has 
undertaken a number of CSR initiatives in the area of health, sanitation, water supply facilities, providing vocational training 
etc. 

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Shri Sanjoy Bhattacharya,  
Chairman & Managing Director
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I am pleased to inform you that various initiatives were taken for improvement of prospects of tea operation of the Company. 
The Company has initiated a process for appointing dealers for packet tea to create a strong PAN India Dealer Network for 
Yule Tea brand. The packet tea sales counter at “Yule House” has been renovated and made more attractive.  All gardens of 
the group are now having FSSAI License to operate and manufacture tea. With better field practices and major emphasis on 
increase in younger age profile of the tea bushes through vigorous uprooting & replanting programme resulting in higher crop 
prospects for the future years. 

“Yule Tea” will focus on taking the right strategic actions and building a strong set of future-focused capabilities and platforms, 
to attain these opportunities. We have a strong brand, which will help us to achieve our aspirations for the future. The 
opportunities ahead of the Company are inspiring and motivating for all of us.
 
Initiatives under “Atmanirbhar Bharat Abhiyaan” 
AYCL being a CPSE, is fully devoted to make “Atmanirbhar Bharat Abhiyaan” a profound success. Towards this goal it has 
taken several initiatives as below:

Import Substitution: Imported critical Sinter Waste Gas Fan Rotor assembly for integrated Steel Plants viz. RINL, SAIL-
Bhilai, Bokaro and Durgapur, substituted with AYCL make rotors.

Make in India: 
 •  Many EPC contractors like Thyssen Krupp, Thermax, IJT etc. have so far exported AYCL Engg Divn's Industrial  
    Fans to 14 foreign countries. 
 •  Produced high quality Tea for International buyers like Twinnings who bought 1.34 lakh kg so far in 2020-21. 

Product Development Initiatives: 
 •  Engineering Division has developed high efficiency and economic heavy & medium duty Industrial Fans through 
      in-house R&D which now compete with International players in India. Also Retrofitted imported ones, saving foreign 
                  exchange.
 •   Electrical Division manufacturers best Auto Voltage regulator upto 3 MVA with indigenous technology and now a 
     favourite for Indian buyers. Distribution Transformer is certified for high efficiency BIS level 2 for wider market 
     acceptance.
 •   Tea Division continues developing special quality tea like white tea, moon drop tea and many others, through in- 
                  house expertise and using inputs from Tea Research Association (TRA). 

I would like to take this opportunity to gratefully acknowledge the valuable guidance, support and cooperation received from 
the Department of Heavy Industry, Ministry of Heavy Industries & Public Enterprises, Government of India, as well as from 
other Ministries of the Central and State Governments, our valued customers, company’s bankers, suppliers, staff- workers 
etc. At the same time, I wish to acknowledge the valuable guidance given by the Board of Directors of the company without 
which it would have not been possible to lead the Company in definite direction. I look forward to continued support and 
commitment from all stakeholders of the Company to reach new heights and enhancing stakeholders’ value.

Place - Kolkata
Date- 25th November, 2020         Sanjoy Bhattacharya
         Chairman & Managing Director
 

































































































































ANDREW YULE & COMPANY LIMITED

70

STANDALONE  ACCOUNTS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
To the Members of Andrew Yule & Company Limited
Report on the Audit of Standalone IND-AS Financial Statements
(1)  Qualified Opinion

We have audited the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of Andrew Yule and Company Limited (“The Company”) which comprise 
the Balance Sheet as at 31” March, 2020, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (Including other comprehensive income), the Statement of 
Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, subject to the qualifications mentioned 
hereinafter in this report, the aforesaid standalone IND AS Financial statements, give the information required by the Act in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at 31st March, 2020, loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

(2) Basis for Qualified Opinion

In the absence of Balance confirmation certificates from a considerable number of Sundry Debtors and Sundry Creditors, no opinion 
can be formed about the correctness of the balances of Sundry Debtors and Sundry Creditors Effect of the above, if any on profit and loss is 
not ascertainable,

We have conducted our auditing in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAS) specified under Section 143(10) of The 
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by The Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under 
the provisions of The Companies Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
the requirement of the ICAI’s Code of ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion.

(3)  Emphasis of Matter:

Without qualifying our audit report, we draw attention to the following: 

(a) In the absence of IT system audit, security of accounting/operational data, recovery of data through IT disaster management system 
and manual intervention at crucial levels of data transfer and at the time of consolidation result in high audit risk.

(b) The absence of exercise of adequate controls in the process of maintaining the records of the companies lease deeds and title deeds 
enhances the audit risk. 

(c) Electrical Division has not contributed an amount of Rs. 1103.36 lakhs and Engineering Division has not contributed an amount of Rs. 
74.55 lakhs to the Company’s gratuity fund which is utilised towards payment of gratuity to employees on retirement.

(d) Provident Fund recoverable of Rs. 42.97 Lakhs (Refer note No.56 of the financial statements) pending over 10 years from PF department 
of Govemment of India has been provided for in the accounts. 

(e) Lease agreement of three tea gardens namely Banerhat, Choonabhutti and Haritalguri-3(of New Dooars and Brentford Unit of Electrical 
Division , Kolkata has not been renewed since long. However lease rent is being paid by the Company. Salami asked for by the West 
Bengal Government amounting to Rs.177.67 lakhs (PY-Rs. 228.93 lakhs) as per Note No. 54 is shown under “Claims not acknowledged 
as debts”. The matter should be resolved immediately as it disputes the Company’s ownership of the tea gardens under its operation.

(f)  All the inoperative bank accounts of the Company in its various divisions should be closed to mitigate the fraud risk. Also many bank 
accounts have authorized signatories who have retired/resigned from the Company. These former employees should be replaced as 
signatories by the officials who are currently in the employment of the Company. 

(g) As per regulation 17(1) of SEBI (LODR) regulations, 2015, as amended the composition of the Board should be as follows: (i) the board 
of directors shall have an optimum combination of executive and non executive directors with at least one woman director.(ii) where the 
chairperson of the listed entity is an executive director, at least half of the Board of directors shall comprise of independent directors. In 
the case of the company, as the CMD is an executive director, at least half of the members on the Board should be independent 
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 directors. However at present the Board consists of four whole time directors, two government nominee directors and three independent 
directors with no woman director Hence as on date three more independent directors including a woman director needs to be appointed 
to comply with the aforesaid provision. 

 BSE had levied a fine of Rs.5,36,900/- for June 2019 quarter, Rs.9,06,240 /-for September 2019 quarter and Rs. 7,59,920/- for 
December 2019 quarter and Rs. 5,31,000/- for March, 2020 quarter (Totaling Rs. 27,34,060/-, inclusive of GST) due to non-compliance 
with requirements of Regulations 17 to 210f LODR regulations which has not been paid /provided by the Company as appointment of 
Directors is done by the Companies administrative ministry. The company has taken up the matter with the administrative ministry and 
with SEBI and BSE.

(h) Hooghly Printing Company Limited (HPCL) had declared closure of its business operations with effect from 21st January, 2019 pursuant 
to its merger with the company. However, final approval of merger was held up by the Office of The Regional Director (Eastern Region), 
Kolkata vide their letter dated 08.01.2020 that the matter has been referred to NCLT under Section 232 of The Companies Act, 2013 
by referring to the provisions of Section 233(5) of The Companies Act, 2013 concerning the interest of creditors. Some of the creditors 
were also applying under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code for their payment. In such situation a proposal was placed to sell of the 
assets of HPCL and apportion the dues between the creditors. However it was decided by the Board that since the matter is before 
NCLT, legal opinion needs to be taken before such sale is authorized. Hence the matter of merger is pending before such formalities 
are taken care of.

(i) The Company has assessed the decline in sales and effect on inventory due to the nationwide lockdown arising out of COVID 19 as 
per Note No.58 of the financial statements. 

(j) Internal audit reports of all the gardens for the second half of the year have not been provided to us as a result we are unable to 
comment on the same. 

(k) There are a large number of debit balances in Trade Payables accounts which should be reconciled and adjusted with relevant heads 
of account.

(4)  Information other than the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditors Report thereon:
The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the information The other information comprises the information included in 
the Management Discussion and Analysis, Boards Report including the Annexures to Boards Report, Business Responsibility Report, 
Corporate Governance and Shareholders Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditors report 
thereon. The report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this audit report,

(5)  Key Audit matters

Key audit matters re those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone financial 
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon and we do not provide a separate opinion in these matters. We have determined the matters 
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in this report.

S.N.                              KEY AUDIT MATTER 

1. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities The Company is subject 
to a number of legal, regulatory and tax cases for which final 
outcome cannot be easily predicted and which could potentially 
result in significant liabilities. Management’s disclosures with 
regards to contingent liabilities are presented in Note No.36-to 
the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements. The assessment 
of the risks associated with the litigations is based on complex 
assumptions. This requires use of judgment to establish the 
level of provisioning, increases the risk that provisions and 
contingent liabilities may not be appropriately provided against 
or adequately disclosed. Accordingly, this matter is considered 
to be a key audit matter.

 AUDITORS RESPONSE

 In order to get a sufficient understanding of litigations and 
contingent liabilities, we have discussed the process of 
identification implemented by the Management for such 
provisions through various discussions with Company’s 
legal and finance departments. We read the summary of 
litigation matters provided by the Company’s/ Unit’s Legal 
and Finance Team. We read, where applicable, external legal 
or regulatory advice sought by the Company. We discussed 
with the Company’s/Unit’s Legal and Finance Team certain 
material cases noted in the report to determine the Company’s 
assessment of the likelihood, magnitude and accounting of any 
liability that may arise. In light of the above, we reviewed the 
amount of provisions recorded and exercised our professional 
judgment to assess the adequacy of disclosures in the 
Standalone Ind AS financial statements
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(6)  Responsibility of the Management and those charges with Governance for the Standalone Ind-AS financial statements:

 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with 
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India,, including the accounting standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

 This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

 In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matter related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

 Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Companies financial reporting process.

(7) Auditor’s responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind As Financial statements:

 Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone IND AS financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these IND AS financial 
statements.

 As part of our audit, in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the IND AS financial statements whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of interal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under Section 143(3)0) of The Companies Act, 2013 we are also responsible for expressing an opinion on whether the 
Company has adequate internal financial control system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of the managements use of going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast a significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors 
report to the related disclosures in the IND AS financial statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report .However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the IND AS financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
IND AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

 We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amongst other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

 We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonable be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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(8)  Other Matters;

(a)  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, nationwide lockdown and other travel restrictions imposed by the Government/local administration, 
some of the audit processes were carried out by electronically by remote access. The necessary records were made available by the 
management through digital media and were accepted as audit evidence while reporting for the current period.

(b)  The standalone financial results include the results for the quarter ended March 31, 2020 being the balancing figures between the 
audited figures in respect of the full financial year and the published unaudited year to date figures upto the third quarter of the current 
financial year. The figures for the quarter ended 31st March, 2020 are neither subject to limited review nor audited by us.

(9)  Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

(1)  As required by The Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 (The Order), issued by the Central Government of India, in terms of sub 
section 11 of section 143 of The Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs3 
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(2)  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for 
the purposes of our audit.

(b)  in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination 
of those books,

(c)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including The Statement of Other Comprehensive Income and Statement of Cash 
Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account,

(d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone IND AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 
133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015.

(e)  Section 164 (2) of the Act regarding disqualification for appointment of Director is not applicable to Government Companies vide 
notification no. GSR.463E dated June, 2015.

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our report in “Annexure B”.

(g)  with respect to the matters required to be reported upon as per directions of The Comptroller and Auditor General of India as per the 
provisions of Section 143(5) of The Companies Act, 2013, refer to our report in Annexure C.

(h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i)  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its IND AS financial statements - Refer Note 36 
to the IND AS financial statements;

(ii)  The Company has not entered into any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were material foreseeable 
losses.

(iii).  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S. K. BASU & Co.  Place: KOLKATA
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
(FIRM NO: 301026E) DATE: 15TH July, 2020
Sd/-
RUDRA NEIL MALLICK) 
PARTNER 
(MN: 053983) 
(UDIN: 20053983AAAAAM9785)
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Annexure-A to the Independent Auditors Report:
Referred to in Para 9(1) of our report of even date:

(1) (a)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.
 (b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at 

reasonable intervals during the year under audit.
 (c)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, the title deeds of immovable properties 

are held in the name of the Company. However, title deeds of three properties located in Kolkata were lost. FIR was lodged only 
for two title deeds with Burrabazar P.S. on 25.05.2017 and no further information was available with the Company about the lost 
title deeds till date. Further two lease deeds in respect of two tea gardens Tinkong and Basmatia are reportedly lying with the bank 
but the bank has not issued any certificate confirming possession of those lease deeds by them.

(2)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the inventory has been physically verified by the management at reasonable 
intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(3)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, 
firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under Section 189 of The Companies Act, 2013, 
except loans given to the subsidiaries of Yule Electrical Ltd. RS.4.05 lakhs and Yule Engineering Ltd. Rs. 2.34 Lakhs.

(4)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given loans, guarantees, made investments in and or 
purchased securities in respect of which provisions of Section 185 and 186 of The Companies Act, 2013 are applicable except loans 
given to subsidiaries of Yule Electrical Ltd. RS.4.05 lakhs and Yule Engineering Ltd. Rs. 2.34 Lakhs.

(5)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the 
meaning of sections 73 to 78 or any other relevant provisions of the act and rules framed thereunder.

(6)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Cost Records are maintained by the Company for all the products as per 
requirements of the relevant act and rules framed thereunder.

(7) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of the books of accounts and records, 
the Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident Fund, Employees State Insurance 

Name of the Statute Nature of Dues Amount (Rs.) Lakhs Period to which the amount Forum where the amount 
is pending

Income tax act penalty 4.65 2010-11 to 2014-15 NCLT amd CIT (A[[ea;s)

WB Sales Tax and VAT West Bengal Sales TGax 
& VAT

1878.90 1979-80 to 2014-15-Rs. 
456.78 Lakhs
1973-74 to 2003-04-Rs. 
366.79 Lakhs
1985-86 to 2003-04-Rs. 
908.04 Lakhs
1980-81 to 1985-85-Rs. 
49.33 Lakhs.
2016-17 Rs. 7.96 Lakhs

Applelate & Revision 
Board

Taxation Tribunal

Calcutta Hgh Court SOD

Sr. Joint Commissioner

Assam Sales tax and VAT Assam Sales Tax & VAT 152.93 1996-97 to 1998-99- Rs. 
152.93 Lakhs.

Appellate Authority 
Revenue Board

Orissa Sales Tax and VAT Orissa Sales Tax & VAT 111.88 1999-2000-Rs. 106.24 
Lakhs

Appelate Authority 
Tribunal, Cuttack 2nd 
Appellate Authority 
Berhampore

Central Excise Central e 513.59 2006-07 to 2009-10-Rs. 
331.98 Lakhs
2013-14 to 2016-17-Rs. 
181-61 Lakhs

Appeal to CESTAT

Commissioner of Central 
Excise

Servic tax Service Tax 23.43 2006-07 to 2015016-Rs. 
21.98 Lakhs
2006-07 to 2007-08-Rs. 
1.45 Lakhs.

Appeal at Commissioner 
of of  Central Excise
Appeal at CESTAT

Provident Fund Act Provident Fund 16.81 2006-2007 Regional PF 
Commissioner, Kolkata

Total 4631.72
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  Income Tax, GST and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities, to the appropriate authority. According to the 
information and explanations given to us, no disputed amounts payable which were outstanding at the year end was for a period 
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not deposited the following dues on account of 
disputes with the appropriate authorities.

(8) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the examination of the books and records of the company, the 
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks and financial institutions.

(9)  Based on the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer 
or further public offer including debt instruments and term loans. Accordingly the provisions of Clause 3 (ix) of CARO are not applicable 
to the company.

(10)  Based on the audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations given by the management, no fraud on or 
by the Company or its officers/employees has been committed, noticed or reported during the year.

(11)  Section 197 of The Companies Act, 2013 regarding payment of managerial remuneration is not applicable to the Company being a 
government company vide notification no. GSR. 463€ dated 5th June, 2015.

(12)  As per information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a NIDHI Company. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 4(xii) are 
not applicable to the Company.

(13)  As per information and explanations given to us, the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of 
The Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Note No. 39 of the Standalone Financial Statements as required 
by the applicable Ind-AS.

(14)  Based on the audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company 
has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under 
review. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of CARO are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(15)  Based on the audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the company 
has not entered into any non cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) 
of CARO are not applicable to the Company.

(16)  in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be registered under section 
451A of the Reserve Bank of India act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3 (xvi) of the order are not applicable to the 
Company

For S.K.BASU & CO.  Place: KOLKATA
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
(FIRM NO: 301026E) DATE: 15th July, 2020
RUDRA NEIL MALLICK) 
PARTNER
(MN: 053983)
(UDIN: 20053983AAAAAM9785)
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors Report
Referred to in Para 9(2)(f) of our report of even date:
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause(i) of Sub Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (The Act).

(1).  We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Andrew Yule and Company Limited (The Company as on 31 
March, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone IND AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that 
date.

Managements Responsibility for Internal Financial controls

(2).  The Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial controls based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (CAI). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to companies policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors Responsibility

(3).  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing issued by ICAI and the Standards on Auditing as specified under Section 143 (10) of the Act to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards 
and Guidance Notes require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

(4).  Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting include obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing a risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditors judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the IND AS financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error.

(5).  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial control system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

(6.) The Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of IND AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. The Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions 
of the assets of the Company, (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of IND AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the Company are being made only in accordance with authorization of management and directors of the Company, and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company’s assets 
that could have a material effect on the IND AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

(7).  Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to fraud or error may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

(8)  Based on our audit and the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that:

(a)  The flow of financial data from divisions, units and gardens are not seamlessly integrated with Head office accounts. It involves manual 
interventions at various stages of accounting.

(b)  Absence of guidelines of IT general controls and segregation of duties does not give reasonable assurance regarding fair maintenance 
and accurate reflection of records with reasonable details for transactions and disposition of assets of the Company.

(c) Since the inception of computerization, IT systems audit has not been carried out.

(d)  IT disaster recovery plan has not been defined.

(e) The company has not obtained balance confirmation certificates from a considerable number of sundry debtors and creditors.

(f)  Internal audit reports of the company for the second half of the year have not been provided to us as a result we are unable to comment 
on the same.

In view of the above observations, Internal financial Controls of the company as at 31 March, 2020 is inadequate with respect to its size, 
diversity and complexity of operations based on internal control over financial reporting criteria as stated in the Guidance Note on audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For S. K.BASU & CO.  Place: KOLKATA

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

(FIRM NO: 301026E) DATE: 15th July, 2020

( RUDRA NEIL MALLICK) PARTNER

(MN: 053983)

(UDIN: 20053983AAAAAM9785)
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Annexure C to the Independent Auditors Report
Directions under Section 143(5) of The Companies Act, 2013 on the basis of our audit of standalone financial statements of Andrew Yule and 
Company Limited for the FY 2019-20.

We give below the answer to the questions and information asked for in the above mentioned directions:

For S.K.BASU & CO.  Place: KOLKATA
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
 (FIRM NO: 301026E) DATE: 15TH July, 2020
BASU &CO
(RUDRA NEIL MALLICK)) PARTNER
(MN: 053983)
(UDIN: 20053983AAAAAM9785)

S.N. Directions Our Answer
1. Whether the Company has system in place to process all 

the accounting transactions through IT system~ If yes, 
the implications of processing the acconting transactions 
outside IT system on the integrity of the accounts along 
with the financial imnplications, if any, may be stated.

The Company does not presently possess an ERP acconnting 
system or a fully integrated IT system among its units and Head 
Office and as such, necessary accounting integration is being done 
through separate data entry mode and by applying standalone IT 
software.
The method adopted by the Company leaves a scope of absence of 
data integrity, thereby increasing the risk.

2. Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan 
or cases of waiver/write off of  debts/loans/interests etc. 
made by a lender to the Company due to the Companys 
inability to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact 
may be stated.

There is no instance of restructuring/waiver/write offs of existing 
loans availed by the Company.

3. Whether funds received/receivable for specific schemes 
from Central/State agencies were properly accounted for/
utilized as per its terms and conditions? List the cases of 
Deviation. 

All funds received/receivable for specific schemes from Central /
State agencies were properly accounted for under Note No. 21 
relating to the head of "other non current liabilities''
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
 [AS PER IND AS]

Note 1 Corporate Information

Andrew Yule & Company Limited (AYCL) was incorporated in 26.05.1919 as a Private Sector Company with an objective to work as 
managing agency. With the abolition of managing agency system, the Company lost its traditional business and Government of India 
acquired the Company in 1979. AYCL is a Schedule-”B” CPSE in Medium and Light Engineering sector together with Tea producing 
and manufacturing business under the administrative control of M/o. Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises, D/o Heavy Industry 
with 89.25% shareholding by the Government. Its Registered Office is situated 8, Dr. Rajendra Prasad Sarani, Kolkata-700001, 
West Bengal.

AYCL is a nationalized enterprise in the business of both manufacturing and sale of Black Tea, Transformers, Regulators/Rectifiers, 
Circuit Breakers, Switches, Industrial Fans, Tea Machinery, Turnkey jobs etc. It has five (5) Operating Units out of which four (4) 
are in West Bengal and one (1) in Chennai, Tamilnadu. Out of the Four (4) Units at West Bengal, Three (3) Units are in Kolkata and 
One (1) Unit is at Kalyani. The Company is functioning in three main sectors namely Engineering, Electrical and Tea. AYCL has 
three 100% Subsidiaries namely Hooghly Printing Co. Ltd., Yule Engineering Ltd., and Yule Electrical Ltd. The enterprise has an 
employee strength of 14073 as on 31.03.2020. Its shares are listed at BSE. 

The Financial Statements were approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors on 15thJuly, 2020.

Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

 [2.1] Basis of preparation

 [2.1.1] Compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

The Financial Statements are prepared on accrual basis of accounting and comply in all material aspects with Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (The Act) [Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016] and other 
relevant provisions of the Act. 

All Assets and Liabilities have been classified as Current or Non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle 
and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time 
between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has 
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 
Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are classified as Non-current Assets and Liabilities.

 [2.1.2] Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting and historical cost conventions, except for 
the Financial Assets which are measured at fair value :

   [i] Quoted Financial Assets are measured at fair value;

   [ii] defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

    The methods used to measure fair values are discussed in Note 2.28.

 [2.1.3] Functional and Presentation Currency

   These Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional currency. All 
financial information presented in INR has been rounded off to the nearest lakh (upto two decimals) for the Company.

 [2.1.4] Use of Estimates and Management Judgements

   [a] Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment

   The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment is based on a number of factors including the effects of 
obsolescence, demand, completion and other economic factors in accordance of Schedule II of Companies Act 2013. 
However, in case of Plant & Machinery, useful life has been considered from 15 years upto 25 years as per Technical 
Evaluation. 
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   [b] Recoverable amount of Property, Plant and Equipment and Capital Work-in-Progress

   The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress is based on estimates and 
assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions may have a material impact on the measurement of the recoverable 
amount resulting in impairment.

   [c] Post-retirement Benefit Plans

   Employee benefit obligations except medical benefits are measured on the basis of actuarial assumptions which include 
mortality and withdrawal rates as well as assumptions concerning future developments in rates, the rate of salary increase, 
the inflation rate and expected rate of return on plan assets. The Company considers that the assumptions used to 
measure its obligation are appropriate and documented. However, any changes in the assumptions may have impact on 
the resulting calculations. Medical Benefits measured on actual basis.

   [d] Provisions and Contingencies

   The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance with Ind AS 
37, “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”. The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events 
has been made on the basis of best judgment by management regarding probable outflow of economic resources. Such 
estimation can change due to unforeseeable developments.

   [e] Investment in Subsidiaries and Associates

   Investment is carried at cost and provision is made for any impairment of such investment.

 [2.2] Segment Reporting

   Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the definition provided by IND AS 108.

 [2.3] Foreign Currency Transactions

   Foreign currency transactions are translated into Indian Rupee (INR) which is the functional currency by applying the 
exchange rates between the INR and foreign currency at the dates of the transactions. Foreign Exchange gains and losses 
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated 
in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss.

   [a] Foreign currency loans to finance fixed assets including  technical  know-how  fees are converted either at the exchange 
parity rate ruling at the close of the accounting  year or at the fixed rate when the exchange is booked in advance, as 
the case may be. Necessary adjustments with regard to such exchange rate difference are made to secured loans, fixed 
assets and depreciation.

   [b] In respect of any import of materials both under CIF, FOB and C&F Contracts, purchases are booked at the exchange 
rates prevailing on the date of Bill of Entry. The exchange difference, if any, arising from the difference between the above 
rate and the rate at which the actual payment is made or at the rate prevailing on 31st March, whichever is earlier, is 
accounted for in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

   [c] Exports/Overseas  Sales  are  booked  at  the  rates  prevailing  on  the  date  of  bill  of  lading.  Exchange difference, if 
any, relating to such bills arising either on realisation of the proceeds or on conversion thereof at the exchange rate ruling 
at the close of the year, whichever is earlier, is accounted for in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

   [d] Receivables and Payables in foreign currency are reported in the Balance Sheet at the parity rate ruling at  the close of 
the financial year. The exchange difference arising on the settlement of such receivables/payable  or  on  reporting  such  
receivables/payables  at rates  different  from  those  at which  those  are  initially  recorded  during  the  period  or  reported  
in  previous  Balance  Sheet  is accounted for in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
 [AS PER IND AS]
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 [2.4] Revenue Recognition and Other Income

   Revenue has been recognized as per IND AS 115 effective from 01.04.2018.

  [2.4.1] Sale of Goods

   Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have 
passed to the buyer. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates.

   Revenue from sales is based on price specified in the Sales Contracts, net of discounts and schemes which are assessed 
based on published circulars and expected achievement threshold. No element of financing is deemed present as the 
sales are made generally with a credit term, which is consistent with market practice.

   Despatches against FOR destination contracts not reaching the customers within the close of the year, are shown as 
Finished goods-in-transit.

   Tea sales against contracts are accounted for on the basis of delivery orders and on completion of sale in auction centres 
in accordance with the norms of tea trade

  [2.4.2] Rental Income

   Rental Income arising from letting out of the property to Associate Company & other Parties is accounted for on periodical 
basis as per terms of the agreement and is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

  [2.4.3] Interest Income

   Interest Income is recognized using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the Financial Asset to the gross carrying amount 
of a Financial Asset. When calculating the effective interest rate the Company estimates the expected Cash Flows by 
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses. However, 
for Bank interest accrued at year end are considered as communicated by Banks.

  [2.4.4] Dividend Income

   Dividends are recognized in profit and loss under the head ‘Other Income’ only when the right to receive payment is 
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the 
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

  [2.4.5] Other Income

   The following incomes are treated as Other Income:

   a) Insurance and other claims are accounted for on the basis of amounts admitted.

   b) Sales Tax, Excise Duty and Customs Duty refunds are accounted for on the basis of assessment/refund orders received;

   c) Interest  receivable  from  customers  as  per  stipulation  of the Sales Contract on account of late receipt of full/
proportionate payments are accounted for to the extent such interest is ascertainable with respect to the payment so far 
received.

   d) Export/Deemed Export benefits  are accounted  for on completion  of despatches  in terms of the contract.

   e) Liquidated  Damages  recovered  by  the  Company  for  delayed  supply  of  raw materials, equipment/spares  are 
treated as Other Income.

 [2.5] Income Taxes

   The Income Tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the 
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to 
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
 [AS PER IND AS]
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   The current income tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting 
period. Management periodically evaluates position taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax 
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be 
paid to the tax authorities. Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognized at the same 
time the liability to pay the related dividend is recognized and rectification has not been considered

   Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases 
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is not accounted for if 
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of 
the transaction affects neither accounting profit/ Loss nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using 
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected 
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

   Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that 
future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses.

   Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and 
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are 
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

   Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity, respectively.

 [2.6] Leases

   The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the 
inception of the leases as per the terms and conditions specified in IND AS 116. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease 
if fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right 
to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

   As a Lessee

   Vide notification of Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 30th Match, 2019, Indian Accounting Standard (IND-AS -116) Leases 
has become effective for the Company from 1.4.2019. Replacing IND AS 17 (Leases). The accounting policy on Leases 
has been changed as per IND AS 116. The principal change of IND AS 116, Leases  is change in the accounting treatment 
by Lessees of Leases currently classified as operating leases. Lease agreements has given rise to the recognition of right 
of use assets and a lease liability for future lease payments. In case of Company standards have been applied standard 
have been applied to only such cases wherever executed lease agreements/or Notifications issued by the concerned 
Lessor Government are in hands of the Company and for the balance period of such lease as on 01.04.2019, except for 
cases mentioned below:

   In case of lease of lands from Government of Assam for the Tea Gardens in Assam, the Company, in conjunction with 
Indian  Tea Association, has noted that, section 9 of the Assam Land and Revenue Regulation, 1886 provides a land 
lease, right to use, occupancy and other relevant rights subject to payment of revenue, taxes, cases and rates from time to 
time as may be due in respect of the said land and thus, there is no fixed or defined period of lease. As such, IND AS 116 
should not accordingly be applicable in case of Assam. However, there is no financial impact on transition to IND AS 116 
as the Company has not applied this standard retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard 
recognized at the date of initial application.

   As a Lessor

   Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognized in income on a straight line basis over 
the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for 
the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their 
nature.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
 [AS PER IND AS]
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 [2.7] Impairment of Non-financial Assets other than Inventories

  [a] The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired or when 
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s Cash Generating Unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value 
in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are 
largely independent of those from other assets of the Company. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds 
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. The resulting 
impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

  [b] In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre tax discount 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining 
fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, 
an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices 
for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

 [2.8] Statement of Cash Flows

  [a] Cash and Cash Equivalents

   For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits 
held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months 
or less from the date of purchase that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown under borrowings in current liabilities 
in the Balance Sheet.

  [b] Statement of Cash Flows is prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in IND AS-7 “Statement of                      
Cash Flow”

 [2.9] Trade Receivables

   Trade receivables are recognized initially at transaction price and subsequently measured at cost less provision.

 [2.10] Inventories

   [a] Raw Material (including Packing Materials), Work-in-Progress, traded and Finished Goods are stated at lower of cost 
and net realizable value. Cost of raw material & traded goods comprises of cost of purchases. Cost of work-in-progress & 
Finished Goods comprise direct material, direct labour and appropriate portion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, 
the latter being allocated on the basis of actual labor hours utilized in such jobs as being consistently followed. Cost of 
inventories also include all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost 
are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted average method. Cost of purchased inventories are 
determined after deducting rebates & discounts. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course 
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

   [b]  Provisions for slow and non-moving stock lying for more than three years but less than five years are made at 15% 
of Book Value, for such stock remaining more than 5 years, provision @ 36.25% of Book Value are made. Provision for 
obsolete stores are made at 100% of Book value. All losses on Work-in-progress incurred upto the end of the year and 
losses estimated for further Works Cost to be incurred on such jobs are taken into account and duly provided for.

   [c] While valuing the contract jobs in progress at the close of the year, future estimated losses are considered only in 
respect of jobs valued at Rs. 25.00 lakhs or more and/or physical progress whereof as per technical estimate, is minimum 
50%.

   [d] Inter-Unit transfers of own manufactured stores, spares, raw materials etc., if lying in stock at the close of the year, are 
valued at estimated Works/Factory cost of the Transferor Unit.

   [e] Stock  of  scrap,  is  valued  on  the  basis  of  estimated/actual  realised  value  as  the  case  may  be. However tea 
waste is not valued.
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   [f] Export benefits against Advance Licences are considered at the time of actual consumption of the imported materials. 
Advance Licences in hand at the close of the year are not accounted for.

   [g] Cost of Inventory which are sold during the year are recognised by way accretion/discretion of inventory.

 [2.11] Financial Assets other than Investments in Subsidiaries,Associates and Joint Venture

 [2.11.1] Classification

   The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

   * those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income or    
 through profit and loss), and

   * those measured at amortized cost.

    The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual  
 terms of cash flows.

   For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit and loss or other comprehensive 
income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For 
investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time 
of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

   The Company reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

 [2.11.2] Measurement

   Equity instruments

   The Company measures all equity investments except in subsidiary & Associates at fair value. Investment in subsidiary & 
Associates are measured at historical cost.

 [2.11.3] Impairment of Financial Assets

   The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at 
amortized cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been 
a significant increase in credit risk. Note 2.28 details how the Company determines whether there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk.

   For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach of recognizing the expected losses from initial 
recognition of the receivables on case to case basis as provision for impairment.

 [2.11.4] Derecognition of Financial Assets

   A financial asset is derecognized only when

   * The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

   * Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to 
pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

   Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognized. Where the entity has not 
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognized.

   Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the 
financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where 
the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing 
involvement in the financial asset.
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 [2.12] Purchases

   [a]  Insurance charges incurred in relation to the incoming goods where materials are directly relatable are accounted for 
in respect of individual items; otherwise, such insurance premium is charged off to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

   [b]  In case of goods purchased from overseas, the shipment is treated as goods-in-transit :

    [i] in case of both CIF and C&F Contracts, from the date of intimation received from bank;

    [ii] in case of FOB Contracts, from the date of actual shipment as per Bill of Lading.

 [2.13] Other Revenue Expenses

   [a] Issue of materials/components as free replacements during the guarantee period, which cannot be provided being 
unknown, is accounted for     on actual despatches.  Known free replacements  upto the close of the accounting year are 
provided for.

   [b] The Company provides liability on account of repairs and rectifications for goods already sold to customers on the 
basis of past three years average expenses on the above head.

   [c] Liabilities in respect of Liquidated Damages are provided if and to the extent, not disputed by the Company. Liquidated 
Damages disputed by the Company are treated as contingent liability. The amount of liability/contingent liability is estimated 
on the basis of contracted terms and the facts of each case to the extent of revenue recognised.

   [d] Liability in respect of commission is provided in proportion to sales.

   [e] Interest on delayed payments of Income Tax/Agricultural Income-Tax is accounted for on the basis of assessment  
orders of the Tax Authorities,  if not disputed by the Company or actual payment effected, as the case may be.

   [f] Payment of Technical Know how Fees is accounted for in compliance with the relevant Accounting Standard.

   [g] Provision  for  unrealised  profit  is  made  in  respect  of  partially  completed  composite/turnkey contracts on the basis 
of proportionate direct cost on the revenue recognised.

   [h] Medicine purchase for Tea Estates are all  charged out as per consistent practice.

   [i] Guarantee commission is taken in the year of guarantees issued/renewed.

  [2.14] Booking /Writing Back of Liabilities

   a) For providing liabilities, cut-off date is 30th April but all known liabilities, if material, are booked as far as practicable 
(previous year cut-off date 30th April).

   b) Liabilities which are more than 5 years old and not likely to materialize, are written back except Govt. debts. In case of 
extraordinary items only, separate disclosure is given in the Financial statements.

 [2.15] Offsetting Financial Instruments

   Financial Assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be 
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the 
counterparty.

 [2.16] Property, Plant and Equipment

   [a] The Physical verification of fixed assets is carried out in a phased manner so as to cover each item of the fixed assets 
over a period of 3 years.

   [b] Grant/Subsidy  in  respect  of  capital  expenditure  is  accounted  for  as  per  applicable  Accounting Standard and 
recognised in  Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the useful life of the assets.Grant/subsidy are accounted for 
when there exists sufficient written assurance of receiving the same.

   [c] Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost 
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
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   [d] Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the 
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized 
when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss during the reporting period in which they 
are incurred.

   [e] Machinery manufactured by one Unit/Division for use in another Unit/Division are accounted for at Works/Factory cost 
of the Transferor Unit.

   [f] The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based 
on internal/external factors. An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable 
value. An impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss where the carrying amount of an asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting periods is reversed if there has been 
a change in the estimate of recoverable amount.

   [g] Bearer Plants are transferred from Capital WIP to Fixed Assets Block of Bearer Plant after 3 years from its year of 
replantation. The average life of bearer plant has been considered as 70 (seventy) years for Assam and Dooars Gardens 
and 100 (one hundred) years for Mim Tea Estate situated at Darjeeling. 

   [h] The assets are considered to be unusable after getting approval of the designated technical assessment committee.

 [2.17]  Applicability of IND AS-41 (Biological Assets)

   AYCL Tea Division plucks tea leaves for manufacturing in 7 days round. On 31st March each year it plucks the matured 
tea and manufactures the same. In all sections of each garden tea leaves on the bushes stands immature. 

   Para 10 of IND AS 41 states to recognize a Biological Asset when and only when, the fair value or the cost of the asset can 
be measured reliably. It is well known fact that no market exists for Green tea leaves which remains on the tea bushes and 
not ready for harvesting (not yet harvested). As long as the green tea leaves exist on the Tea bushes and has not reached 
the harvesting stage, it has no utility and cannot be used in any manner for processing of tea.

   As emphasized in para 8 of IND AS 41, it would be impossible to ascertain the Fair Value of green tea leaves standing 
on the tea bushes. Similarly it would be impractical to ascertain the cost of such green tea leaves as any cost model for 
computation of cost thereof would be based on estimation and assumption, which cannot be reliably measured.

   In view of the above AYCL does not recognize the Biological Assets (Green tea leaves not harvested and in a growing 
stage, not matured) as on the reporting date in Financial Statements.

 [2.18] Capital Work-in-Progress

   Expenditure incurred on assets under construction is carried at cost under Capital Work-in-Progress. Such costs comprise 
purchase price of assets, including duties and non-refundable taxes and other costs that are directly attributable to bringing 
the asset to the location and conditions necessary for it to be capable of operation in the manner indented by management.

 [2.19] Intangible Assets

   Costs associated with maintaining software programs are recognized as an expense as incurred. Cost of purchased 
software are recorded as intangible assets and amortized from the point at which the asset is available for use. Intangible 
assets are amortized over their best estimated useful life ranging upto three years on straight line method. 

 [2.20] Trade and Other Payables

   These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year 
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid as per payment terms. Trade and other payables are 
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized 
initially at their fair value/transaction value.

 [2.21] Borrowings Costs

   General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a 
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qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended 
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended 
use or sale. Any difference between the proceeds(net of transactions cost) and the redemption amount is recognized in 
the statement of Profit & Loss.

   Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying 
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

   Borrowing costs are removed from the Balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled 
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the Financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred 
to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash asset transferred on liability assumed is recognized in 
the statement of Profit& Loss Account as other gains/(losses).

   Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

 [2.22] Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

   Provisions for legal claims, discounts, schemes and returns are recognized when the Company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

   Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined 
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect 
to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

   Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the 
present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the liability. The increase 
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

   Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly within the control of the Company, such obligation 
is disclosed as contingent liability.

   Contingent Assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. 
Contingent assets are disclosed in financial statements when in flow of economic benefits is probable on the basis of 
judgement of management.

 [2.23] Employee Benefits

 [2.23.1] Short Term Obligations

   Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months 
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees’ 
service upto the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are 
settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the Balance Sheet.

 [2.23.2] Other Long Term Employee Benefit Obligations

   The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which 
the employees render the related service.The liability or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined 
benefits as leave encashment, pension and gratuity plans is the present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of 
the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated by actuaries using the 
projected unit credit method.  The present value of defined benefit obligations is determined by discounting the same using 
the market yields at the end of the reporting period on Government Bonds, that have terms approximating to the terms of 
the related obligation. 

   Net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of defined benefit obligation and fair value 
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of plan assets and the same is included in employee benefit expenses in the statement of profit and loss.

   Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the 
period in which they occur, in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of 
changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

   The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the Balance Sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to 
defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected 
to occur.

   Unavailed medical benefits are measured at actual cost during a block of 3 years.

 [2.23.3] Post Employment Obligations

   The Company operates the following post-employment schemes :

   [a] Defined benefit plan which is Gratuity.

   [b] Defined contribution plan which is Provident Fund only. The Organization pay provident fund to publicly administered 
provident fund as per local regulations and apart from the contribution the Company has no further payment obligation and 
the contribution are recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due.

   [c] One time medical benefits are measured at actual cost.

 [2.24]  Dividends

   Dividends and interim dividends payable to the Company’s shareholders are recognized as change in equity in the period 
in which they are approved by the Company’s shareholders and the Board of Directors respectively.

 [2.25] Earnings per Share

 [2.25.1] Basic Earnings per share

   Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing :

   * The profit/loss attributable to owners of the Company.

   * By the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

 [2.25.2] Diluted Earnings per Share

   Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account :

   * The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

   * The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion   
    of all dilutive potential equity shares.

 [2.26] Financial Liabilities

   Financial liabilities of the Company are contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity or 
to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavorable to 
the Company.

   The Company’s financial liabilities include loans and borrowings, trade and other payables.

   [a] Classification, initial recognition and measurement

   Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value minus transactions costs and subsequently measured at amortized 
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the fair value at initial recognition is recognized 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss or in the carrying amount of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion, over 
the period of the borrowings using the effective rate of interest.
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   Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the 
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

   [b]  Subsequent measurement

   After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR (Effective Interest 
Rate) method. Gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss or in the carrying amount of an asset 
if another standard permits such inclusion, when the liabilities are derecognized as well through the EIR amortization 
process.

   Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that ae an 
integral part of the EIR The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

   [c]  Derecognition

   A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. When 
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms 
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the 
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

 [2.27] Fair Value Measurement

   Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. Normally at initial recognition, the transaction price is the best evidence of 
fair value.

   However, when the Company determines that transaction price does not represent the fair value, it uses inter-alia valuation 
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, 
maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

   All financial assets and financial liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorized within the fair value hierarchy. This categorization is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement as a whole :

   * Level 1-Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

   * Level 2-Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value    
 measurement in directly or indirectly observable.

   * Level 3-Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value    
 measurement in unobservable.

   For financial assets and financial liabilities that are recognized at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company determines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at the end of each reporting 
period.

 [2.28] Financial Risk Management

   The entity’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimize effects of the above, various 
arrangements are entered into by the entity. The following table explains the sources of risk and how the entity manages 
the risk in its financial statements. 
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Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Credit Risk  Cash and cash equivalents, trade
 receivables, financial assets measured at
amortized cost

Ageing analysis, Credit analysis Credit limits and letters of credit

Liquidity Risk Borrowings and other liabilities Cash Flow forecasts Credit facilities

Market Risk – foreign exchange  Recognized financial assets and liabilities
not denominated in INR

Cash Flow forecasts Monitoring of currency movement.

Market Risk – interest rate Long Term Borrowings/Liabilities ... Monitoring of interest rate movements

Market Risk – security prices Investment in Securities ... Portfolio Management
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[A]    Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, investment carried at amortized cost, deposit with banks and financing institutions 
as well as credit exposure to customer and other parties.

For banks and financial institutions, only high rated banks/institutions are accepted. For other financial assets, the entity assesses  and 
manages credit risk based on internal credit evaluation. It monitors party-wise exposure and based on evaluation credit rating is allotted 
for each party. Thereafter a credit limit is assigned to each party depending on the solvency of the said party.

The entity considers the probability of default on ongoing basis and at each reporting period.  

Micro-economic information is incorporated as part of internal rating mode

In general, it is presumed that credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition if the payments are more than 60 days past 
due.

Reconciliation of provisions for doubtful assets has been provided as under :    

Rs (In Lakhs)

Particulars    Amount

Provision for doubtful debts as on 01.04.2018 4704.03

Charges during 2018-19 238.72

Provision for doubtful debts as on 31.03.2019 4942.75

Charges during 2019-20 323.27

Provision for doubtful debts as on 31.03.2020 5266.02

[B] Liquidity Risk

Prudent risk liquidity management implies maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents and the availability of committed credit facilities 
to meet obligations when due.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the group’s liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flow. The entity has accessed the 
following drawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period :

Rs (In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019

Bank Overdraft  6856.26   3221.79

Letter of Credit    549.60 1141.13

Bank Guarantee     2138.81 809.48
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The following table gives the contractual discounted cash flows falling due within the next 12 (twelve) months.

Maturity of financial liabilities as at 31.03.2020

Maturity of financial liabilities as at 31.03.2020

Rs (In Lakhs)

Contractual maturities Upto 1 year Between 2 to 3 
year

Above 3 year Total

Trade payables 3962.04 275.73 853.73 5,091.50

Other financial liabilities 3563.30 116.22 2081.48 5761.00

 

Maturity of financial liabilities as at 31.03.2019

Rs (In Lakhs)

Contractual maturities
Upto 1 
year

Below 2 
& 3 year

Above 3 
year

Total

Trade payables 5671.50 5671.50

Other financial liabilities 5043.56 5043.56

[C] Market Risk 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019

Financial Assets

Trade Receivable(in foreign currency),if any -  $ 79240

Financial Liabilities    

Trade Payables(in foreign currency),if any - -

 [2.29] Capital Management

  [A] Risk Management

   The entity’s objectives when managing capital are to:

   [a] Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern.

   [b] Maintain an optimal capital structure so as to reduce the cost of capital.
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  [B] Dividends

   [1] Dividends recognized for the year end review:        Rs (In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 31.03.2020 Year ended 31.03.2019

Final Dividend - Nil

Interim Dividend Nil Nil

[2] Dividends not recognized at the end of the reporting period in line with Ind AS.

[2.30]  Assets pledged as Security

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for borrowings are:

Assets Pledged as Security Rs (In Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 31st March, 

2020
As at 31st March, 2019

Financial Assets 0.00 0.00

Trade receivables 5131.42 6612.24

Non-financial Assets 0.00 0.00

Inventories 4798.42 5339.03
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       Note No.  As at March 31, 2020  As at March 31, 2019 
Non-current assets
(a)  Property, Plant and Equipment 3 9432.83  8,729.50 
(b) Capital work-in-progress 3 7739.27  5,943.49 

(c)  Intangible Assets 3 7.44  7.60 
(d)  Financial Assets 
(i)   Investment 4 2681.19  1,203.04 
(ii)  Cash and Cash Equivalent 5 16.81  -   
(e) Income Tax Assets (net) 6 1232.64  1,128.20 
(f)   Other non-current assets 7 397.06  365.46 
Total Non - Current Assets 21507.24  17,377.29 
Current assets 
(a) Inventories 8 4798.74  5,339.03 
(b) Financial Assets 
(i)   Investment 9 0.35  0.35 
(ii)  Trade Receivables 10 5131.44  6,612.24 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 11 6407.02  8,123.22 
(iv) Loans 12 0.44  0.44 
(v)  Other financial assets 13 2028.93  2,315.19 
(d) Other current assets 14 2852.89  2,116.82 
Total Current Assets 21219.81  24,507.28 
Total Assets 42727.05  41,884.58 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 
(a) Equity Share Capital 15 9779.02  9,779.02 
(b) Other Equity 16 7455.50  9,023.17 
Total equity  17,234.52  18,802.19 
LIABILITIES 
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 0.00  0.68 
(ii)Other financial liabilities 18 28.80  28.80 
(b) Provisions 19 1828.46  2,889.54 
(c) Other non-current liabilities 20 415.04  341.31 
(d) Deferred Tax Liability 1894.71  1,821.33 
Total non-current liabilities  4,167.01  5,081.65 
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i)   Borrowings 21 8055.23  5,127.77 
(ii)  Trade and other payables 22 5091.50  5,671.50 
(iii) Other financial liabilities 23 5761.00  5,043.56 
(b) Other current liabilities 24 1228.27  1,122.23 
(c) Provisions 25 1189.53  1,035.68 
Total Current Liabilities  21,325.53  18,000.74 
Total liabilities  25,492.53  23,082.40 
Total Equity & Liabilities  42,727.05  41,884.58 

For Andrew Yule & Company Limited

SUCHARITA DAS 
Company Secretary

PARTHA DASGUPTA
Director (Finance)
DIN : 07059472

DEBASIS JANA
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 07046349

For S.K Basu & Co.
Chattered Accountant
F.No.: 301026E/Din No.07046349
Rudra Neil Mallick
Partner (M.No.:053983)

Date-  15.07.2020
Place- Kolkata

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2020
In Rs. Lakhs
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For Andrew Yule & Company Limited

SUCHARITA DAS 
Company Secretary

PARTHA DASGUPTA
Director (Finance)
DIN : 07059472

DEBASIS JANA
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 07046349

For S.K Basu & Co.
Chattered Accountant
F.No.: 301026E/Din No.07046349
Rudra Neil Mallick
Partner (M.No.:053983)

Date-  15.07.2020
Place- Kolkata

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR YEAR ENDED 31.03.2020
In Rs. Lakhs 

Particulars
Year ended

Note No. 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

I Revenue from operations  26 29,913.63  31,115.60 

II Other Income  27 3,082.59  4,144.72 

III Total Income (I + II)  32,996.23  35,260.32 

IV EXPENSES

(a) Cost of Materials consumed  28 8,800.52  9,417.74 

(b) Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, Work In Progress  29  (20.18)  184.68 

(c) Employee benefit expense  30 17,648.44  16,349.01 

(d) Excise Duty

( e) Depreciation and amortisation expense  31 657.56  687.92 

(f) Finance costs  32 845.19  615.16 

(g) Other expenses  33 7,190.08  6,954.69 

Total Expenses (IV)  35,121.61  34,209.20 

V Profit before tax (III - IV)  (2,125.38)  1,051.12 

VI Tax Expense

(1) Current tax  -    -   

(2) Wealth Tax  -   

(2) Deferred tax  (73.37)  180.93 

Total tax expense  (73.37)  180.93 

VII Profit for the period (V - VI)  (2,052.01)  870.19 

VIII Other Comprehensive Income

(1) Remeasurement of Investments  (476.59)  (8.37)

(2) Adjustment of actuarial gains/ losses  1,107.68  (869.15)

Less:

: Deferred Tax  146.75  (144.33)

IX Total Other Comprehensive Income for the period  484.34  (733.19)

X Total Comprehensive Income for the period (VII + IX)  (1,567.67)  136.99 

XI Earnings per equity share (Face value Rs. 2 each):

(1) Basic  (0.42)  0.18 

(2) Diluted  (0.42)  0.18 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive Income (net of Tax) Total

Capital 
Reserve

Securities 
Premium 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

 Equity 
Instruments 

through other 
comprehensive 

income 

 Other items of Other 
Comprehensive Income 

Balance at 1 April 2019 406.36 2741.75 6491.70 589.53  (1,206.17) 9023.17

Additions during the year

Transfers 0

Profit for the year  (2,052.01)  (476.59) 960.93  (1,567.67)

0.00

Other comprehensive income 
(net of Taxes)

0.00

Total comprehensive income for 
the year

0.00 0 0 0.00

Balance at 31 March 2020 406.36 2741.75 4439.69 112.94  (245.24) 7455.50

For Andrew Yule & Company Limited

SUCHARITA DAS 
Company Secretary

PARTHA DASGUPTA
Director (Finance)
DIN : 07059472

DEBASIS JANA
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 07046349

For S.K Basu & Co.
Chattered Accountant
F.No.: 301026E/Din No.07046349
Rudra Neil Mallick
Partner (M.No.:053983)

Date-  15.07.2020
Place- Kolkata
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW  FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST 
MARCH, 2020 In Rs. Lakhs 

 Year ended 31st March, 
2020 

 Year ended 31st 
March,2019 

(A)  CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Net Profit before Tax and extraordinary items  (2,125.38)  1,051.12 

Adjustments for :

Depreciation/Impairment of Assets  657.56  687.92 

Interest expense  744.35  615.16 

(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets  -   

(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Investments  (409.50)  (18.48)

Gain on Acquisition of Land by Government  (551.34)

Interest Income  (389.28)  (400.75)

Dividend Income  (1,700.71)  (2,390.86)

Provision no longer Required Written back  (323.83)

Liabilities no longer required written back  (521.79)

Net Gain on Foreign Currency Translation  (2.88)  (1.43)

Gain on Remeasurement of Long Term Trade Receivables  (1.99)

Gain on Remeasurement of Investments  (89.02)  (38.63)

Excess provision for YASF written back  (25.26)  (20.63)

Dimunition in the value of non trade investments  19.22 

Provision for Doubtful Debts  320.19  238.43 

Provision for Doubtful Loans, Advances and Deposits  16.22  120.18 

Provision for Stock/Stores Obsolence  21.92  36.18 

Provision for TDS Recoverable  1.02 

Unpaid Salaries

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through P&L  (476.59)

Acturial Gains and Losses  1,107.68 

Cash Generated from discontinued Operations  -   

 (224.30)  (2,552.64)

Operating profit before changes in amount of Current Liabilities and Current 
Assets

 (2,349.68)  (1,501.52)

Adjustment for

Trade and other receivables  920.21  518.24 

Inventories  540.29  (263.32)

Trade and other payables  (1,666.81)  (300.83)

 (206.31)  (45.91)

Cash Generated from Operations  (2,555.99)  (1,547.43)

Tax paid  -   

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A)  (2,555.99)  (1,547.43)

(B)CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

Purchase of Fixed Assets  (3,156.51)  (2,924.00)

Sale of Fixed Assets  1.84 
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW  FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST 
MARCH, 2020 In Rs. Lakhs 

Purchase of Investments  (1,478.15)  -    -   

Sale Proceeds of Investments  501.40  34.24 

Dividend Received  1,700.71  2,390.86 

Increase in Loans and Advances  -   

Interest Received  389.28  400.75 

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)  (2,043.27)  (96.31)

[C]  CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

Interest Paid  (744.35)  (615.16)

Dividend Paid  (235.41)

Short Term Borrowings (Repaid)/Taken  3,644.91  2,548.24 

Long Term Borrowings (Repaid)/Taken  (0.68)  (1.50)

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES [C]  2,899.88  1,696.17 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents [A+B+C]  (1,699.38)  52.43 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Opening Balance)  8,123.21  8,070.78 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Closing Balance)  6,423.83  8,123.21 

[1]  The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under “Indirect

Method” as set out in the Accounting Standard-3 on Cash Flow

Statement notified by the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules,2006

[2]  Cash and Cash Equivalents include :  As at 31st 
March, 2020 

 As at 31st 
March, 2019 

Balance with Banks (Refer Note below)  758.85  1,683.32 

Cheques in Hand  51.00  -   

Cash in Hand  23.18  20.86 

Postage and Stamps in hand  -   

Remittance in Transit  -   

Deposit with Bank maturing within 3 months

Margin Money with Bank maturing within 3 months

Deposit with Bank maturing after 3 months  1,125.00 

Deposit Acount Margin  5,590.80  5,294.04 

 6,423.83  8,123.22 

[a]  includes Rs.16.81 lakhs attached by Provident Fund Authority
[b]  Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary

For Andrew Yule & Company Limited

SUCHARITA DAS 
Company Secretary

PARTHA DASGUPTA
Director (Finance)
DIN : 07059472

DEBASIS JANA
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 07046349

For S.K Basu & Co.
Chattered Accountant
F.No.: 301026E/Din No.07046349
Rudra Neil Mallick
Partner (M.No.:053983)

Date-  15.07.2020
Place- Kolkata
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
In Rs. Lakhs 

NOTE-3

Particularsw " Land"

 Bearer 

Plants 

(refer 

note 2) 

 Lease-

hold 

Land

 Indas 

116 

 Build-

ings 

 Roads 

and 

Culverts 

 Plant

and 

Mach-

inery 

 Drawings, 

Designs 

and 

Tracings 

 Electri-

cal 

Installa-

tions 

 Water 

Installa-

tion 

 Furni-

ture 

and 

Fixtures 

 Office 

Equip-

ment 

 Vehic-

les 

 Fen-

cing 

 Com-

pu

ters 

Total 

" Capital 

work-

in-

progress 

 (refer

note 3) "

 Intan-gible 

Assets 

Gross carry- 

ing amount 175.39 2,772.61  -    4,945.88  95.96  6,831.57  74.99 1,233.07 953.85 225.43 165.11 1,074.43 283.59 305.31 19,137.18  5,902.66  106.86 

Deemed 

cost as at

1 April 2019
 175.39 2,772.61  -    4,945.88  95.96  6,831.57  74.99  1,233.07  961.18 225.43 165.11 1,076.39 283.59 305.31 19,146.47  5,902.66  106.86 

Additions
 -   1,246.43  6.29  15.32  -    56.92  -    1.69  (4.03)  3.96  4.88  (1.25)  -    3.81  1,334.03  3,139.66  0.78 

Disposals

/Adjustment  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Transfers
 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    1,301.78  -   

Closing gross 

carrying 

amount as 

on 31.03.

2020

 175.39 4,019.04  6.29  4,961.21  95.96  6,888.49  74.99  1,234.76  957.16  229.39 169.99 1,075.13 283.59 309.12 20,480.51  7,740.54  107.64 

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Accumulated 

depreciation

as at 

1 April 2019

 -    235.21  -    2,384.64  74.74  4,472.16  40.90  841.39  542.83  191.21 133.66  819.80 264.12  271.27 10,272.01  -    99.26 

Impairment 

as at 

1 April 2019
 -    -    -    5.78  -    62.97  34.09  -    -    0.01  -    -    -    -    102.85  1.25  -   

Disposals  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Opening 

accumulated 

depreciation 

after 

impairment 

 -    235.21  -    2,390.42  74.74  4,535.13  74.99  841.39  543.48  191.21 133.76  819.15 264.12 271.27 10,374.86  1.25  99.26 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
In Rs. Lakhs 

NOTE-3

Addition  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Deletion  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Adjustment  -    16.18  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    16.18  -    -   

Revised 

opening 

accumulated 

depreciation

 01-04-2019

 -    251.39  -    2,390.42  74.74  4,535.13 74.99  841.39  542.83  191.20 133.76  819.15 263.10 271.27 10,391.04  1.25  99.26 

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Opening 

accumulated 

depreciation

 -    251.39  -    2,390.42  74.74  4,535.13  74.99  841.39  543.49  191.20  133.66  819.15 264.12  271.27 10,391.03  1.25  99.26 

Depreciation 

charge during 

the year

 -    79.54  1.24  128.58  2.88  292.20  -    34.11  35.43  3.91  8.66  55.59  1.56  12.45  656.18  -    1.41 

Disposals/

Adjustment
 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (0.39)  (0.39)  -    0.39 

Closing 

accumulated 

depreciation

 -    330.93  1.24  2,519.00  77.62  4,827.33  74.99  875.50  578.91  195.11 142.42  874.74 265.68 283.32  11,046.83  1.25  101.06 

Net carrying 

amount as at 

31st MARCH. 

2020

 175.39 3,688.11  5.06  2,442.20  18.34  2,061.17  0.00  359.26  378.90  34.18  27.67  199.74  17.91  25.80  9,433.69  7,739.27  6.57 

Net carrying 

amount as at 

31st MARCH. 

2019

 175.39 2,537.40  -    2,555.47  21.22  2,263.62  -    391.67  411.03  34.12  31.46  254.63  19.47  34.04  8,729.50  5,943.49  7.60 

Particularsw " Land"

 Bearer 

Plants 

(refer 

note 2) 

 Lease-

hold 

Land

 Indas 

116 

 Build-

ings 

 Roads 

and 

Culverts 

 Plant

and 

Mach-

inery 

 Drawings, 

Designs 

and 

Tracings 

 Electri-

cal 

Installa-

tions 

 Water 

Installa-

tion 

 Furni-

ture 

and 

Fixtures 

 Office 

Equip-

ment 

 Vehic-

les 

 Fen-

cing 

 Com-

pu

ters 

Total 

" Capital 

work-

in-

progress 

 (refer

note 3) "

 Intan-gible 

Assets 
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NOTE-4 Investment
 Particulars 

        NO OF         
         SHARES 

 As at March 31, 
2020 

 As at March 31, 
2019 

a)  Investment in Group Companies Equity        
     Investment in Subsidiaries (Un-Quoted) 

      Hooghly Printing Co. Ltd  10,27,128  103.20  103.20 

      Yule Engineering Ltd.- Ordinary Share  50,000  5.00  5.00 

      Yule Electricals Ltd.- Ordinary Share  50,000  5.00  5.00 

     Equity Shares in Associate Company Quoted 

      Tide Water Oil Co. (India) Ltd.  9,14,223  164.56  164.56 

      Yule Financing & Leasing Co. Ltd (fully impaired)  3,00,000  27.88  27.88 

 -    -   

     Unquoted 

      The Bengal Coal Co. Ltd (fully impaired)  10,305  0.52  0.52 

       Katras Jherriah Coal Co. Ltd  60,260  6.95  6.95 

      The New Beerbhoom Coal Co. Ltd  1,05,335  12.27  12.27 

     Preference Shares (Unquoted) 

      6% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares--WEBFIL Ltd.  20,44,000  179.32  165.51 

     Bonds (Unquoted) 

      WEBFIL Ltd Zero Rated Unsecured Redeemable Bond  305  228.80  218.59 

b)  Investments carried at Fair value through OCI 

      Equity Investment (Quoted) 

      WEBFIL(NAV as per latest available)  1,45,000  5.23  5.23 

      India Power Corporation Ltd  0.00  3.90 

      Fort Gloster Industries Ltd (fully impaired)  1,040 

      Gloster Ltd  665  7.24  9.24 

      Exide Industries Ltd.  -    465.10 

      The Gillapukri Tea and Industries Ltd. (fully impaired)  26  0.00  0.00 

     Equity Investment (Un-Quoted) 

      The Statesman Ltd (fully impaired)  9,966  4.70  4.70 

      ABC Tea Workers Welfare Services (fully impaired)

      Woodlands Multispeciality Hospital Ltd (fully impaired)  23,200 

      India paer Pulp 

     Units (Quoted) 

      Unit Trust of India  3,44,166  1,993.32  67.71 

      Less Provision  (62.80)  (62.31)

     TOTAL  50,85,619  2,681.19  1,203.04 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
In Rs. Lakhs 
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Note 7 Other non-current assets

Note 8  Inventories (At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)

 Particulars  As at March 31, 2020  As at March 31, 2019 

 Plan Assets for Super Annuation Fund  397.06  365.46 

 TOTAL  397.06  365.46 

Particulars                                                                                   As at March 31, 2020                             As at March 31, 2019 
 

Raw Material  1,268.64  1,335.23 

Work in progress  1,447.13  1,157.87 

Finished Goods  555.78  822.75 

Stores and Spares  1,234.79  1,707.73 

Loose Tools  -    -   

Food Stuff  16.24  19.67 

Scrap  8.89  5.71 

Semi- Finished Goods  263.63  265.73 

Material In Transit  3.65  24.35 

Total Inventories  4,798.74  5,339.03 

Note : In case of tea inventory , only the inventory of fully processed tea as on 31.03.20 has been considered under finished goods.

Note 5 Cash and Cash Equivalent

 Particulars As at March 31, 2020  As at March 31, 2019 

 Current Account Balance with Bank Under Lien  16.81  -   

 TOTAL  16.81  -   

Note 6 Income Tax Assets (net)

Particulars

Current Taxes
Advance Income Tax  
Includes MAT Credit EntitlementRs43.38   
Lakh&Tax Provision of Rs43.38 lakhs) 

 As at March 31, 2020  As at March 31, 2019 

 1,232.63  1,128.20 

 -   

Total  1,232.63  1,128.20 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
In Rs. Lakhs 
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Note 9 Current Investment

Note 10 Trade receivables

Note 11 Cash and Cash Equivalents

 Particulars  As at March 31, 2020  As at March 31, 2019 

 Investments carried at Fair value through OCI 
 In National Savings Certificates 

0.35  0.35 

 Total  0.35  0.35 

Particulars  As at March 31, 2020  As at March 31, 2019 

Trade receivables  10,397.46  11,554.99 

 -    -   

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts  5,266.02  4,942.75 

Total receiavables  5,131.44  6,612.24 

 -   

Break up of security details:  -    -   

 -    -   

Trade receivables  -    -   

(a)     Secured, considered good  -    -   

(b)     Unsecured, considered good  5,131.44 6612.24

(c)      Doubtful  5,266.02 4942.75

 -   0.00

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts  5,266.02 4942.75

Total  5,131.44  6,612.24 

Particulars  As at March 31, 2020  As at March 31, 2019 

(a) Balances with banks

(1) Unrestricted Balance with banks

  (i) In Current Account  742.05  1,683.32 

  (ii) In Deposit Accountless than3 MONTHS  -    -   

  (ii) In Deposit Accountmore than 3 months  -    1,125.00 

In Deposit Account-Margin  5,590.80  5,294.04 

(b) Cheques, drafts on hand  51.00  -   

(c) Postage and Stamps in hand  0.00  0.00 

(d) Remittance in Transit  -    -   

(e ) Cash in hand  23.18  20.86 

Cash and cash equivalents as per 
balance sheet

 6,407.02  8,123.22 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
In Rs. Lakhs 
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Note 12 Loans

Note 13 Other financial assets

 Particulars 
 As at March 31, 2020  As at March 31, 2019 

 Loans and advances 

   Secured Considered good  -   

 -   

 Unsecured, considered Good  -   

 Loans and advances to related parties  -   

 -    -   

      Unsecured Considered good  0.44  0.44 

       Doubtful  120.41  447.00 

 -   

 less provision  (120.41)  (447.00) 

 -   

 TOTAL  0.44  0.44 

 Particulars  As at March 31, 2020  As at March 31, 2019 

 Balance with Government Authorities  1,498.64  1,448.60 

 Deposits 

      Considered Good  120.89  572.31 

      Considered Doubtful  -    10.31 

 120.89  582.62 

 Less: Provision for doubtful deposits  -    10.31 

 Net  120.89  572.31 

 Other Advances recoverable in cash 

      Considered Good  -    -   

      Considered Doubtful 

 LOAN 

 Less: Provision for doubtful advance 

 Deposits with NABARD  -    -   

 EMD/SD 

 Interest Accrued 

     On Fixed Deposit  145.38  294.22 

 Interest accrued on Nabard Deposit  -    -   

 Interest accrued on Loans and Advances  -    -   

 Other Receivables  264.02  0.06 

 -    -   

TOTAL  2,028.93  2,315.19 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
In Rs. Lakhs 
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Note 14 Other current assets

Note15:  Equity Share Capital

Note 16 Other equity

 Particulars  As at March 31, 2020  As at March 31, 2019 
 Advance to Staff  52.36  6.98 
 Others Advances-Unsecured considered good  1,178.45  -   

 -    -   

 Other Advances recoverable in cash or kind  -    -   
      Considered Good  1,622.08  2,109.85 
      Considered Doubtful  1,536.68  1,712.28 

 3,158.76  3,822.13 
 Less: Provision for doubtful deposits  1,536.68  1,712.28 

 1,622.08  2,109.85 
 -    -   
 -    -   
 -    -   

TOTAL  2,852.89  2,116.82 

 As at March 31, 2020  As at March 31, 2019 
Authorised :  -   
Equity Shares  -   
55,00,00,000 of Rs. 2/- each  11,000.00  11,000.00 

 -   
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up :  -   
Equity Shares  -   
48,89,50,978 of Rs. 2/- each  9,779.02  9,779.02 

 -   
Total  9,779.02  9,779.02 

 As at March 31, 2020  As at March 31, 2019 
Capital Reserve
(a) Capital Reserve  406.36  406.36 
(b) Others Reserve  -    -   

 -    -   
Bond Redemption Reserve  -    -   
(a) Bond redemption reserve  -    -   

 -    -   
Central/State subsidy for Capital Assets  -    -   

 -    -   
Security Premium Reserve  2,741.75  2,741.75 

 -    -   
Retained Earnings  -    -   
Op  Bal  6,491.69  5,856.90 
Add profit  (2,052.01)  870.19 
Adjustment against P/L  -    235.40 

 4,439.68  6,491.69 
Other Comprehensive Income  -    -   
Op  Bal  (616.63)  116.56 
ADD PROFIT  484.34  (733.19)
Other Comprehensive Income  (132.29)  (616.63)
Total  7,455.50  9,023.17 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
In Rs. Lakhs 
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Note 17 Borrowings

Note 18 Other financial liabilities

Note 19 Provisions 

Note 20 Other Non Current Liabilities

Particulars  As at March 31, 2020  As at March 31, 2019 

 Secured - at amortised cost 

   Term Loans

   from Bank of Baroda 

WB Sales Tax Loan

   Car Loan from Allahabad Bank  -    0.68 

Total non-current borrowings  -    0.68 

Particulars  As at March 31, 2020  As at March 31, 2019 

Non-Current

Security Deposits from related parties  28.80  28.80 

Total  28.80  28.80 

Particulars  As at March 31, 2020  As at March 31, 2019 

For Employee Benefits

    Gratuity  578.78  1,750.50 

    Leave  1,111.30  1,052.10 

    Medical

For Superannuationand pension  3.76  3.76 

For Contingencies  126.47  75.20 

For Sales Tax (C-Form)  5.25  5.25 

For Others  2.90  2.73 

Total  1,828.46  2,889.54 

Particulars  As at March 31, 2020  As at March 31, 2019 

Non-Current

Deferred revenue arising from Tea Board 
subsidy(Replantation Subsidy)

 415.04  336.31 

Govt Subsidy for Swacha Mission  -     5.00 

" Deferred Revenue arising from Tea Board 
Subsidy for capital assets"

 -    -   

Total  415.04  341.31 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
In Rs. Lakhs 
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Note 21 Borrowings

Note 22 Trade & Other Payables

Note 23 Other Financial Liabilities

Note 24 Other Current Liabilities

Particulars  As at March 31, 2020  As at March 31, 2019 

Secured

    From Scheduled Banks

        Union Bank  682.53  445.59 

        United Bank of India  3,093.45  1,320.91 

        Allahabad Bank  3,533.71  2,565.80 

        Bank of Baroda  745.54  795.47 

 Total Borrowings  8,055.23  5,127.77 

Particulars  As at March 31, 2020  As at March 31, 2019 

For Goods and Services

       To related parties  -   

         To Others  5,091.50  5,671.50 

 Total  5,091.50  5,671.50 

Particulars  As at March 31, 2020  As at March 31, 2019 

Current Maturity ofLong Term Debt  0.69 

Secured Term Loan

    From Bank of Baroda

Car Loan from Allahabad Bank  0.67  1.35 

Interest accrued and  due on borrowings

    From Scheduled Banks

    From Others

Deposit at Gardens  -   

Earnest Money/Security Deposit  199.17  157.10 

Payable to Statutory Authorities  1,056.84  1,184.30 

Others  4,503.63  3,700.81 

Total  5,761.00  5,043.56 

Particulars  For the year ended 31st March 2020  For the year ended 31st March 2019 

Advance Received from Customers  36.96  1,122.23 

Others  1,191.30 

Total  1,228.27  1,122.23 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
In Rs. Lakhs 
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Note 25 - Short-term Provisions 

Particulars  For the year ended 31st March 2020  For the year ended 31st March 2019 

For Stock Obsolescence, contingencies and 
food stuff

 522.09  506.20 

For Income Tax  -    -   

For Arrear Salary  182.52 

For Gratuity  -    -   

For Leave Encashment  113.64  186.64 

 For Warranty  48.18  48.18 

 For Medical  276.51  292.07 

 For Others  2.59  2.59 

 For TDS Recoverable  1.02  -   

 For Recoverable PF  42.97  -   

 Total  1,189.53  1,035.68 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
In Rs. Lakhs 
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Note 26- Revenue from Operations

Note 27 -  Other Income

Particulars  For the year ended 31st March 2020 For the year ended 31st March 2019
Sale of products  29,335.02  29,862.21 

Less: Trade and Other Discount  -    -   

 -   

Less: GST on Sales  -    -   

Sale of products  29,335.02  29,862.21 

 -    -   

Sale of Services  372.96  600.85 

 -    -   

Other Operational Income  -    -   

          -Other Export Incentives and sale thereof  -    -   

           - Tea Board Subsidy  20.88  5.97 

           -Tea Waste Sale  107.54  7.15 

Prov no longer required  6.04  36.04 

Liability  no longer required  34.93  521.79 

Sale of scrap  30.88  30.59 

Royalty  -   

Other Operational Income  5.37  50.99 

Total revenue from continuing 
operations

 29,913.63  31,115.60 

Note-Tea Board Subsidy includes subsidy received for Production of orthodox tea amounting to Rs 5.61 Lakh and the balance represent 
replatation subsidy.

Particulars For the year ended 31st March 2020 For the year ended 31st March 2019
Interest Income(Gross)  389.28  400.75 
Gain on Remeasurement of Long Term Trade 
Receivables

 -    1.99 

Gain on Remeasurement of Investments  89.02  38.63 
Rent (Gross)  342.45  351.01 
Dividend Income  -    -   
          -From Associate Company  1,697.27  2,376.92 
          -From others  3.44  13.94 
Profit on sale of Investments  409.50  18.48 
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets  -    -   
Liability no longer required written back  -    -   
Royalty  -    -   
Sale of Scrap  0.01  -   
Liabilities no longer required written back  -    -   
Prov no longer required  -    287.79 
Net Gain on Foreign Currency Transaction  2.88  1.43 
Gain on Acquisition of Land by Government  -    551.34 
Fees received by Directors and Employees  -    -   
Profit on Exchange  -    -   
Excess provision of YASF written back  25.26  20.63 
Deffered income on capital subsidy  -    -   
MISC receipts common exp
Others  123.49  81.82 
Total  3,082.59  4,144.72 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
In Rs. Lakhs 
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Note 28 -  Cost of Raw Materials & Component Consumed

Note 29 - Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-in-Progress

Note 30 - Employee Benefits Expense

Note 31 - Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

Note 32 - Finance Cost

Particulars  For the year ended 31st March 2020  For the year ended 31st March 2019 

Materials, Components, Packing Materials and 
Loose Tools

 8,800.52  9,417.74 

Total  8,800.52  9,417.74 

Particulars    For the year ended 31st March 2020  For the year ended 31st March 2019 

INVENTORY AT CLOSE

FINISHED GOODS 496.85  822.75 

WIP 1769.69  1,423.60 

TOTAL 2266.54  2,246.36 

INVENTORY AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

FINISHED GOODS 822.75 761.57

WIP 1423.60 1669.47

TOTAL 2246.36 2431.03

Change in Inventories (20.18) 184.68 

Particulars  For the year ended 31st March 2020  For the year ended 31st March 2019 

Salaries and Wages  14,470.26  13,260.98 

Contributions to  Provident and Other Funds  1,855.82  1,895.64 

 Staff Welfare Expenses  1,349.41  1,223.58 

Less: Incurred on Capital Jobs, Repair Jobs etc.  27.05  31.19 

Total  17,648.44  16,349.01 

Particulars  For the year ended 31st March 2020  For the year ended 31st March 2019 

Depriciation on Tangible Assets  656.88  682.00 

Amortisation of Intangible Assets  0.68  5.92 

Total  657.56  687.92 

Particulars  For the year ended 31st March 2020  For the year ended 31st March 2019 

Interest Expense

       -To Banks  647.52  500.89 

       -To Government Departments  2.95  -   

       -To Bondholders

       -To Others  93.88  8.20 

Other Borrowing Costs  100.84  106.07 

Total  845.19  615.16 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
In Rs. Lakhs 
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Note 33 - Others Expenses

Particulars  For the year ended 31st March 2020  For the year ended 31st March 2019 

Consumption of Stores and Spare parts  -    -   

 Power and Fuel  2,729.04  2,571.27 

Tea Cultivation and Manufacturing Expenses  531.01  289.50 

Rent (Net)  89.43  95.99 

 Repairs and Maintenance:

        - Buildings  179.65  221.94 

        - Plant and Machinery  337.29  321.32 

        - Others  77.15  46.50 

Travelling Expenses and Upkeep of Vehicles  468.84  490.46 

Research and Development Expenses  75.01  52.94 

Insurance  75.36  62.83 

Rates and Taxes  7.90  22.65 

Excise Duty  -    -   

Cess on Tea  -    -   

Green Leaf Cess  -    101.55 

Telephone & Postage  1.98  -   

Broker's Commission  200.21  199.68 

Selling Expenses:

           - Selling Agent's Commission  -    0.50 

           -Delivery and Freight  126.82  264.51 

           -Others  572.08  546.21 

Liquidated Damages and Penalty etc.  110.12  108.18 

Rectification/Replacement  -    73.99 

Bad Debt Written off

Excess Plan Assets for Superannuation Fund written off

Provision for:

        -Doubtful Debts  320.19  238.72 

        -Doubtful Loans, Advances and Deposits  16.22  119.89 

        -Dimunition in the value of Investment  -    19.22 

        - Recoverable account PF  42.97  -   

        -Stock/Stores Obsolescence  21.92  36.18 

        - TDS Recoverable  1.02  -   

Auditor's Remuneration :

        -As Auditor  19.19  4.00 

        -For Tax Audit  -    -   

        -For Other Services  4.02  4.90 

        -For Reimbursement Expenses  -    -   

        -For Taxation matter  -    0.05 

GD- Common expenses  -    -   

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses  18.05  9.29 

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets  -    1.79 

Net Loss on Foreign Currency Transaction  0.31  3.43 

Miscellaneous Expenses  1,164.28  1,047.21 

Total  7,190.08  6,954.69 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
In Rs. Lakhs 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
 [AS PER IND AS]

Note 34 Earning Per Share                                                                                                                                                         Rs (In Lakhs)

Particulars For the year 
ending 31.03.2020 For the year ending 31.03.2019

Earning per Equity share

(A) Basic

(i) Number of Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 488950978 488950978

(ii) Number of Equity shares at the end of the year 488950978 488950978

(iii) Weighted average number of shares 488950978 488950978

(iv) Face value of each equity share 2.00 2.00

(v) Profit after tax available for equity shareholders (2052.01) 870.19

(vi) Basic earning per equity share (0.42) 0.18

(B) Diluted

(i) Dilutive potential equity share Nil Nil

(ii) Diluted Earnings per Equity share (Rs) (0.42) 0.18

Note 35 Employee Benefits
[35.1] 
  [a]  Leave Obligation:-The Company provides for encashment  of leave or leave with pay subject to certain rules. The employees 

are entitled to accumulate leaves subject to certain limits for future encashment. The liability is provided on the basis of 
number of days of accumulated leave at each Balance sheet on actuarial valuation. The scheme is unfunded. The amount of 
provision for leave encashment as on 31st March, 2020 is Rs.1111.30 Lakhs (Rs 1052.10 Lakhs) is presented as current and 
non-current as per actuarial valuation basis. 

  [b]  Medical Benefits:The Medical benefits for the employees for domiciliary treatment is for a block of three years and shall lapse 
yearly thereafter if the concerned employee does not avail it. The liability towards such unveiled quantum of Medical benefits 
has been determined on actual basis instead of actuarial valuation method since the eligible amount will remain fixed during 
the next block. The total amount of liability as on 31st March, 2020 is Rs  276.51 Lakhs (Rs 292.07 Lakhs) has been taken into 
accounts. 

[35.2]    Post employment obligation- Defined benefits plans:
 [a]  Gratuity:- The Company has an obligation towards Gratuity payable to eligible employees as per the Payment of Gratuity 

Act,1972. The plan is being managed by a separate trust created for the purpose and obligation of the Company is to make 
contribution to the trust based on actuarial valuation. The scheme is funded.  

 [b]  Post retirement Medical Scheme:- Under the scheme employee gets one time benefits subject to certain limit of amount. 
The liability for this is determined on actual cost. The scheme is unfunded.

 [c]  Pension fund:- The Company has a defined benefit pension fund for certain eligible employees. The scheme is managed by 
a separate trust created for the purpose.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
 [AS PER IND AS]

Rs(In Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019

Gratuity Leave 
Encashment

Super-
annuation Gratuity Leave 

Encashment
Super-

annuation 

(a) Reconciliation of Opening and Closing balances of Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation
Present Value of 
obligations at the 
beginning of the year 

7581.37 1238.74 189.11 6575.66 1301.18 192.15 

Current service cost 366.36 195.81  370.92 221.26 0.00 

Interest expense 560.60 89.77 11.29 465.62 86.83 11.68 

Acturial (gains)/losses 
arising from changes in 
demographic assumptions

(3.77) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Acturial (gains)/losses arising 
from changes in financial 
assumptions

78.49 0.00 (3.95) 147.39 18.26 0.19 

Acturial (gains)/losses arising 
from changes in experience 
assumptions

(1167.80) 0.00 (11.56) 740.08 (105.09) 11.57 

Acturial (Gains)/Loss  (26.58)     

Past service cost 0.00   0.00 0.00 0.00 

Benefits paid (623.72) (272.79) (23.18) (718.30) (283.70) (26.48)

Present Value of 
obligations at the end of 
the year 

6791.54 1224.94 161.71 7581.37 1238.74 189.11 

(b) Reconciliation of Opening and Closing balances of the Fair Value of Plan Assets

Fair value of the Plan 
Assets at the beginning of 
the year

5830.88 0.00 554.57 5689.54 0.00 541.55 

Interest Income 420.99 0.00 34.86 415.09 0.00 34.50 

Remeasurement (gains)/

losses
0.00 0.00  0.00 0.00 0.00 

Return on plan assets, 

(excluding amount included 

in net interest Income)

6.57 0.00 (7.47) 21.39 0.00 5.00 

Acturial (gains)/losses arising 

from changes in financial 

assumptions

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
 [AS PER IND AS]

Contributions 578.06 272.79 0.00 423.15 283.70 0.00 

Benefits paid (623.72) (272.79) (23.18) (718.29) (283.70) (26.48)

Fair value Plan Assets at 
the end of the year

6212.77 0.00 558.78 5830.88 0.00 554.57 

       

(c) Reconciliation of the Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the Fair Value of Plan Asset

Present Value of obligations 

at the end of the year 
6791.54 1224.94 161.71 7581.37 1238.74 189.11 

Fair value Plan Assets at the 

end of the year
6212.77 0.00 558.78 5830.88 0.00 554.57 

(Liabilities) recognised in 
the Balance Sheet

(578.77) (1224.94) 397.07 (1750.49) (1238.74) 365.46 

       

(d) Expense recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income 

Remeasurements (gains)/
losses

(1099.64) 0.00 (8.04) 866.08 0.00 6.76 

       

( e) Expense recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss: 

Current Service Cost 366.36 195.81 0.00 370.92 221.26 0.00 

Past Service Cost 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Net Interest Cost/(Income) 139.61 89.77 (23.57) 50.53 86.83 (22.82)

Acturial (Gain)/Loss  (26.58)   (86.83)  

Total Expenses recognised 505.98 258.99 (23.57) 421.45 308.09 (22.82)

(f) The significant actuarial assumptions are as follows

Discount Rate 6.65% 6.65% 6.65% 7.22% 7.22% 6.42%

Expected return on Plan 

Assets
6.65% 6.65% 6.65% 7.22% 7.22% 6.42%

Salary Escalation 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%

Expected Average remaining 

working lives of employees
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
 [AS PER IND AS]

(g) Sensitivity    Analysis

Particulars

Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation 
(DBO) with Discount Rate

Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) with Cost

Change in 
Assumptions As at 31.03.2020 Change in 

Assumption
As at 

31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019

Gratuity

Increase by 

0.25%

Increase 

by Rs
(118.69)

Increase 

by 0.25%

Increase 

by Rs
244.67 7867.02

Decrease by 

0.25%

Decrease 

by Rs
142.51 

Decrease 

by 0.25%

Decrease 

by Rs
(206.11) 7313.00

Superannuation

Increase by 

0.25%

Increase 

by Rs
(4.08)

Increase 

by 0.25%

Increase 

by Rs
0.00 189.14

Decrease by 

0.25%

Decrease 

by Rs
4.67 

Decrease 

by 0.25%

Decrease 

by Rs
0.00 189.09

 
Less than 1 

year
Between 
1-2 years

Between 
3-5 years

Total

As on 31.03.2020     

Gratuity 774.48 702.70 2123.60 12957.61

Superannuation 161.72 0.00 0.00 161.72

Total 936.20 702.70 2123.60 13119.33

As on 31.03.2019     

Gratuity 1102.60 754.54 2155.89 7051.48

Superannuation 97.48 103.87 0.00 201.36

Total 1200.09 858.41 2155.89 7252.83
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
 [AS PER IND AS]

[35.3] Post Employment Obligation: -

 Defined Contribution plan: - The Company has defined contribution plan viz PF and ESI. The expenses recognized during  
the period towards Defined contribution plan is as follows:

Rs (In Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019

Contribution to PF 1313.79 1364.34

Contribution to Employees State Insurance Fund 0.28 0.55

Note 36 Contingent Liabilitiesand commitments

Rs (In Lakhs)

Particulars As on 31.03.2020 As on 31.03.2019

(a) Contingent Liabilities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as Debt 477.71 665.41

Disputed Excise/Custom Duty 513.59 516.26

Disputed Service Tax 23.43 35.89

Disputed Sales Tax/VAT 2143.71 2,182.89

Disputed Income Tax 1934.18 1,934.18

 

(b) Guarantee

Bank Guarantee 4527.58 4,658.22

Other Guarantees given to bank against financial 

facilities availed by subsidiaries 
- 976.00

Unexpired letter of credit 549.30 1,141.43

 

(C) Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed 

on capital account
68.00 36.91
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
 [AS PER IND AS]

Note 37 The disclosure under the Micro, Small & Medium Enterprise Development Act,2006 

           Rs (In Lakhs)

Sl.No. Particulars
Amount 

As on 31.03.2020 As on 31.03.2019

1

Outstanding principle amount and interest as on   

i) Principal amount 402.98 483.50

ii) Interest sue thereon   

2 Amount of interest paid alongwith the amounts of payment made 
beyond the appointed day  

3 Amount of interest due and payable (where the principal has already 
been paid but interest has not been paid)   

4 The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 
each Accounting Year   

5

Amount of further interest reamining due and payable even in 
succeeding years, untill such date when the interest dues as above 
are actually paid for the purpose of  disallowance as a deductible 
expenditure  under section 23 of MSMED Act.

 

Note 38  Corporate Social Responsibility

Expenditure related to Corporate Social Responsibility as per Section 135 of Companies Act 2013

Details of CSR spent during the Financial Year 2019-2020

[a] Total amount spent for the Financial Year: Rs 20.18 Lakhs

[b] Amount un spent: - Nil (Approved expenditure:- Rs 10.32 Lakhs & unspent amount of Rs 9.86 Lakhs pertaining to the FY 2018-19) 

[c] Manner in which the amount spent is detailed below:
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                                                                                                      Rs (In Lakhs)

Sl.No. CSR Project/Activities
Sector in which the 
project is covered

Location

Amount

As on 
31.03.2020

As on 31.03.2019

1
Ladies garments &Mordern Design 
Trainning Course

Skill development 
Program

BanarhatDooars  2.44

2
Drinking water distribution to school 
children

Social Service
Perungundi, 

Chennai
 0.68

3
4 Toilet complexes alongwith 
installation of summersible pumps for 
safe drinking water

Social Service DakshinDinajpur  6.17

4

4 nos. Schools: Toilet Complexes (2 
Urinals & 1 WC) alongwith installation 
of submersible pumps for safe drinking 
water)

Social Service DakshinDinajpur 0.49  

5 Contribution to "Clean Ganga Fund" Social Service New Delhi 0.50  

6
Contribution to "Prime Ministers 
National Relief Fund" 

Social Service New Delhi 4.27  

7 Contribution to "Swachh Bharat Kosh" Social Service New Delhi 2.29  

8
Misc.CSR activities in and around our 
functional area / SwachhtaPakhwada

Social Service
Delhi/Kolkata/
Dooars/Assam

2.31  

9
5 Toilet Complexes (2 Urinals+1 WC+1 
Wash Area) 

Social Service Dooars/Assam 6.00  

10
Special Courses with in-depth Training: 
Tailoring / Embroidery / Fabric Printing

Skill development 
Program

Khowang 3.72  

11
Misc.CSR activities in and around our 
functional area 

Social Service Delhi/Kolkata 0.24  

12 PM Cares Fund Social Service New Delhi 0.36  

Total 20.18 9.29
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
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Note 39  Related Party Disclosure

A. List of Related Parties
Subsidiary Hooghly Printing  Co. Ltd 
 Yule Electrical Ltd.

 Yule Engineering Ltd.

Associates Tide Water Oil Co. (I) Ltd.

 The New Beerbohm Coal Co. Ltd.

 Katrasjherriah Coal Co. Ltd.

Other Related Parties Yule Financing & leasing Co. Ltd.

 The Bengal Coal Co. Ltd.

 Yule Agro Industries Ltd.

Key Managerial Personnel Mr. Debasis Jana -  Chairman & Managing Director 

 Mr. Partha Dasgupta -  Director(Finance)

 Mr. Sanjoy Bhattacharya -  Director (Planning)

 Mr. K. Mohan    - Director (Personnel)

    Mrs Sucharita Das    -  Company Secretary 

   Mr. P. P. Munshi    -  GM, Elec. Div., Kolkata

   Mr. S. N. Mullick    -  GM, Engg. Div.
    Mr. C. Bora    -  GM, Tea Div.
   Mr. G. Pugalendhi     -   Dy. GM, Elec. Div., Chennai
   Mr. A. P. Roy    -  Dy. GM, Corporate F&A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
 [AS PER IND AS]

B. Transactions with related parties                                                                                                                                         Rs in Lakhs 

Sl
.No. 

 Nature of 
Transaction 

 Year Ended on 31.03.2020  Year Ended on 31.03.2019 

 Subsidiaries  Associates 
 Other 
related 
Parties 

 Total  Subsidiaries  Associates 
 Other 

Related 
Parties 

 Total 

1  Purchase of goods -   27.14 -   27.14 0.92 21.06  21.98 

2  Sale of Goods -   0.62 -   0.62 0.14 1.66  1.80 

3  Sale of Services -   241.31 13.26 254.57 18.29 420.18 15.66 454.13 

4  Dividend Income -   1,692.11 -   1,692.11 2,376.92 2,376.92 

5  Interest Expenses -   -   -   -     3.46 3.46 

6 
 Rent and hire 
charges received 

-   252.83 -   252.83  264.24 0.82 265.06 

7  Royalty received -   -   -   -      -   

8 
 Advance given 
during the year 

-   -   -   -      
                 

-   

9 
 Repayment of 
loans and advance /
Amount received 

-   -   -   -    31.44 42.83 74.27 

10 
 Long Term loans 
and advances 

0.80 -   -   0.80 0.79  447.00 447.79 

                  
11 

 Short term loan and 
advances 

-   0.60 -   0.60 159.29 0.60 18.05 177.94 

12 
 Other current 
assets 

-   -   -   -     56.00 56.00 

                 
13 

 Other loans and 
advances 

5.62 -   -   
          

5.62 
3.68   3.68 

14 
 Other long term 
liabilities (Security 
Deposit) 

-   -   -   -     28.80 28.80 

15 
 Corporate 
Guarantee 

-   -   -   -   976.00   976.00 

16 
 Amount due from 
as on 31st March 

274.38
                  
41.97 

42.65 153.23 164.10 1.61 465.05 630.76 

17 
 Amount due to as 
on 31st March 

-   6.82 -   6.82  -   18.90  18.90 
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 [AS PER IND AS]

Note 39.1 
 Disclosure related to transactions between the Company and Key 
Managerial Personnel  

Rs (In Lakhs) 

 Key Managerial Personnel  2019-20  2018-19

 [a] Remuneration to Directors 

 Mr. Debasis Jana 29.65 27.50

 Mr. Partha Dasgupta 35.59 23.57

 Mr. Sanjay Bhattacharya 24.54 23.01

 Mr. R.C. Sen - 25.17

 Mr. K.Mohan 33.64 1.62

 Mr. Kaustuv Roy  - 46.51

 [b] Remuneration to Company Secretary 

 Ms Sucharita Das 12.83 11.62

Rs (In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 31.03.2020 Year ended 31.03.2019

Testing Fee 35.67 15.51

Subscription to TRA 39.35 37.42

Total 75.02 52.93

Note 39.2  Disclosure related to transactions between the Company and Key Managerial Personnel  
Rs (In Lakhs) 

Independent Directors 2019-2020 2018-19

Dhanpat Ram Agarwal 0.15 1.02

Sipra Goon 0.47 1.10

SudhirJhunjhunwala 0.03 0.35

Anil Kumar Goyal 0.12 -

Anil Kumar Verma 0.12 -

BishwanathGiriraj 0.12 -

Note :  40 : The Company has incurred revenue expenditure of Rs 75.02 Lakhs (Previous year Rs 52.93 Lakhs) on account of 
Research & Development expense the break-up of which is as follows:
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Note 41.1

Reconciliation of the tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31st  March 2020 and 31st  
March 2019 Rs (In Lakhs)

Particulars 2019-2020 2018-19

Accounting profit before income tax (2125.38) 1051.19

At India's statutory income tax rate of 34.944% 0.00 328.19

At agricultural income tax rate of respective states 0.00 17.10

(Assam 30% & West Bengal 50%)

Effects of:

Deferred Tax movement (521.17) 180.93

Weighted deductions allowable* 0.00 (6.54)

Disallowed expenses* 0.00 2870.30

Exempted dividend* 0.00 (2390.86)

Others 0.00 (1681.68)

Income Tax expense reported in P/L Account 521.17 (682.55)

At the effective rate of income tax 0.00 64.94

Income tax expenses reported in the statement of profit and loss 521.17 180.93

*Due to accounting losses no liability on account of current tax expenses would arise.

Note 41 Income Tax Expense

Particulars For the year ended 31.03.2020 For the year ended 31.03.2019

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Current Tax

Current Tax on profit for the year

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods

Total Current Tax Expense
Deferred Tax
Decrease/(Increase) in Deferred tax assets 377.93 (948.48)

(Decrease)/Increase in Deferred tax Liabilities  (451.297) 1129.41

Total Deferred Tax (73.361) 180.93

Total Tax expense (73.36) 180.93
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Note 42 Deferred Tax expense

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
Rs(In Lakhs)

2019-20                                                                         2018-19

  Particulars
Opening 
Balance

Recognised in 
Profit & Loss

Recognised 
in/

Reclassified 
from OCI

Recoginised 
directly to 

Equity

Closing 
Balance

Opening 
Balance

Recognised 
in Profit & 

Loss

Recognised in/
Reclassified 

from OCI

Recoginised 
directly to 

Equity
Closing Balance

           

Deferred Tax 
Liabilities:

          

           

Depreciation on 
PPE,Intangible 
Assests and 
Investment 
Property

  3,505.26  (161.10)      3344.16 2531.89 973.3706   3505.26

Financial assets at 
Fair Value through 
Profit & Loss

      (51.39) 19.40         (31.99) (64.96) 13.56705   (51.39)

Financial assets 
at Fair Value 
through Other 
Comprehensive 
Income

      162.09     (162.85)           (0.76) 163.95  1.85375  162.09

Investment in Joint 
Ventures

          

Others           

Total Deferred Tax 
Liabilities

   3,615.96     (141.70)    (162.85)                -     3311.41 2630.88 986.9376 1.85375 0 3615.96

           

Deferred Tax 
Assets:

          

           
Compensated 
Absences and 
Retirement 
Benefits

      245.31               (4.59)    (309.59)        (68.87) 54.8 48.03986 142.4667  245.31

Provision for 
Doubtful Debts

                -                      -   0    0

Others    1,549.27             (63.74)   -   1485.52 791.29 757.9785   1549.26

Total Deferred Tax 
Assets

   1,794.58             (68.34)    (309.59) -    1416.65 846.09 806.0183 142.4667 0 1794.57

Net Deferred Tax 

Liabilities
   1,821.34             (73.36)      146.74  -    1894.72 1784.74 180.9192 144.32 0 1821.34
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Note 42.1
The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax 

liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities related to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Note 43

During the year ended 31st March 2020, there is no liability of current Income Tax expense on a/c of Central Income Tax Act, 1961 & 

Assam Agricultural Tax, 1939 after adjustment of eligible Tax Allowance & Deductions.

Note 44 Sales & Raw Materials Consumption
Rs (In Lakhs)

(i) Sales

Class of Goods Year ended 31.03.2020 Year ended 31.03.2019

Black & Packet Tea 20476.77 19844.84

Transformers 4846.27 6319.19

Industrial Fans 2158.76 2861.55

LT and HT Switchgears 171.00 234.74

Spares 1458.33 476.32

Sale of Service 372.96 613.35

Others 223.90 113.07

Total (Sale of products ) 29707.99 30463.06

(ii) Raw Material consumed and stores consumed

Items Year ended 31.03.2020 Year ended 31.03.2019

Steel 291.37 569.97

Copper 174.93 845.46

Green Leaf 772.40 1,240.99

Parts of Distribution Transformer 1139.00 521.12

Oil, Chemical etc 168.67 569.28

Others 6254.15 5616.93

Total 8800.52 9417.74
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(b) Value of Impoted and Indigenous Raw Materials and Stores Consumed

(i) Raw Materials
Year ended 31.03.2020 Year ended 31.03.2019

Value % Value %

Imported 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Indigenous 8605.40 100.00 8989.92 100.00

 8605.40 100.00 8989.92 100.00

(ii) Stores     

Imported 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Indigenous 195.12 100.00 427.82 100.00

 195.12 100.00 427.82 100.00

Rs (In Lakhs)

( C) Value of imports on CIF Basis

Raw Materials and Components
Year ended 31.03.2020 Year ended 31.03.2019

- -

(d) Expenditure in Foreign currency:

Foreign expenses 4.64 4.05

( e) Earnings in Foreign exchange

Value of export on FOB basis 359.80 223.16

Rs (In Lakhs)
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 Note 45 Segment Reporting: Rs (In Lakhs)
1. Segment Revenue  100000    

 Electrical Tea Engineering Segment Total Elimination Total
 Division. Division. Division.    

-External Sales
5,303.96 20,476.77 3,554.30 29,335.02   

7,153.69 19,844.84 2,863.68 29,862.21   

-Inter Segment Sales
6.76 0.00 19.92 26.68   

36.58 2.93 38.37 77.88   

Total Revenue From Product Sale 5,310.72 20,476.77 3,574.22 29,361.70 26.68 29,335.02

 7,190.27 19,847.77 2,902.05 29,940.09 77.88 29,862.21

Total Revenue From Sale Of Service 0.00 0.00 109.23 109.23  109.23

 0.75 0.00 131.75 132.50  132.50

2. Segment Results
-2,296.96 -691.81 -114.39 -3,103.16  -3,103.16

-1,345.66 683.08 -310.93 -973.51  -973.51

3. Unallocated Corporate Expenses    
    Net of 
    Unallocated Income

     -267.00

   Unallocated Income      151.81

4. Operating Profit
     -3,370.16

     -821.70

5. Interest Expenses
     845.19

     615.15

6. Interest and Dividend Income
     2,089.99

     2,791.61

7. PBT and Items relating to P.Y.
     -2,125.36

     1,051.12

8. Item relating to P.Y.
     0.00

     0.00

9. Net Profit
     -2,125.38

     1,051.12

 Electrical Tea Engineering Segment Total Elimination Total
 Division. Division. Division.    

       

3. Segment Assets
10,274.09 19,885.38 4,840.02 34,999.49 0.00 34,999.49

11,213.37 18,405.45 4,531.66 34,150.48  34,150.48

       

-Unallocated Corporate Assets
     7,727.59

     7,734.10

-Total Assets
     42,727.08

     41,884.59
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 Electrical Tea Engineering Segment Total Elimination Total
 Division. Division. Division.    

       

4. Segment Liabilities& Equities
                           -                 -   

          
10,274.09 

        
19,885.38 

      4,840.02 34999.49    34,999.49

 11,213.37 18,405.45 4,531.66 34150.48  34150.48

-Unallocated Corporate Liabilities
     7,727.59

     7,734.10

 -Total Liabilities
     42,727.08

     41,884.58

       

       

       

 4. Others       

       

– Capital Expenditure
21.65 3,109.54 8.47 3,139.66  3,139.66

22.07 3,434.26 11.46 3,467.79  3,467.79

       

– Depreciation including Impairment
60.51 556.25 28.57 645.33  645.33

67.28 580.13 28.50 675.91  675.91

-Non-Cash expenses other than 
Depreciation

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00  0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00  0.00

 Note 46  Disclosures related to the Subsidiaries of the Company

Sl.No. Name of the Subsidiary
% of shareholding as at 31st 

March 2020
% of shareholding as at 31st March 2019

1 Hooghly Printing Co. Ltd 100% 100%

2 Yule Engineering Ltd. 100% 100%

3 Yule Electrical Ltd. 100% 100%
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Note 47

Pending transfer of Assets and Liabilities of Engineering and Electrical Division to two 100% subsidiaries incorporate in the name of Yule 
Engineering Ltd and Yule Electrical Ltd as per Sanctioned Rehabilitation Scheme (SRS) all transactions for the year ended 31st March 2018 
related to aforesaid divisions entered into by the Company in the Name of Andrew Yule & Company Ltd. (AYCL) have been accounted for in 
the Books of Accounts.

Note 48

Other Receivables includes Rs23.96 Lakhs paid as Electricity duty which is considered receivable vide Circular Number233-IR/O/IM-4/2003 
dated 25th February, 2014 issued by Govt of West Bengal under “West Bengal Industrial Renewal Scheme ,2001” stated that the amount paid 
as electricity duty under the Provisions of Bengal Electricity Rules, 1935 shall be waived for period of five years with effect from 31st March, 
2006.

Note 49

There is a moratorium period in respect of 6% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares- WEBFIL of Rs179.32 Lakhs (Discounted as 
per IND AS) (previous year Rs 165.51Lakhs ) (Original value Rs 204.40 Lakhs) and zero rated unsecured Redeemable Bond of Rs 228.80 
Lakhs (Discounted as per IND AS) (Previous year  Rs218.58) (Original value Rs 305.00 Lakhs) of WEBFIL for a period of 7 (Seven) years 
commenced from 1st April, 2014 and 20th Dec, 2014 respectively.

Note 50

Loans & Advances includes a sum of Rs 205.76 Lakhs (Previous year Rs 157.71 Lakhs) provided to 100% subsidiary, M/s Hooghly Printing 
Company Limited as an expenditure support. Said subsidiary as per order of GOI have closed their Business Operations on 21.01.2019 & is 
scheduled to be merged with AYCL in Financial Year 2020-21.In this regard Form No.- CAA 11 has already been filed with Regional Director- 
ROC, Kolkata for approval of the said scheme of Merger. On completion of said merger, Assets & Liabilities in the Books of said subsidiary 
as on the date of merger will be incorporated in the Books of AYCL.

Note 51

The Company follows the practice of inspection of individual current or non-current asset by a scrap committee before declaring the same as 
scrap and ultimately putting the same for sale.

Note 52

The liability for payment of Gratuity as per the Provisions of the Act is considered for the Company as a whole and not Unit/Division wise.

Note 53

Capital WIP includes nurturing & related expenses of young tea plants amounting to Rs7599.70 Lakhs (Rs 5808.05 Lakhs in 2018-19) in 
compliance with IND-AS.

Note 54

For renewal of land lease of three tea gardens in Dooars, Govt. of W.B. have asked for salami of Rs 177.66 Lakhs, which has been taken 
up by AYCL for waiver with local State Govt. authorities as well as with higher Govt. Authorities at Kolkata. AYCL is hopeful for settlement 
of the issue in favour of the Company which is also indicative from renewal of lease for another Garden of AYCL without payment of salami.

As the matter is related to Govt. & Quasi Govt-Authorities/ Autonomous body  (as applicable) and as the applications of the Company for 
waiver of the demands have not so far been turned down, the included total amount of Rs177.66 Lakhs has been included in “Claims against 
the company not acknowledged as debt” as stated in note no. 36.  



ANDREW YULE & COMPANY LIMITED

131

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
 [AS PER IND AS]

Note 55

The Company has system of seeking year ending balance confirmation certificates from Debtors and Creditors. However, the company has 
maintained the figures available in accounts for cases wherein, no response from Debtors /creditors is received.

Note 56

“Balance With statutory Authorities” under “Note Other Financial assets” (Note 15) includes a sum of Rs 42.97 Lakhs towards refund 
receivable from Provident Fund Authorities in pursuant with an order issued by erstwhile Board of Industrial & Financial 

Reconstruction (BIFR) in F.Yr 2015-16. A claim in this regards has already  been lodged with Central provident Fund (PF) authorities who in 
turn have taken up the same with concerned regional Provident Fund Authorities. This being a due from Government Department, However, 
as a matter of abundant precaution the aforesaid amount has been provided in Accounts.

Note 57 

The worker unions of the Chennai unit of the Electrical Division have gone on strike from mid-August, 2019 due to their unsettled demand 
for wage increase beyond the wage revision offered by management more or less in line with other units. The management thereafter has 
declared Suspension of Work in turn during the same month and as of now there is Status Quo for both Strike and Suspension of Work, as 
aforesaid.

The Company has provided for the impact of wage revision for the FY 2019-20, for the period prior to strike keeping in view the provisions of 
Section 22,23 & 24 of the Industrial Dispute Act 1947 as well as relevant Court case(s) as have been referred therewith.

As regards the premises & the Plant & Machineries and other Fixed Assets of the Unit necessary security arrangement along with preventive 
and routine maintenance has been continued throughout the year, keeping in view the need of maintaining the workability of the machineries 
of the Unit.

Note 58 Impact on Financial position of the Company due to COVID-19 Pandemic

Subject impact actually started almost from the initial days of  Quarter 4 of financial year 2019-20, though formal lockdown on this account 
was declared by India by the end of March 2020.

Since said lockdown and various restrictions imposed by the Government Authorities in this regard continued for the full quarter 1 of financial 
year 2020-21 there has been considerable adverse impact on turnover of the Company during this period during this period along with 
resultant adverse impact on profitability and cash generation .

Following table depicts a comparison of division-wise turnover in quarter 4 of 2018-19 vis-à-vis quarter 4 of 2019-20 as well as similar 
turnover in April & May 2019 vis-a-vis April & May 2020 (provisional).

Figs Rs/Crores   QUARTER 4  APRIL-MAY (Provisional)

2018-19 2019-20 2019-20 2020-21

Engineering Division 13.48 6.42 3.54 0.50

Electrical Division-Kolkata 13.49 6.42 0.91 1.81

Electrical Division- Chennai 8.88 2.51 7.71 1.10

Tea Division 30.73 25.37 18.74 10.82

Total 66.58 40.72 30.90 14.23
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However, keeping in view some of the events occurring after the Balance Sheet date, any erosion in the year end value of the inventories 
due to impact of COVID-19 could not be forseen as enumerated below

•	 As regards inventory of Tea produced, price realization could be made in Quarter 1 of the FY 2020-21 at a rate higher than the 
book value of inventories.

•	 Also for inventory of other manufactured items of other Divisions are mostly covered by inclusion of impact of COVID-19 under the 
force majeure clause in line with OM no. 18/4/2020-PPD dated 13.05.2020 issued by GOI, Ministry of Finance. 

Note 59

[a]   Figures in Bracket are of previous year.

[b]   The fig in these accounts have been rounded off to nearest Lakhs of Rupees.

[c]    Previous year figures are rearranged and realigned as required.

For Andrew Yule & Company Limited

SUCHARITA DAS 
Company Secretary

PARTHA DASGUPTA
Director (Finance)
DIN : 07059472

DEBASIS JANA
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 07046349

For S.K Basu & Co.
Chattered Accountant
F.No.: 301026E/Din No.07046349
Rudra Neil Mallick
Partner (M.No.:053983)

Date-  15.07.2020
Place- Kolkata
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
To the Members of Andrew Yule & Company Limited

Report on the Audit of Consolidated IND-AS Financial Statements

(1.)  Qualified Opinion

1. We have audited the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of Andrew Yule and Company Limited (“The Holding Company”) 
and considered financial statements of Subsidiaries and Associates (Together referred to as “The Group”) audited by other auditors 
which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31” March, 2020, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (Including 
other comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “consolidated financial statements”.

 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, subject to the qualifications mentioned 
hereinafter in this report, the aforesaid Consolidated IND AS Financial statements, give the information required by the Act in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
consolidated state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2020, consolidated loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated 
changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended

( 2 ) Basis for Qualified Opinion

 a.)  In the absence of Balance confirmation certificates from a considerable number of Sundry Debtors and Sundry Creditors, no 
opinion can be formed about the correctness of the balances of Sundry Debtors and Sundry Creditors. Effect of the above , if any 
on profit and loss is not ascertainable.

 b.)  The auditor of one of the subsidiary companies, namely Hooghly Printing Co.Ltd. (HPCL) have qualified their report stating that 
the Companies’ net current and non current assets arising out of discontinued business have not been stated at net realizable 
value(as per valuation report dated 21.08.2019), which is not in conformity with the Accounting standards prescribed under 
Section 133 of The Companies Act, 2013. The Company considered the carrying value of assets in the books of accounts as per 
the merger proposal of HPCL with Andrew Yule & Co.Ltd, currently pending with Hon’ble National company Law Tribunal (NCLT), 
Kolkata Branch (Refer to Note No.60 of the Consolidated financial statements.)

 c.)  Auditors of subsidiary companies, namely Yule Electrical Limited and Yule Engineering Limited have qualified their reports stating 
that the said companies are not a going concern as there were no operating activities in the concerned year and the same has 
not been disclosed in “Notes to Financial Statements”. Also no agreement related to the terms of payment and interest payable if 
any, was available for unsecured borrowings from Andrew Yule and Company Ltd. Further, confirmation of Loan taken from others 
were not available to the auditors of Yule Electrical Limited.

 d)  Auditors of Associate Companies namely The New Beerbhoom Coal Company Limited and Katras Jherriah Coal Company 
Limited have qualified their respective audit reports as follows:

 (i)  In the case of New Beerbhoom Coal Company Limited -” a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and on realisability of advance income tax recoverable Rs. 4.09 lakhs and not 
valuing investments in shares of WEBFIL Ltd.Rs. 4.62 lakhs(valued at intrinsic value) and BKNY & CO., Partnership firm -Rs.1.04 
lakhs(valued at cost) at fair value and are unable to ascertain the extent of liabilities from pre nationalization period amounting to 
Rs.11.88 lakhs and other liabilities of Rs. 1.04 lakhs.”

 (ii)  In the case of Katras Jherriah Coal Company limited “a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Companys 
ability to continue as a going concern and on realisability /recognition of amount receivable of Rs.1.78 lakhs, claims payable 
pending with appellate courts amounting to Rs. 28.60 lakhs, claims of creditors against the company amounting to Rs. 36.19 
lakhs, advance income tax recoverable Rs. 10.54 lakhs and not valuing investments in New Beerbhoom Coal Company Ltd.-Rs. 
0.53 lakhs(valued at NAV) and BKNY & CO., Partnership firm -Rs.0.90 lakhs(valued at cost) at fair value.”

 e)  The auditors of the associate company Tidewater Oil Company(India) Limited have qualified their consolidated audit report as 
follows;” The financial results of one joint venture (JX Nippon TWO Lubricants India Private Limited) is unaudited. Hence the 
impact of adjustments, if any, had an audit been carried out is unascertainable.”
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We have conducted our auditing in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of The 
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by The Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 
provisions of The Companies act, 2013 and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
the requirement of the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion.

(3)  Emphasis of Matter:

 Without qualifying our audit report, we draw attention to the following: 

a. In the absence of IT system audit, security of accounting/operational data, recovery of data through IT disaster management system 
and manual intervention at crucial levels of data transfer and at the time of consolidation result in high audit risk. 

b. The absence of exercise of adeqauate controls in the process of maintaining the records of the companies lease deeds and title deeds 
enhances the audit risk. 

c. Electrical Division has not contributed an amount of Rs. 1103.36 lakhs and Engineering Division has not contributed an amount of Rs. 
74.55 lakhs to the Company’s gratuity fund which is utilised towards payment of gratuity to employees on retirement

d. Provident Fund recoverable of Rs. 42.97 Lakhs (Refer note No.56 of the financial statements) pending over 10 years from PF department 
of Government of India has been provided for in the accounts. 

e. Lease agreement of three tea gardens namely Banarhat, Choonabhutti and Haritalguri-3 (of New Dooars and Brentford Unit of Electrical 
Division , Kolkata has not been renewed since long. However, lease rent is being paid by the Company. Salami asked for by the West 
Bengal Government amounting to Rs.177.67 lakhs (PY-Rs. 228.93 lakhs) as per Note No. 54 is shown under “Claims not acknowledged 
as debts”. The matter should be resolved immediately as it disputes the Company’s ownership of the tea gardens under its operation.

f.  All the inoperative bank accounts of the Company in its various divisions should be closed to mitigate the fraud risk. Also many bank 
accounts have authorized signatories who have retired/resigned from the Company. These former employees should be replaced as 
signatories by the officials who are currently in the employment of the Company. 

g. As per regulation 17(1) of SEBI (LODR) regulations, 2015, as amended the composition of the Board should be as follows: (i) the 
board of directors shall have an optimum combination of executive and non executive directors with at least one woman director (ii) 
where the chairperson of the listed entity is an executive director, at least half of the Board of directors shall comprise of independent 
directors. In the case of the company, as the CMD is an executive director, at least half of the members on the Board should be 
independent directors. However at present the Board consists of four whole time directors, two government nominee directors and 
three independent directors with no woman director. Hence as on date three more independent directors including a woman director 
needs to be appointed to comply with the aforesaid provision.

 BSE had levied a fine of Rs.5,36,900/- for June 2019 quarter, Rs.9,06,240 /-for September 2019 quarter and Rs. 7,59,920/- for 
December 2019 quarter and Rs. 5,31,000/- for March, 2020 quarter (Totaling Rs. 27,34,060/-, inclusive of GST) due to non-compliance 
with requirements of Regulations 17 to 21 of LODR regulations which has not been paid /provided by the Company as appointment of 
Directors is done by the Companies administrative ministry. The company has taken up the matter with the administrative ministry and 
with SEBI and BSE. 

h.  Hooghly Printing Company Limited (HPCL) had declared closure of its business operations with effect from 21st January, 2019 pursuant 
to its merger with the company. However, final approval of merger was held up by the Office of The Regional Director (Eastem Region), 
Kolkata vide their letter dated 08.01.2020 that the matter has been referred to NCLT under Section 232 of The Companies Act, 2013 
by referring to the provisions of Section 233(5) of The Companies Act, 2013 concerning the interest of creditors. Some of the creditors 
were also applying under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code for their payment. In such situation a proposal was placed to sell of the 
assets of HPCL and apportion the dues between the creditors. However it was decided by the Board that since the matter is before 
NCLT, legal opinion needs to be taken before such sale is authorized. Hence the matter of merger is pending before such formalities 
are taken care of.

i. The Company has assessed the decline in sales and effect on inventory due to the nationwide lockdown arising out of COVID 19 as 
per Note No 58 of the financial statements.

j. Internal audit reports of all the gardens for the second half of the year have not been provided to us as a result we are unable to 
comment on the same. 

k. There are a large number of debit balances in Trade Payables accounts which should be reconciled and adjusted with relevant heads 
of account.
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4)  Information other than the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditors Report thereon:

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the information The other information comprises the information included in the 
Management Discussion and Analysis, Boards Report including the Annexures to Boards Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate 
Governance and Shareholders Information, but does not include the Consolidated financial statements and our auditors report thereon. The 
report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this audit report.

(5)  Key Audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the Consolidated 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated financial statements 
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon and we do not provide a separate opinion in these matters. We have determined the matters 
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in this report. However, no key audit matters were reported in the audit 
reports of the subsidiaries or associate companies.

S.N.                      KEY AUDIT MATTER 

1. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 

 The Company is subject to a number of legal, regulatory and 
tax cases for which final outcome cannot be easily predicted 
and which could potentially result in significant liabilities. 
Management’s disclosures with regards to contingent 
liabilities are presented in Note No.36-to the Standalone Ind 
AS Financial Statements. 

 The assessment of the risks associated with the litigations is 
based on complex assumptions. This requires use of judgment 
to establish the level of provisioning, increases the risk that 
provisions and contingent liabilities may not be appropriately 
provided against or adequately disclosed. Accordingly, this 
matter is considered to be a key audit matter.

                                   AUDITORS RESPONSE 

 In order to get a sufficient understanding of litigations and 
contingent liabilities, we have discussed the process of 
identification implemented by the Management for such 
provisions through various discussions with Company’s legal and 
finance departments. We read the summary of litigation matters 
provided by the Company’s/ Unit’s Legal and Finance Team. 
We read, where applicable, external legal or regulatory advice 
sought by the Company We discussed with the Company’s/
Unit’s Legal and Finance Team certain material cases noted 
in the report to determine the Company’s assessment of the 
likelihood, magnitude and accounting of any liability that may 
arise. In light of the above, we reviewed the amount of provisions 
recorded and exercised our professional judgment to assess 
the adequacy of disclosures in the Standalone Ind AS financial 
statements

(6)  Responsibility of the Management and those charges with Governance for the Consolidated Ind-As financial statements:

 The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the Consolidated 
financial position, Consolidated financial performance, Consolidated changes in equity and Consolidated cash flows of the Group 
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian accounting standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act. 

 This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

· In preparing the Consolidated financial statements of The Group the respective Board of directors are responsible for assessing the 
ability of the respective Companies to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matter related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so.

· Those respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group and of its associates are also responsible for overseeing 
the Companies financial reporting process and its associates.

(7)  Auditor’s responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind As Financial statements:

 Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated IND AS financial statements as a whole are free 
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from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAS will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated 
financial statements.

 As part of our audit, in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the IND AS financial statements whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of The Companies Act, 2013 we are also responsible for expressing an opinion on whether the 
Company has adequate internal financial control system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of the managements use of going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast a significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors 
report to the related disclosures in the IND AS financial statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the IND AS financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
IND AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

 We communicate with those charged with governance regarding , amongst other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

 We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonable be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

(8) Other Matters

(a) The process of merger of Hooghly Printing Company Ltd. As per the Board’s resolution dated 22.02.2018 of the said subsidiary (Refer 
Note No: 60 of the consolidated financial statements) is yet to be completed

(b) We have considered information from the financial statements of the three subsidiaries, namely, Hooghly Printing Co. Ltd., Yule 
Engineering Ltd. and Yule Electrical Ltd., whose financial statements have been audited by other auditors, which reflect total assets of 
Rs.212.75 Lakhs as at 31” March, 2020. Total Revenues from continued operation of Rs.-0.07 lakhs for the year ended on that date, 
as considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The consolidated Ind As financial statements also include the net loss 
of Rs- 180.14 lakhs of the subsidiary companies for the year ended 31” March, 2020.

(c) The consolidated financial statements of the three associate companies, namely, Tide Water Oil Co. india) Ltd., The New Beerbhoom 
Coal Co. Ltd. and Katras Jherriah Coal Co. Ltd. have been audited by other auditors whose audit reports have been furnished to us 
by the management and our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures 
included in respect of these subsidiaries and associates and our report in terms of sub sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of The Act, 
in so far as it relates to the aforementioned subsidiaries and associates, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors subject to 
non compliance of SA 705 and SA 570 by the respective auditors of two subsidiaries Yule Engineering Limited and Yule Electrical Ltd.

 Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements and our report on the other legal and regulatory requirements below is not 
modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the 
financial statements certified by management.

(d) Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, nationwide lockdown and other travel restrictions were imposed by the Government/local administration. 
Hence, some of the audit processes were carried out by electronically by remote access. The necessary records were made available 
by the management through digital medium and were accepted as audit evidence while reporting for the current period.
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(9)  Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for 
the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to the preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements 
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books, and the reports of the other auditors, subject 
to our qualifications/emphasis of matter mentioned elsewhere in this report.

(c)  The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including The Statement of Other Comprehensive 
Income and consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for 
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements, subject to our qualification/emphasis of matter elsewhere in this 
report.

(d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated IND AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 subject to our qualification/emphasis of 
matter elsewhere in this report.

(e)  Section 164 (2) of the Act regarding disqualification for appointment of Director is not applicable to Government Companies vide 
notification no. GSR.4631 E) dated 5th June, 2015.

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our report in “Annexure A”

(g)  With respect to the matters required to be reported upon as per directions of The Comptroller and Auditor General of India as per the 
provisions of Section 143(5) of The Companies Act, 2013, refer to our report in “Annexure B”.

(h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i)  The consolidated financial statements of the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial 
position of the Group in its IND AS financial statements - Refer Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements;

(ii)  The Group and its Associates has not entered into any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were material 
foreseeable losses.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company and its 
subsidiaries and associate companies.

For S.K.BASU & Co.  Place: KOLKATA
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
(FIRM NO: 301026E)
sd/-   DATE: 15th July, 2020
RUDRA NEIL MALLICK 
PARTNER
(MN: 053983) 
(UDIN:20053983AAAAAN7180)
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors Report
Referred to in Para 9(f) of our report of even date:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause(i) of Sub Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (The Act).

(1) We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Andrew Yule and Company Limited (The Company)as on 31” 
March, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated IND AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that 
date.

Managements Responsibility for Internal Financial controls

(2) The Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to companies policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors Responsibility

(3) Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting ( the” Guidance 
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing issued by ICAI and the Standards on Auditing as specified under Section 143 (10) of the Act to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards 
and Guidance Notes require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

(4) Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting include obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing a risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditors judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the IND AS financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error.

(5) We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial control system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

(6) The Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of IND AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. The Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the Company, (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of IND AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorization of management and directors of the Company, 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the 
Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the IND AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

(7) Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to fraud or error may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

(8) Based on our audit and the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that:

 (a)  The flow of financial data from divisions, units and gardens are not seamlessly integrated with Head office accounts. It involves 
manual interventions at various stages of accounting.

 (b)  Absence of guidelines of IT general controls and segregation of duties does not give reasonable assurance regarding fair 
maintenance and accurate reflection of records with reasonable details for transactions and disposition of assets of the Company.

 (c) Since the inception of computerization, IT systems audit has not been carried out.

 (d)  IT disaster recovery plan has not been defined. 

 (e)  The company has not obtained balance confirmation certificates from a considerable number of sundry debtors and creditors.

 (f)  Internal audit reports of the company for the second half of the year have not been provided to us as a result we are unable to 
comment on the same.

 In view of the above observations, Internal financial Controls of the company as at 31 March, 2020 is inadequate with respect to its size, 
diversity and complexity of operations based on internal control over financial reporting criteria as stated in the Guidance Note on audit 
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For  S. K. BASU & Co.  Place: KOLKATA
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
(FIRM NO: 301026E) DATE:15th July, 2020
Sd/-
(RUDRA NEIL MALLICK 
PARTNER
(MN:053983)
(UDIN:20053983AAAAAN7180)
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors Report 
Directions under Section 143(5) of The Companies Act, 2013 on the basis of our audit of Consolidated financial statements of Andrew Yule and 
Company Limited for the FY 2019-20.
 
We give below the answer to the questions and information asked for in the above mentioned directions

S.N. Directions Our Answer

1. Whether the Company has system in place to process all 
the accounting transactions through IT system.? If yes, 
the implications of processing the accounting transactions 
outside IT system on the integrity of the accounts along 
with the financial implications, if any, may be stated.

The Company does not presently possess an ERP accounting system 
or a fully integrated IT system among its units and Head Office and 
as such, necessary accounting integration is being done through 
separate data entry mode and by applying Consolidated IT software.
The method adopted by the Company leaves 
a scope of absence of data integrity, thereby increasing the risk.

2. Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or 
cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interests etc. made 
by a lender to the Company inability to repay the loan? If 
yes, the financial impact may be stated.

There is no instance of restructuring/waiver/write offs of existing loans 
availed by the Company.

3. Whether funds received/ receivable for specific schemes 
from Central/State agencies were properly accounted for/
utilized as per its terms and conditions? List the cases of 
deviation.

All  funds received/receivable for specific  schemes  from Central /
State agencies were properly accounted for under Note No. 20 
relating to. the head of “Other non current liabilities”

S.N. Directions Our Answer
1. Whether the Company has system in place to process all 

the accounting transactions through IT system.? If yes, 
the implications of outside IT system on the integrity of the 
accounts along with the financial implications, if any, may 
be stated.

The Company process its accounting transactions through lT system 
to the extent checkd by us and based on information and audit. 

2. Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or 
cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interests etc. made 
by a lender to the Company due to the Companys inability 
to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact may be 
stated.

No such cases noticed. 

3. Whether funds received/receivable for specific schemes 
from Central/State agencies were properly accounted for/
utilized as per its terms and conditions? List the cases of 
deviation.

No such cases noticed.

For subsidiary companies, their respective auditors reports under Section 143(5) are appended below:

Hooghly Printing Company Limited
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S.N. Directions Our Answer
1. Whether the Company has system in place to process 

all the accounting transactions through lT system? If yes, 
the implications of processing the accounting transactions 
outside IT system on the integrity of the accounts along with 
the financial implications, if any, may be stated.

Accounts have been maintained through Excel worksheet. lntegrity of the 
accounts along with the financial Implications have been checked. 

2. Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or 
cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interests etc. made 
by a lender to the Company due to the Companys inability 
to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact may be stated.

There is no restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/write off 
of debts/loans/interest etc made by a lender to the company due to the 
company’s inability to repay the loan.

3. Whether funds received/receivable for specific schemes 
from Central/State agencies were properly accounted for/
utilized as per its terms and conditions? List the cases of 
deviation.

No such funds received/receivable for specific schemes from Central/State 
Governments.

S.N. Directions Our Answer

1. Whether the Company has system in place to process 
all the accounting transactions through IT system? If yes, 
the implications of processing the accounting transactions 
outside IT system on the integrity of the accounts along with 
the financial implications, if any, may be stated.

Accounts have been maintained through Excel worksheet. Integrity of 
the accounts along with the financial implications have been checked.

2. Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or 
cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interests etc. made 
by a lender to the Company due to the Companys inability 
to repay the loan? If yes, the financial Impact may be stated.

There is no restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver write 
off of debts/loans/interest etc made by a lender to the company due 
to the company’s inability to repay the loan.

3. Whether funds received / receivable for specific schemes 
from Central/State agencies were properly accounted for/
utilized as per its terms and conditions? List the cases of 
deviation.

No such funds received/receivable for specific schemes from Central/
State Governments..

Yule Engineering limited 

Yule Electrical Limited 

For  S. K. BASU & Co.  Place: KOLKATA
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
(FIRM NO: 301026E) DATE:15th July, 2020
Sd/-
(RUDRA NEIL MALLICK 
PARTNER
(MN:053983)
(UDIN:20053983AAAAAN7180)
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DRAFT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST 
MARCH, 2020 [AS PER IND AS]

Note 1 Corporate Information

Andrew Yule &Company Limited (AYCL) was incorporated in 26.05.1919 as a Private Sector Company with an objective to work as 
managing agency. With the abolition of managing agency system, the Company lost its traditional business and Government of India 
acquired the Company in 1979. AYCL is a Schedule-”B” CPSE in Medium and Light Engineering sector together with Tea producing 
and manufacturing business under the administrative control of M/o. Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises, D/o Heavy Industry 
with 89.25% shareholding by the Government. Its Registered Office is situated 8, Dr. Rajendra Prasad Sarani, Kolkata-700001, 
West Bengal.

AYCL is a nationalized enterprise in the business of both manufacturing and sale of Black Tea, Transformers, Regulators/Rectifiers, 
Circuit Breakers, Switches, Industrial Fans, Tea Machinery, Turnkey jobs etc. It has five (5) Operating Units out of which four (4) 
are in West Bengal and one (1) in Chennai, Tamilnadu. Out of the Four (4) Units at West Bengal, Three (3) Units are in Kolkata and 
One (1) Unit is at Kalyani. The Company is functioning in three main sectors namely Engineering, Electrical and Tea. AYCL has 
three 100% Subsidiaries namely Hooghly Printing Co. Ltd., Yule Engineering Ltd., and Yule Electrical Ltd. The enterprise has an 
employee strength of 14073 as on 31.03.2020. Its shares are listed at BSE. 

The Financial Statements were approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors on 15thJuly, 2020.

Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

 [2.1] Basis of preparation

 [2.1.1] Compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

The Financial Statements are prepared on accrual basis of accounting and comply in all material aspects with Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (The Act) [Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016] and other 
relevant provisions of the Act. 

All Assets and Liabilities have been classified as Current or Non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle 
and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time 
between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has 
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 
Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are classified as Non-current Assets and Liabilities.

 [2.1.2] Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting and historical cost conventions, except for 
the Financial Assets which are measured at fair value :

   [i] Quoted Financial Assets are measured at fair value;

   [ii] defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

    The methods used to measure fair values are discussed in Note 2.28.

 [2.1.3] Functional and Presentation Currency

   These Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional currency. All 
financial information presented in INR has been rounded off to the nearest lakh (upto two decimals) for the Company.

 [2.1.4] Use of Estimates and Management Judgements

   [a] Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment

   The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment is based on a number of factors including the effects of 
obsolescence, demand, completion and other economic factors in accordance of Schedule II of Companies Act 2013. 
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   However, in case of Plant & Machinery, useful life has been considered from 15 years upto 25 years as per Technical 
Evaluation. 

   [b] Recoverable amount of Property, Plant and Equipment and Capital Work-in-Progress

   The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress is based on estimates and 
assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions may have a material impact on the measurement of the recoverable 
amount resulting in impairment.

   [c] Post-retirement Benefit Plans

   Employee benefit obligations except medical benefits are measured on the basis of actuarial assumptions which include 
mortality and withdrawal rates as well as assumptions concerning future developments in rates, the rate of salary increase, 
the inflation rate and expected rate of return on plan assets. The Company considers that the assumptions used to 
measure its obligation are appropriate and documented. However, any changes in the assumptions may have impact on 
the resulting calculations. Medical Benefits measured on actual basis.

   [d] Provisions and Contingencies

   The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance with Ind AS 
37, “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”. The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events 
has been made on the basis of best judgment by management regarding probable outflow of economic resources. Such 
estimation can change due to unforeseeable developments.

   [e] Investment in Subsidiaries and Associates

   Investment is carried at cost and provision is made for any impairment ofsuch investment.

 [2.2] Segment Reporting

   Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the definition provided by IND AS 108.

 [2.3] Foreign Currency Transactions

   Foreign currency transactions are translated into Indian Rupee (INR) which is the functional currency by applying the 
exchange rates between the INR and foreign currency at the dates of the transactions. Foreign Exchange gains and losses 
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated 
in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss.

   [a] Foreign currency loans to finance fixed assets including  technical  know-how  fees are converted either at the exchange 
parity rate ruling at the close of the accounting  year or at the fixed rate when the exchange is booked in advance, as 
the case may be. Necessary adjustments with regard to such exchange rate difference are made to secured loans, fixed 
assets and depreciation.

   [b] In respect of any import of materials both under CIF, FOB and C&F Contracts, purchases are booked at the exchange 
rates prevailing on the date of Bill of Entry. The exchange difference, if any, arising from the difference between the above 
rate and the rate at which the actual payment is made or at the rate prevailing on 31st March, whichever is earlier, is 
accounted for in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

   [c] Exports/Overseas  Sales  are  booked  at  the  rates  prevailing  on  the  date  of  bill  of  lading.  Exchange difference, if 
any, relating to such bills arising either on realisation of the proceeds or on conversion thereof at the exchange rate ruling 
at the close of the year, whichever is earlier, is accounted for in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

   [d] Receivables and Payables in foreign currency are reported in the Balance Sheet at the parity rate ruling at  the close of 
the financial year. The exchange difference arising on the settlement of such receivables/payable  or  on  reporting  such  
receivables/payables  at rates  different  from  those  at which  those  are  initially  recorded  during  the  period  or  reported  
in  previous  Balance  Sheet  is accounted for in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31ST MARCH, 2020 [AS PER IND AS]
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 [2.4] Revenue Recognition and Other Income

   Revenue has been recognized as per IND AS 115 effective from 01.04.2018.

  [2.4.1] Sale of Goods
   Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have 

passed to the buyer. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates.

   Revenue from sales is based on price specified in the Sales Contracts, net of discounts and schemes which are assessed 
based on published circulars and expected achievement threshold. No element of financing is deemed present as the 
sales are made generally with a credit term, which is consistent with market practice.

   Despatches against FOR destination contracts not reaching the customers within the close of the year, are shown as 
Finished goods-in-transit.

   Tea sales against contracts are accounted for on the basis of delivery orders and on completion of sale in auction centres 
in accordance with the norms of tea trade

  [2.4.2] Rental Income

   Rental Income arising from letting out of the property to Associate Company & other Parties is accounted for on periodical 
basis as per terms of the agreement and is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

  [2.4.3] Interest Income

   Interest Income is recognized using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the Financial Asset to the gross carrying amount 
of a Financial Asset. When calculating the effective interest rate the Company estimates the expected Cash Flows by 
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses. However, 
for Bank interest accrued at year end are considered as communicated by Banks.

  [2.4.4] Dividend Income

   Dividends are recognized in profit and loss under the head ‘Other Income’ only when the right to receive payment is 
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the 
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

  [2.4.5] Other Income

   The following incomes are treated as Other Income:

   a) Insurance and other claims are accounted for on the basis of amounts admitted.

   b) Sales Tax, Excise Duty and Customs Duty refunds are accounted for on the basis of assessment/refund orders received;

   c) Interest  receivable  from  customers  as  per  stipulation  of the Sales Contract on account of late receipt of full/
proportionate payments are accounted for to the extent such interest is ascertainable with respect to the payment so far 
received.

   d) Export/Deemed Export benefits  are accounted  for on completion  of despatches  in terms of the contract.

   e) Liquidated  Damages  recovered  by  the  Company  for  delayed  supply  of  raw materials, equipment/spares  are 
treated as Other Income.

 [2.5] Income Taxes
   The Income Tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the 

applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to 
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

   The current income tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the 
reporting period. Management periodically evaluates position taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which 
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   regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be 
paid to the tax authorities. Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognized at the same 
time the liability to pay the related dividend is recognized and rectification has not been considered

   Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases 
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is not accounted for if 
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of 
the transaction affects neither accounting profit/ Loss nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using 
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected 
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

   Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that 
future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses.

   Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and 
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are 
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

   Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity, respectively.

 [2.6] Leases

   The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the 
inception of the leases as per the terms and conditions specified in IND AS 116. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease 
if fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right 
to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

   As a Lessee

   Vide notification of Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 30th Match, 2019, Indian Accounting Standard (Ind -As -116) Leases 
has become effective for the Company from 1.4.2019.ReplacingInd as 17 (Leases). The accounting policy on Leases has 
been changed as per IndAs 116. The principal change of Ind As 116 , Leases  is change in the accounting treatment by 
Lessees of Leases currently classified as operating leases. Lease agreements has given rise to the recognition of right of 
use assets and a lease liability for future lease payments. In case of Company standards have been applied standard have 
been applied to only such cases wherever executed lease agreements/or Notifications issued by the concerned Lessor 
Government are in hands of the Company and for the balance period of such lease as on 01.04.2019, except for cases 
mentioned below:

   In case of lease of lands from Government of Assam for the Tea Gardens in Assam, the Company, in conjunction with 
Indian  Tea Association, has noted that, section 9 of the Assam Land and Revenue Regulation, 1886 provides a land 
lease, right to use, occupancy and other relevant rights subject to payment of revenue, taxes, cases and rates from time to 
time as may be due in respect of the said land and thus, there is no fixed or defined period of lease. As such, Ind As 116 
should not accordingly be applicable in case of Assam. However, there is no financial impact on transition to IND AS 116 
as the Company has not applied this standard retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard 
recognized at the date of initial application.

   As a Lessor

   Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognized in income on a straight line basis over 
the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for 
the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their 
nature.
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 [2.7] Impairment of Non-financial Assets other than Inventories

  [a] The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired or when 
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s Cash Generating Unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value 
in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are 
largely independent of those from other assets of the Company. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds 
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. The resulting 
impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

  [b] In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre tax discount 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining 
fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, 
an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices 
for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

 [2.8] Statement of Cash Flows

  [a] Cash and Cash Equivalents

   For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits 
held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months 
or less from the date of purchase that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown under borrowings in current liabilities 
in the Balance Sheet.

  [b] Statement of Cash Flows is prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in Ind AS-7 “Statement of Cash 
Flow”

 [2.9] Trade Receivables

   Trade receivables are recognized initially at transaction price and subsequently measured at cost less provision.

 [2.10] Inventories

   [a] Raw Material (including Packing Materials), Work-in-Progress, traded and Finished Goods are stated at lower of cost 
and net realizable value. Cost of raw material & traded goods comprises of cost of purchases. Cost of work-in-progress & 
Finished Goods comprise direct material, direct labour and appropriate portion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, 
the latter being allocated on the basis of actual labor hours utilized in such jobs as being consistently followed. Cost of 
inventories also include all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost 
are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted average method. Cost of purchased inventories are 
determined after deducting rebates & discounts. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course 
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

   [b]  Provisions for slow and non-moving stock lying for more than three years but less than five years are made at 15% 
of Book Value, for such stock remaining more than 5 years, provision @ 36.25% of Book Value are made. Provision for 
obsolete stores are made at 100% of Book value. All losses on Work-in-progress incurred upto the end of the year and 
losses estimated for further Works Cost to be incurred on such jobs are taken into account and duly provided for.

   [c] While valuing the contract jobs in progress at the close of the year, future estimated losses are considered only in 
respect of jobs valued at Rs. 25.00 lakhs or more and/or physical progress whereof as per technical estimate, is minimum 
50%.

   [d] Inter-Unit transfers of own manufactured stores, spares, raw materials etc., if lying in stock at the close of the year, are 
valued at estimated Works/Factory cost of the Transferor Unit.

   [e] Stock  of  scrap,  is  valued  on  the  basis  of  estimated/actual  realised  value  as  the  case  may  be. However tea 
waste is not valued.
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   [f]  Export benefits against Advance Licences are considered at the time of actual consumption of the imported materials. 
    Advance Licences in hand at the close of the year are not accounted for.

   [g] Cost of Inventory which are sold during the year are recognised by way accretion/decretion of inventory.

 [2.11] Financial Assets other than Investments in Subsidiaries,Associates and Joint Venture

 [2.11.1] Classification

   The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

   * those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income or    
 through profit and loss), and

   * those measured at amortized cost.

   The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms 
of cash flows.

   For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit and loss or other comprehensive 
income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For 
investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable selection at the time 
of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

   The Company reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

 [2.11.2] Measurement

   Equity instruments

   The Company measures all equity investments except in subsidiary & Associates at fair value. Investment in subsidiary & 
Associates are measured at historical cost.

 [2.11.3] Impairment of Financial Assets

   The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at 
amortized cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been 
a significant increase in credit risk. Note 2.28 details how the Company determines whether there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk.

   For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach of recognizing the expected losses from initial 
recognition of the receivables on case to case basis as provision for impairment.

 [2.11.4] Derecognition of Financial Assets

   A financial asset is derecognized only when

   * The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

   * Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a con  
tractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

   Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognized. Where the entity has not 
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognized.

   Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the 
financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where 
the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing 
involvement in the financial asset.
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 [2.12] Purchases

   [a]  Insurance charges incurred in relation to the incoming goods where materials are directly relatable are accounted for 
in respect of individual items; otherwise, such insurance premium is charged off to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

   [b]  In case of goods purchased from overseas, the shipment is treated as goods-in-transit :

   [i] in case of both CIF and C&F Contracts, from the date of intimation received from bank;

   [ii] in case of FOB Contracts, from the date of actual shipment as per Bill of Lading.

 [2.13] Other Revenue Expenses

   [a] Issue of materials/components as free replacements during the guarantee period, which cannot be provided being 
unknown, is accounted for     on actual despatches.  Known free replacements  upto the close of the accounting year are 
provided for.

   [b] The Company provides liability on account of repairs and rectifications for goods already sold to customers on the 
basis of past three years average expenses on the above head.

   [c] Liabilities in respect of Liquidated Damages are provided if and to the extent, not disputed by the Company. Liquidated 
Damages disputed by the Company are treated as contingent liability. The amount of liability/contingent liability is estimated 
on the basis of contracted terms and the facts of each case to the extent of revenue recognised.

   [d] Liability in respect of commission is provided in proportion to sales.

   [e] Interest on delayed payments of Income Tax/Agricultural Income-Tax is accounted for on the basis of assessment  
orders of the Tax Authorities,  if not disputed by the Company or actual payment effected, as the case may be.

   [f] Payment of Technical Know how Fees is accounted for in compliance with the relevant Accounting Standard.

   [g] Provision  for  unrealised  profit  is  made  in  respect  of  partially  completed  composite/turnkey contracts on the basis 
of proportionate direct cost on the revenue recognised.

   [h] Medicine purchase for Tea Estates are all  charged out as per consistent practice.

   [i] Guarantee commission is taken in the year of guarantees issued/renewed.

  [2.14] Booking /Writing Back of Liabilities

   a) For providing liabilities, cut-off date is 30th April but all known liabilities, if material, are booked as far as practicable 
(previous year cut-off date 30th April).

   b) Liabilities which are more than 5 years old and not likely to materialize, are written back except Govt. debts. In case of 
extraordinary items only, separate disclosure is given in the Financial statements.

 [2.15] Offsetting Financial Instruments

   Financial Assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be 
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the 
counterparty.

 [2.16] Property, Plant and Equipment

   [a] The Physical verification of fixed assets is carried out in a phased manner so as to cover each item of the fixed assets 
over a period of 3 years.

   [b] Grant/Subsidy  in  respect  of  capital  expenditure  is  accounted  for  as  per  applicable  Accounting Standard and 
recognised in     Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the useful life of the assets.Grant/subsidy are accounted 
for when there exists sufficient written assurance of receiving the same.

   [c] Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost 
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
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   [d] Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the 
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized 
when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss during the reporting period in which they 
are incurred.

   [e] Machinery manufactured by one Unit/Division for use in another Unit/Division are accounted for at Works/Factory cost 
of the Transferor Unit.

   [f] The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based 
on internal/external factors. An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable 
value. An impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss where the carrying amount of an asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting periods is reversed if there has been 
a change in the estimate of recoverable amount.

   [g] Bearer Plants are transferred from Capital WIP to Fixed Assets Block of Bearer Plant after 3 years from its year of 
replantation. The average life of bearer plant has been considered as 70 (seventy) years for Assam and Dooars Gardens 
and 100 (one hundred) years for Mim Tea Estate situated at Darjeeling. 

   [h] The assets are considered to be unusable after getting approval of the designated technical assessment committee.

 [2.17]  Applicability of IND AS-41 (Biological Assets)

   AYCL Tea Division plucks tea leaves for manufacturing in 7 days round. On 31st March each year it plucks the matured 
tea and manufactures the same. In all sections of each garden tea leaves on the bushes stands immature. 

   Para 10 of Ind AS 41 states to recognize a Biological Asset when and only when, the fair value or the cost of the asset can 
be measured reliably. It is well known fact that no market exists for Green tea leaves which remains on the tea bushes and 
not ready for harvesting (not yet harvested). As long as the green tea leaves exist on the Tea bushes and has not reached 
the harvesting stage, it has no utility and cannot be used in any manner for processing of tea.

   As emphasized in para 8 of Ind AS 41, it would be impossible to ascertain the Fair Value of green tea leaves standing 
on the tea bushes. Similarly it would be impractical to ascertain the cost of such green tea leaves as any cost model for 
computation of cost thereof would be based on estimation and assumption, which cannot be reliably measured.

   In view of the above AYCL does not recognize the Biological Assets (Green tea leaves not harvested and in a growing 
stage, not matured) as on the reporting date in Financial Statements.

 [2.18] Capital Work-in-Progress

   Expenditure incurred on assets under construction is carried at cost under Capital Work-in-Progress. Such costs comprise 
purchase price of assets, including duties and non-refundable taxes and other costs that are directly attributable to bringing 
the asset to the location and conditions necessary for it to be capable of operation in the manner indented by management.

 [2.19] Intangible Assets

   Costs associated with maintaining software programs are recognized as an expense as incurred. Cost of purchased 
software are recorded as intangible assets and amortized from the point at which the asset is available for use. Intangible 
assets are amortized over their best estimated useful life ranging upto three years on straight line method. 

 [2.20] Trade and Other Payables

   These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year 
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid as per payment terms. Trade and other payables are 
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized 
initially at their fair value/transaction value.

 [2.21] Borrowings Costs

   General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a 
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   qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended 
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended 
use or sale. Any difference between the proceeds(net of transactions cost) and the redemption amount is recognized in 
the statement of Profit & Loss.

   Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying 
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

   Borrowing costs are removed from the Balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled 
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the Financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred 
to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash asset transferred on liability assumed is recognized in 
the statement of Profit& Loss Account as other gains/(losses).

   Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

 [2.22] Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

   Provisions for legal claims, discounts, schemes and returns are recognized when the Company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

   Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined 
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect 
to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

   Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the 
present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the liability. The increase 
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

   Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly within the control of the Company, such obligation 
is disclosed as contingent liability.

   Contingent Assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. 
Contingent assets are disclosed in financial statements when in flow of economic benefits is probable on the basis of 
judgement of management.

 [2.23] Employee Benefits

 [2.23.1] Short Term Obligations

   Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months 
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees’ 
service upto the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are 
settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the Balance Sheet.

 [2.23.2] Other Long Term Employee Benefit Obligations

   The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which 
the employees render the related service.The liability or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined 
benefits as leave encashment, pension and gratuity plans is the present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of 
the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated by actuaries using the 
projected unit credit method.  The present value of defined benefit obligations is determined by discounting the same using 
the market yields at the end of the reporting period on Government Bonds, that have terms approximating to the terms of 
the related obligation. 

   Net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of defined benefit obligation and fair value 
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   of plan assets and the same is included in employee benefit expenses in the statement of profit and loss.

   Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the 
period in which they occur, in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of 
changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

   The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the Balance Sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to 
defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected 
to occur.

   Unavailed medical benefits are measured at actual cost during a block of 3 years.

 [2.23.3] Post Employment Obligations

   The Company operates the following post-employment schemes :

   [a] Defined benefit plan which is Gratuity.

   [b] Defined contribution plan which is Provident Fund only. The Organization pay provident fund to   
publicly administered provident fund as per local regulations and apart from the contribution the  Company has no further 
payment obligation and the contribution are recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due.

   [c] One time medical benefits are measured at actual cost.

 [2.24]  Dividends

   Dividends and interim dividends payable to the Company’s shareholders are recognized as change in equity in the period 
in which they are approved by the Company’s shareholders and the Board of Directors respectively.

 [2.25] Earnings per Share

 [2.25.1] Basic Earnings per share

   Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing :

   * The profit/loss attributable to owners of the Company.

   * By the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

 [2.25.2] Diluted Earnings per Share

   Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account :

   * The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential   
equity shares, and

   * The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding as  
suming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

 [2.26] Financial Liabilities

   Financial liabilities of the Company are contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity or 
to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavorable to 
the Company.

   The Company’s financial liabilities include loans and borrowings, trade and other payables.

   [a] Classification, initial recognition and measurement

   Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value minus transactions costs and subsequently measured at amortized 
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the fair value at initial recognition is recognized 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss or in the carrying amount of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion, over 
the period of the borrowings using the effective rate of interest.
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   Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the 
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

   [b]  Subsequent measurement

   After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR (Effective Interest 
Rate) method. Gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss or in the carrying amount of an asset 
if another standard permits such inclusion, when the liabilities are derecognized as well through the EIR amortization 
process.

   Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that ae an 
integral part of the EIR The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

   [c]  Derecognition

   A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. When 
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms 
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the 
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

 [2.27] Fair Value Measurement

   Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. Normally at initial recognition, the transaction price is the best evidence of 
fair value.

   However, when the Company determines that transaction price does not represent the fair value, it uses inter-alia valuation 
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, 
maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

   All financial assets and financial liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorized within the fair value hierarchy. This categorization is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement as a whole :

   * Level 1-Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

   * Level 2-Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value    
 measurement in directly or indirectly observable.

   * Level 3-Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value    
 measurement in unobservable.

   For financial assets and financial liabilities that are recognized at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company determines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at the end of each reporting 
period.

 [2.28] Financial Risk Management

   The entity’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimize effects of the above, various 
arrangements are entered into by the entity. The following table explains the sources of risk and how the entity manages 
the risk in its financial statements. 
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Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Credit Risk  Cash and cash equivalents, trade
 receivables, financial assets measured at
amortized cost

Ageing analysis, Credit analysis Credit limits and letters of credit

Liquidity Risk Borrowings and other liabilities Cash Flow forecasts Credit facilities

Market Risk – foreign exchange  Recognized financial assets and liabilities
not denominated in INR

Cash Flow forecasts Monitoring of currency movement.

Market Risk – interest rate Long Term Borrowings/Liabilities ... Monitoring of interest rate movements

Market Risk – security prices Investment in Securities ... Portfolio Management

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
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[A]    Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, investment carried at amortized cost, deposit with banks and financing institutions 
as well as credit exposure to customer and other parties.

For banks and financial institutions, only high rated banks/institutions are accepted. For other financial assets, the entity assesses 
and manages credit risk based on internal credit evaluation. It monitors party-wise exposure and based on evaluation credit rating is 
allotted for each party. Thereafter a credit limit is assigned to each party depending on the solvency of the said party.

The entity considers the probability of default on ongoing basis and at each reporting period.  

Micro-economic information is incorporated as part of internal rating mode

 In general, it is presumed that credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition if the payments are     
more than 60 days past due.

Reconciliation of provisions for doubtful assets has been provided as under :    

Rs (In Lakhs)

Particulars    Amount

Provision for doubtful debts as on 01.04.2018 4704.03

Charges during 2018-19 238.72

Provision for doubtful debts as on 31.03.2019 4942.75

Charges during 2019-20 323.27

Provision for doubtful debts as on 31.03.2020 5266.02

[B] Liquidity Risk

Prudent risk liquidity management implies maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents and the availability of committed credit facilities 
to meet obligations when due.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the group’s liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flow. The entity has accessed the 
following drawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period :

Rs (In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019

Bank Overdraft  6856.26   3221.79

Letter of Credit    549.60 1141.13

Bank Guarantee     2138.81 809.48
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The following table gives the contractual discounted cash flows falling due within the next 12 (twelve) months.

Maturity of financial liabilities as at 31.03.2020

Maturity of financial liabilities as at 31.03.2020

Rs (In Lakhs)

Contractual maturities Upto 1 year Between 2 to 3 
year

Above 3 year Total

Trade payables 3962.04 275.73 853.73 5,091.50

Other financial liabilities 3563.30 116.22 2081.48 5761.00

 

 Maturity of financial liabilities as at 31.03.2019

Rs (In Lakhs)

Contractual maturities
Upto 1 
year

Below 2 
& 3 year

Above 3 
year

Total

Trade payables 5671.50 5671.50

Other financial liabilities 5043.56 5043.56

[C] Market Risk 

Particulars
As at 31st March, 

2020
As at 31st March, 2019

Financial Assets

Trade Receivable(in foreign currency),if any - $ 79240

Financial Liabilities    

Trade Payables(in foreign currency),if any - -

 

[2.29] Capital Management

  [A] Risk Management

   The entity’s objectives when managing capital are to:

   [a] Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern.

   [b] Maintain an optimal capital structure so as to reduce the cost of capital.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31ST MARCH, 2020 [AS PER IND AS]

  [B] Dividends

   [1] Dividends recognized for the year end review:        Rs (In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 31.03.2020 Year ended 31.03.2019

Final Dividend - Nil

Interim Dividend Nil Nil

[2] Dividends not recognized at the end of the reporting period in line with Ind AS.

[2.30]  Assets pledged as Security

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for borrowings are:

Assets Pledged as Security Rs (In Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 31st March, 

2020
As at 31st March, 2019

Financial Assets 0.00 0.00

Trade receivables 5131.42 6612.24

Non-financial Assets 0.00 0.00

Inventories 4798.42 5339.03
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Note No.  As at March 31, 2020  As at March 31, 2019 

Non-current assets

(a)  Property, Plant and Equipment 3 9432.83  8,729.50 

(b) Capital work-in-progress 3 7739.27  5,943.49 

(c)  Intangible Assets 3 7.44  8.22 

(d) Non Current Assets held for Sale or

as held for distribution to owners 4 83.14  212.39 

(e)  Financial Assets 

(i)   Investment 5 20247.10  17,911.53 

(ii)  Cash and Cash Equivalent 6 16.81  -   

 (iii) Loans 7 0.64  0.69 

(f) Income Tax Assets (net) 8 1270.61  1,166.48 

(g)   Other non-current assets 9 397.06  365.46 

Total Non - Current Assets 39194.90  34,337.76 

Current assets 

(a) Inventories 10 4827.32  5,367.61 

(b) Financial Assets 

(i)   Investment 11 0.35  0.35 

(ii)  Trade Receivables 12 5112.08  6,706.37 

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 13 6407.08  8,133.41 

(iv) Loans 14 0.44  0.70 

(v)  Other financial assets 15 2048.78  2,580.16 

(c) Other current assets 16 2640.74  1,953.89 

Total Current Assets 21036.79  24,742.48 

Total Assets 60231.69  59,080.25 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity 

(a) Equity Share Capital 17 9779.02  9,779.02 

(b) Other Equity 18 24507.77  25,335.08 

Total equity  34,286.79  35,114.10 

LIABILITIES 

Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 19 0.00  0.68 

(ii)Other financial liabilities 20 28.80  28.80 

(b) Provisions 21 1828.46  2,889.54 

(c) Other non-current liabilities 22 464.84  398.73 

(d) Deferred Tax Liability 1900.46  1,859.52 

Total non-current liabilities  4,222.56  5,177.27 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2020
In Rs. Lakhs
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Current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i)   Borrowings 23 8053.91  5,279.77 

(ii)  Trade and other payables 24 5373.49  5,984.65 

(iii) Other financial liabilities 25 5821.17  5,310.47 

(b) Other current liabilities 26 1284.25  1,122.23 

(c) Provisions 27 1189.53  1,091.74 

Total Current Liabilities  21,722.35  18,788.85 

Total liabilities  25,944.90  23,966.12 

Total Equity & Liabilities  60,231.69  59,080.22 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2020
In Rs. Lakhs

For Andrew Yule & Company Limited

SUCHARITA DAS 
Company Secretary

PARTHA DASGUPTA
Director (Finance)
DIN : 07059472

DEBASIS JANA
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 07046349

For S.K Basu & Co.
Chattered Accountant
F.No.: 301026E/Din No.07046349
Rudra Neil Mallick
Partner (M.No.:053983)

Date-  15.07.2020
Place- Kolkata
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Particulars
Year ended

Note No. 31st March 2020  31st March 2019

I     Revenue from operations  28 29,913.63  31,151.37 

II   Other Income  29 3,082.59  4,118.71 

III   Total Income (I + II)  32,996.23  35,270.09 

IV   EXPENSES

       (a)   Cost of Materials consumed  30 8,800.52  9,446.94 

       (b)  Changes in Changes in inventories of Finished Goods,             
             Work In Progress 

 31  (20.18)  184.69 

       (c)   Employee benefit expense  32 17,648.44  16,478.39 

       (d)   Excise Duty

        (e)  Depreciation and amortisation expense  33 657.56  694.26 

         (f)   Finance costs  34 845.19  629.24 

        (g)  Other expenses  35 7,190.81  6,939.89 

        Total Expenses (IV)  35,122.33  34,373.42 

V      Profit before tax (III - IV)  (2,126.11)  896.67 

         Profit/Loss from Discontinued Operation  (148.20)  (156.72)

         Consolidated  Profit/Loss  (2,274.31)  739.95 

VI    Tax Expense

         (1)    Current tax  -    -   

         (2)   Deferred tax (From Continued Operation)  (73.37)  180.93 

         (3)   Deferred tax (From Discontinued Operation)  (32.44)  (2.18)

        Total Tax Expense  (105.81)  178.75 

VII    Profit for the period (V - VI)  (2,168.50)  561.20 

VIII    Other Comprehensive Income

          (1)   Remeasurement of Investments  (476.59)  (8.37)

          (2)   Adjustment of actuarial gains/ losses  1,107.68  (866.73)

          Less:

          : Deferred Tax  146.75  (144.33)

IX    Total Other Comprehensive Income for the period  484.34  (730.77)

X     Total Comprehensive Income for the period   (VII + IX)  (1,684.16)  (169.57)

XI     Earnings per equity share (Face value Rs. 2 each):

          (1)   Basic  (0.44)  0.11 

          (2)   Diluted  (0.44)  0.11 

 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2020 In Rs. Lakhs

For Andrew Yule & Company Limited

SUCHARITA DAS 
Company Secretary

PARTHA DASGUPTA
Director (Finance)
DIN : 07059472

DEBASIS JANA
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 07046349

For S.K Basu & Co.
Chattered Accountant
F.No.: 301026E/Din No.07046349
Rudra Neil Mallick
Partner (M.No.:053983)

Date-  15.07.2020
Place- Kolkata
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
In Rs. Lakhs

 Year ended 31st March, 2020  Year ended 31st March,2019 

(A)CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Net Profit before Tax and extraordinary items  (2,126.11)  896.68 

Adjustments for :

Depreciation/Impairment of Assets  657.56  694.26 

Interest expense  744.35  629.25 

(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets  -   

(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Investments  (409.50)  (18.48)

Gain on Acquisition of Land by Government  (551.34)

Interest Income  (389.28)  (432.86)

Dividend Income  (1,700.71)  (2,390.86)

Provision no longer Required Written back  (323.83)

Liabilities no longer required written back  (523.94)

Net Gain on Foreign Currency Translation  (2.88)  (1.43)

Gain on Remeasurement of Long Term Trade Receivables  (1.99)

Gain on Remeasurement of Investments  (89.02)  (38.63)

Excess provision for YASF written back  (25.26)  (20.63)

Dimunition in the value of non trade investments  42.97  19.22 

Provision for Doubtful Debts  320.19  238.43 

Provision for Doubtful Loans, Advances and Deposits  16.22  120.18 

Provision for Stock/Stores Obsolence  21.92  36.18 

Provision for TDS Recoverable  1.02 

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through P&L  (476.59)

Acturial Gains and Losses  960.93 

Cash Generated from discontinued Operations  (148.20)  (131.11)

Other Expenses  962.25 

 485.97  (2,697.08)

Operating profit before changes in amount of Current Liabilities and 
Current Assets

 (1,640.14)  (1,800.40)

Adjustment for

Trade and other receivables  1,328.35  1,094.16 

Inventories  540.29  (264.15)

Trade and other payables  (1,705.68)  (651.35)

Other Assets  41.33 

 204.29  178.66 

Cash Generated from Operations  (1,435.85)  (1,621.74)

Tax paid  -   

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A)  (1,435.85)  (1,621.74)

(B)CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

Purchase of Fixed Assets  (3,026.64)  (2,923.99)

Sale of Fixed Assets  1.84 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
In Rs. Lakhs

Purchase of Investments  (2,335.57)  -    -   

Sale Proceeds of Investments  458.43  24.25 

Dividend Received  1,700.71  2,390.86 

Increase in Loans and Advances  -   

Interest Received  389.28  432.86 

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)  (2,813.79)  (74.19)

[C]  CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

Interest Paid  (744.35)  (629.25)

Short Term Borrowings (Repaid)/Taken  3,284.47  2,473.88 

Long Term Borrowings (Repaid)/Taken  (91.68)

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES [C]  2,540.12  1,752.95 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents [A+B+C]  (1,709.52)  57.02 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Opening Balance)  8,133.41  8,076.39 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Closing Balance)  6,423.89  8,133.41 

[1]  The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under 
Indirect

Method as set out in the Indian  Accounting Standard-7 on Cash Flow

Statement notified by the Companies (Accounting Standard) 
Rules,2006

[2]  Cash and Cash Equivalents include :  As at 31st March, 
2020 

 As at 31st 
March, 2019 

Balance with Banks (Refer Note below)  758.91  1,683.37 

Cheques in Hand  51.00  -   

Cash in Hand  23.18  20.88 

Postage and Stamps in hand  -   

Remittance in Transit  -   

Deposit with Bank maturing within 3 months

Margin Money with Bank maturing within 3 months

Deposit with Bank maturing after 3 months  1,135.11 

Deposit Acount Margin  5,590.80  5,294.04 

 6,423.89  8,133.41 

[a]  includes Rs. 16.81 lakhs attached by Provident Fund Authority
[b]  Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary

For Andrew Yule & Company Limited

SUCHARITA DAS 
Company Secretary

PARTHA DASGUPTA
Director (Finance)
DIN : 07059472

DEBASIS JANA
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 07046349

For S.K Basu & Co.
Chattered Accountant
F.No.: 301026E/Din No.07046349
Rudra Neil Mallick
Partner (M.No.:053983)

Date-  15.07.2020
Place- Kolkata
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Particulars  Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive Income (net of Tax) Total

Capital 
Reserve

Securities 
Premium 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

 Equity 
Instruments 

through other 
comprehensive 

income 

 Other items of Other 
Comprehensive Income 

Balance at 1 April 2019 406.36 2741.75 22868.51 366.37  (1,047.90) 25335.09

Additions during the year

Adjustment 856.44

Profit for the year  (2,168.50)  (476.59) 960.93  

(1,684.16)

0.00

Other comprehensive income (net 

of Taxes)

0.00

Total comprehensive income for 

the year

0.00 0 0 0.00

Balance at 31 March 2020 406.36 2741.75 21556.35  (110.22)  (86.97) 24507.77

STATEMENT OF CHAGES IN EQUITY
In Rs. Lakhs

For Andrew Yule & Company Limited

SUCHARITA DAS 
Company Secretary

PARTHA DASGUPTA
Director (Finance)
DIN : 07059472

DEBASIS JANA
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 07046349

For S.K Basu & Co.
Chattered Accountant
F.No.: 301026E/Din No.07046349
Rudra Neil Mallick
Partner (M.No.:053983)

Date-  15.07.2020
Place- Kolkata
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NOTES TO  CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
In Rs. Lakhs

    Particulars Land

 Bearer 
Plants 
(refer 

note 2) 

 Lease-
hold 
Land
 Indas 

116 

 Build-
ings 

 Roads 
and 

Culverts 

 Plant
and 

Mach-

inery 

 Drawings, 
Designs 

and 

Tracings 

 Electri-
cal 

Installa-
tions 

 Water 
Installa-

tion 

 Furni-
ture 
and 

Fixtures 

 Office 
Equip-

ment 

 Vehic-
les 

 Fen-

cing 

 Com-
pu

ters 
Total 

 Capital 
work-

in-
progress 

 (refer
note 3)

 Intangible 
Assets 

Gross carry- 
ing amount

175.39 2,772.61  -    4,945.88  95.96  6,831.57  74.99 1,233.07 953.85 225.43 165.11 1,074.43 283.59 305.31 19,137.18  5,902.66  106.86 

Deemed 
cost as at
1 April 2019

 175.39 2,772.61  -    4,945.88  95.96  6,831.57  74.99  1,233.07  961.18 225.43 165.11 1,076.39 283.59 305.31 19,146.47  5,902.66  106.86 

Additions
 -   1,246.43  6.29  15.32  -    56.92  -    1.69  (4.03)  3.96  4.88  (1.25)  -    3.81  1,334.03  3,139.66  0.78 

Disposals/
Adjustment

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Transfers
 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    1,301.78  -   

Closing gross 
carrying 
amount as 
on 31.03.
2020

 175.39 4,019.04  6.29  4,961.21  95.96  6,888.49  74.99  1,234.76  957.16  229.39 169.99 1,075.13 283.59 309.12 20,480.51  7,740.54  107.64 

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Accumulated 
depreciation
as at 
1 April 2019

 -    235.21  -    2,384.64  74.74  4,472.16  40.90  841.39  542.83  191.21 133.66  819.80  264.12  271.27 10,272.01  -    99.26 

Impairment 
as at 
1 April 2019  -    -    -    5.78  -    62.97  34.09  -    -    0.01  -    -    -    -    102.85  1.25  -   

Disposals  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Opening 
accumulated 
depreciation 
after 
impairment 

 -    235.21  -    2,390.42  74.74  4,535.13  74.99  841.39  543.48  191.21 133.76  819.15 264.12 271.27 10,374.86  1.25  99.26 

Addition  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Deletion  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Adjustment  -    16.18  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    16.18  -    -   

Note : 3



ANDREW YULE & COMPANY LIMITED

166

Revised 
opening 
accumulated 
depreciation
 01-04-2019

 -    251.39  -    2,390.42  74.74  4,535.13 74.99  841.39  542.83  191.20 133.76  819.15 263.10 271.27 10,391.04  1.25  99.26 

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Opening 
accumulated 
depreciation

 -    251.39  -    2,390.42  74.74  4,535.13  74.99  841.39  543.49  191.20  133.66  819.15 264.12  271.27 10,391.03  1.25  99.26 

Depreciation 
charge during 
the year

 -    79.54  1.24  128.58  2.88  292.20  -    34.11  35.43  3.91  8.66  55.59  1.56  12.45  656.18  -    1.41 

Disposals/
Adjustment

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (0.39)  (0.39)  -    0.39 

Closing 
accumulated 
depreciation

 -    330.93  1.24  2,519.00  77.62  4,827.33  74.99  875.50  578.91  195.11 142.42  874.74 265.68 283.32  11,046.83  1.25  101.06 

Net carrying 
amount as at 
31st MARCH. 
2020

 175.39 3,688.11  5.06  2,442.20  18.34  2,061.17  0.00  359.26  378.90  34.18  27.67  199.74  17.91  25.80  9,433.69  7,739.27  6.57 

Net carrying 
amount as at 
31st MARCH. 
2019

 175.39 2,537.40  -    2,555.47  21.22  2,263.62  -    391.67  411.03  34.12  31.46  254.63  19.47  34.04  8,729.50  5,943.49  7.60 

NOTES TO  CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
In Rs. Lakhs

    Particulars Land

 Bearer 
Plants 
(refer 

note 2) 

 Lease-
hold 
Land
 Indas 

116 

 Build-
ings 

 Roads 
and 

Culverts 

 Plant
and 

Mach-

inery 

 Drawings, 
Designs 

and 

Tracings 

 Electri-
cal 

Installa-
tions 

 Water 
Installa-

tion 

 Furni-
ture 
and 

Fixtures 

 Office 
Equip-

ment 

 Vehic-
les 

 Fen-

cing 

 Com-
pu

ters 
Total 

 Capital 
work-

in-
progress 

 (refer
note 3)

 Intangible 
Assets 
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Note 4 Property, Plant & Equipment held for sale or as held for distribution to owners.
 

Land 

(including 

Leasehold 

Land) 

 (refer 

note 1)

Buildings Plant and 

Machinery

Electrical 

Installations

Furniture 

and 

Fixtures

Office 

Equipment

Vehicles Com-

puters

Total Capital 

work-in-

progress 

 (refer 

note 3)

Intangible 

Assets

Closing 

gross 

carrying 

amount 

31.03.2019

147.99 5.14 457.53 5.63 5.41 1.52 6.19 5.64 635.05 0.00 2.27

Additions  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Disposals / 

Adjustment 
 (147.99)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   (147.99)  -    -   

Closing 

gross 

carrying 

amount 

31.03.2020

0.00 5.14 457.53 5.63 5.41 1.52 6.19 5.64 487.06 0.00 2.27

Closing 

accumulated 

depreciation 

31-03-2019

12.73 1.21 386.93 3.97 5.27 1.40 5.92 5.23 422.66 0.00 1.64

Depreciation 

for the year
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Disposals / 

Adjustment 
 (12.73)  (0.03)  (5.19)  (0.03)  (0.01)  -    (0.06)  (0.02)  (18.07)  -    (0.04)

Closing 

accumulated 

depreciation 

31-03-2020

0.00 1.18 381.74 3.94 5.26 1.40 5.86 5.21 404.59 0.00 1.60

Net carrying 

amount as 

at 31 March 

2019

135.26 3.93 70.60 1.66 0.14 0.12 0.27 0.41 212.39 0.00 0.63

Net carrying 

amount as 

at 31 March 

2020

0.00 3.96 75.79 1.69 0.15 0.12 0.33 0.43 82.47 0.00 0.67

Note 1:  Leasehold Land is under finance lease and the fair value is eqivalent to the initial amount paid and present value of future lease rentals.

As per the management no lease rental is payable. Hence fair value is equivalent to the initial amount paid. 

Note 2 : Investment Property - It is assumed that there is no investment property.

NOTES TO  CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
In Rs. Lakhs
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 Particulars  No. of Shares 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

 a)  Investment in Group Companies 

 Equity Investment in Subsidiaries (Un-Quoted) 

      Hooghly Printing Co. Ltd  10,27,128  -   

      Yule Engineering Ltd.- Ordinary Share  50,000  -   

      Yule Electricals Ltd.- Ordinary Share  50,000  -   

 Equity Shares in Associate Company 

     Quoted 

      Tide Water Oil Co. (India) Ltd.  9,14,223  164.56 164.56

      Add: GR Share of Profit  17,687.84 16830.91

 17,852.40 16995.47

       Yule Financing & Leasing Co. Ltd 
       (fully impaired)

 3,00,000  27.88 27.88

     Unquoted 

      The Bengal Coal Co. Ltd 
      (fully impaired)

 10,305  0.52 0.52

      Katras Jherriah Coal Co. Ltd  60,260  6.95 6.95

       Add: GR Share of Profit  (6.95)  (6.95)

      The New Beerbhoom Coal Co. Ltd  1,05,335  12.27 12.27

       Add: GR Share of Profit  (12.27)  (12.27)

 Preference Shares (Unquoted) 

      6% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares--WEBFIL Ltd.  20,44,000  179.32 165.51

 Bonds (Unquoted) 

      WEBFIL Ltd Zero Rated Unsecured Redeemable Bond  305  228.80 218.59

 b) Investments carried at Fair value through OCI 

 Equity Investment (Quoted) 

      WEBFIL(NAV as per latest available)  1,45,000  5.23 5.23

      India Power Corporation Ltd  0.00 3.90

      Fort Gloster Industries Ltd 
       (fully impaired) 

 1,040 

       Gloster Ltd  665  7.24 9.24

      Exide Industries Ltd. 465.10

      The Gillapukri Tea and Industries Ltd. 
       (fully impaired)

 26  0.00 

 Equity Investment (Un-Quoted) 

     The Statesman Ltd 
       (fully impaired) 

 9,966  4.70 4.70

      ABC Tea Workers Welfare Services 
       (fully impaired) 

       Woodlands Multispeciality Hospital Ltd 
       (fully impaired) 

 23,200 

      India paer Pulp 

 Units (Quoted) 

      Unit Trust of India  3,44,166  1,993.32 67.71

       Less Provision  (52.31)  (52.31)

 TOTAL  20,247.10  17,911.54 

NOTES TO  CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
In Rs. Lakhs

Note 5 Investment    
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Note 6 Cash and Cash Equivalent 

Note 8 Income Tax Assets (net)

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Current Taxes

 Advance Income Tax   1,270.61 1166.48

 Includes MAT Credit Entitlement Rs 43.38 

 Lakh & Tax Provision of Rs 43.38 lakhs  ) 

Total  1,270.61  1,166.48 

Note 9 Other non-current assets 

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

 Plan Assets for Super Annuation Fund  397.06 365.46

 Total  397.06  365.46 

NOTES TO  CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
In Rs. Lakhs

 Note 7 Loans  

 Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

 Unsecured, considered good 

 Security Deposits  -   

 Considered Good  0.64  0.69 

Considered Doubtful  0.81  0.81 

 1.45  1.50 

Less: Provision for Doubtful Advances  (0.81)  (0.81)

 0.64  0.69 

 Advance A/C Garden  -    -   

 TOTAL  0.64  0.69 

 Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

 Current Account Balance with Bank Under Lien  16.81  -   

 TOTAL  16.81  -   
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Note 10  Inventories (At lower of cost or Net Realisable value) 

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Raw Material  1,296.26 1362.84

Work in progress  1,447.13 1157.87

Finished Goods  496.85 822.75

Stores and Spares  1,235.75 1708.68

Loose Tools  -   0

Food Stuff  16.24 19.67

Scrap  8.89 5.71

Semi- Finished Goods  263.63 265.73

Material In Transit  62.58 24.35

Total Inventories  4,827.32  5,367.60 

Note:In case of tea inventory , only the inventory of fully processed tea as on 31.03.20 has been considered under finished goods.

 Note 11 Current Investment 

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

 Investments carried at Fair value through OCI 

 In National Savings Certificates  0.35 0.35

 Total  0.35  0.35 

Note 12 Trade receivables

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Trade receivables  10,439.77 11644.29

Other Debt  3.24 36.49

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts  5,330.93 4974.41

Total receiavables  5,108.84 6706.37

Break up of security details:

Trade receivables 

(a)     Secured, considered good

(b)     Unsecured, considered good  5,112.08 6706.37

(c)      Doubtful  5,330.93 4974.41

 -   

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts  5,330.93 4974.41

Total  5,112.08  6,706.37 

NOTES TO  CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
In Rs. Lakhs
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Note 13 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

(a) Balances with banks

 (1) Unrestricted Balance with banks

  (i) In Current Account  742.11 1683.37

  (ii) In Deposit Accountless than3 MONTHS  -   0

  (ii) In Deposit Accountmore than 3 months  -   1135.11

In Deposit Account-Margin  5,590.80 5294.04

(b) Cheques, drafts on hand  51.00 

(c) Postage and Stamps in hand  0.00 

(d) Remittance in Transit  -   

(e ) Cash in hand  23.18 20.88

Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet  6,407.08  8,133.41 

 Note 14 Loans 

 Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 
2019

 Loans and advances 

   Secured Considered good  -   

 Unsecured, considered Good 

 Loans and advances to related parties 

      Unsecured Considered good  0.44 0.70

       Doubtful  120.41 568.21

 less provision  120.41 568.21

 TOTAL  0.44  0.70 
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 Note 15 Other financial assets 

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

 Balance with Government Authorities  1,498.64 1955.43

 Advnace receivable from United India Insurance Co.Ltd  0.05 0.05

 Deposits 

      Considered Good  120.89 321.13

      Considered Doubtful  -   15.74

 120.89 336.87

 Less: Provision for doubtful deposits  -   15.74

 Net  120.89 321.13

 Other Advances recoverable in cash  -   

      Considered Good  -   

      Considered Doubtful  -   

 LOAN  -   

 Less: Provision for doubtful advance  -   

 Others Receivable from Related Parties  9.10 

 Deposits with NABARD  -   74.98

 EMD/SD  -   

 Interest Accrued  -   

     On Fixed Deposit  145.38 219.41

 Interest accrued on Nabard Deposit  -   

 -   

 Interest accrued on Loans and Advances  -   

 Other Receivables  264.02 9.16

 Other Current Asset  16.13 

 Less: Provision for Doubtful of Recovery  (5.43)

TOTAL  2,048.78  2,580.16 

 Note 16 Other current assets 

 Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

 Advance to Staff  52.36 6.98

 Others Advances-Unsecured considered good  1,178.45 

 Other Advances recoverable in cash or kind 

      Considered Good  1,409.93 1946.92

      Considered Doubtful  1,536.68 1712.28

 2,946.61 3659.20

 Less: Provision for doubtful deposits  1,536.68 1712.28

 1,409.93 1946.92

TOTAL  2,640.74 1953.90
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 Note17:  Equity Share Capital 

31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Authorised :

Equity Shares

55,00,00,000 of Rs. 2/- each  11,000.00  11,000.00 

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up :

Equity Shares

48,89,50,978 of Rs. 2/- each  9,779.02  9,779.02 

Total  9,779.02  9,779.02 

Note 18 Other equity

31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Capital Reserve

(a) Capital Reserve  406.36  406.36 

(b) Others Reserve  -   

Bond Redemption Reserve

(a) Bond redemption reserve

Central/State subsidy for Capital Assets

Security Premium Reserve  2,741.75  2,741.75 

Retained Earnings

Op  Bal  22,868.51  22,531.89 

Add profit  (2,168.10)  561.20 

ADD GR SHARE OF PROFIT  856.93  -   

Adjustment against P/L  (0.49)  224.58 

 21,556.85  22,868.51 

Other Comprehensive Income

Op  Bal  (681.53)  49.24 

ADD PROFIT  484.34  (730.77)

Other Comprehensive Income  (197.19)  (681.53)

Total  24,507.77  25,335.09 
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Note 21 Provisions 

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

For Employee Benefits

    Gratuity  578.78  1,750.50 

    Leave  1,111.30  1,052.10 

Medical  -   

For Superannuationand pension  3.76  3.76 

 For Contingencies  126.47  75.20 

 For Sales Tax (C-Form)  5.25  5.25 

For Others  2.90  2.73 

 Total  1,828.46  2,889.54 

Note 22 Other Non Current Liabilities

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Non-Current

Deferred revenue arising from Tea Board subsidy(Replantation Subsidy)  415.04  336.31 

Govt Subsidy for Swacha Mission  -    5.00 

Deferred Revenue arising from Tea Board Subsidy for capital  
assets

 -   

Others  49.80  57.43 

Total  464.84  398.74 

Note 19 Borrowings

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

 Secured - at amortised cost 

 Term Loans  -   

 from Bank of Baroda  -   

WB Sales Tax Loan  -   

Car Loan from Allahabad Bank  -   0.68

Total non-current borrowings  -    0.68 

Note 20 Other financial liabilities

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Non-Current

Security Deposits from related parties 28.80 28.80

Total  28.80  28.80 
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Note 23 Borrowings

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Secured

    From Scheduled Banks

        Union Bank  682.53  445.59 

        United Bank of India  3,089.76  1,470.53 

        Allahabad Bank  3,533.71  2,565.80 

        Bank of Baroda  745.54  795.47 

Others  2.37 2.37

 Total Borrowings  8,053.91  5,279.76 

Note 24 Trade & Other Payables  

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

For Goods and Services

       To Related Parties 

         To Others  5,373.49  5,984.65 

 Total  5,373.49  5,984.65 

Note 25 Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars Tea 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Current Maturity ofLong Term Debt  0.69 

Secured Term Loan

    From Bank of Baroda

 -   

Car Loan from Allahabad Bank  0.67 1.35

 -   

Interest accrued and  due on borrowings  8.41 

    From Scheduled Banks

    From Others 8.41

Deposit at Gardens  -   

Earnest Money/Security Deposit  199.17 157.1

Payable to Statutory Authorities  1,056.84 1184.3

Others  4,555.39 3959.31

Total  5,821.17  5,310.47 
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Note 26 Other Current Liabilities 

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Advance Received from Customers  36.96 

Others  1,247.28 1122.23

Total  1,284.25  1,122.23 

Note 27 - Short-term Provisions 

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

For Stock Obsolescence, contingencies and food stuff  522.09  506.20 

For Income Tax  -   

For Arrear Salary  182.52 

For Gratuity  -    48.04 

For Leave Encashment  113.64  194.65 

 For Warranty  48.18  48.18 

 For Medical  276.51  292.07 

 For Others  2.59  2.59 

 For TDS Recoverable  1.02 

 For Recoverable PF  42.97  -   

 Total  1,189.53  1,091.73 
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Particulars 31st March 2020  31st March 2019 

Sale of products  29,335.02  29,913.49 

Less: Trade and Other Discount  -    -   

Less: GST on Sales  -    -   

Sale of products  29,335.02  29,913.49 

Sale of Services  372.96  585.35 

Other Operational Income  -   

           -Other Export Incentives and sale thereof  -   

           - Tea Board Subsidy  20.88  5.97 

           -Tea Waste Sale  107.54  7.15 

Prov no longer required  6.04  36.04 

Liability  no longer required  34.93  521.79 

Sale of scrap  30.88  30.59 

Royalty  -   

Other Operational Income  5.37  50.99 

Total Revenue from continuing operations  29,913.63  31,151.37 

Note-Tea Board Subsidy includes subsidy received for Production of Orthodox Tea amounting to Rs 5.61 Lakh and the baalnce represent replatation subsidy.

Note 29 -  Other Income

Particulars 31st March 2020  31st March 2019 

Interest Income(Gross)  389.28  400.75 

Gain on Remeasurement of Long Term Trade Receivables  -    1.99 

Gain on Remeasurement of Investments  89.02  38.63 

Rent(Gross)  342.45  351.01 

Dividend Income  -   

          -From Associate Company  1,697.27  2,376.92 

          -From others  3.44  13.94 

Profit on sale of Investments  409.50  18.48 

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets  -    -   

Liabilityno longer required written back  -   

Royalty  -   

Sale of Scrap  0.01  -   

Liabilities no longer required written back  -    287.79 

Prov no longer required  -   

Net Gain on Foreign Currency Transaction  2.88  1.43 

Gain on Acquisition of Land by Government  -    551.34 

Fees received by Directors and Employees  -    -   

Profit on Exchange  -    -   

Excess provision of YASF written back  25.26  20.63 

Deffered income on capital subsidy  -   

MISC RECEIPTS COMMON EXP  -   

Others  123.49  55.80 

Total  3,082.59  4,118.71 
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Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Materials, Components, Packing Materials and Loose Tools  8,800.52 9446.94

Total  8,800.52  9,446.94 

Note 31 - Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-in-Progress

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

INVENTORY AT CLOSE

FINISHED GOODS  496.85 822.75

WIP  1,769.69 1423.6

TOTAL  2,266.54  2,246.35 

INVENTORY AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

FINISHED GOODS  822.75 761.57

WIP  1,423.60 1669.47

TOTAL  2,246.36 2431.04

Change in Inventories  (20.18)  184.69 

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Salaries and Wages  14,470.26  13,342.98 

Contributions to  Provident and Other Funds  1,855.82  1,921.60 

Staff Welfare Expenses  1,349.41  1,245.00 

Less: Incurred on Capital Jobs, Repair Jobs etc.  27.05  31.19 

Total  17,648.44  16,478.39 

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Depreciation on Tangible Assets  657.56  686.83 

Amortisation of Intangible Assets  -    7.43 

Total  657.56  694.26 

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Interest Expense

       -To Banks  647.52  438.91 

       -To Government Departments  2.95  -   

       -To Bondholders  -   

       -To Others  93.88  84.26 

Other Borrowing Costs  100.84  106.07 

Total  845.19  629.24 

NOTES TO  CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
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Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Consumption of Stores and Spare parts

 Power and Fuel  2,729.04  2,573.62 

Tea Cultivation and Manufacturing Expenses  531.01  289.50 

Rent(Net)  89.43  101.43 

 Repairs and Maintenance:  -   

        - Buildings  179.65  221.94 

        - Plant and Machinery  337.29  322.18 

        - Others  77.15  20.79 

Travelling Expenses and Upkeep of Vehicles  468.84  492.71 

Research and Development Expenses  75.01  52.94 

Insurance  75.36  62.83 

Rates and Taxes  7.93  22.96 

Excise Duty  -    -   

Cess on Tea  -    -   

Green Leaf Cess  -    101.55 

Telephone & Postage  1.98  -   

Broker's Commission  200.21  199.68 

Selling Expenses:  -   

           - Selling Agent's Commission  -    0.50 

           -Delivery and Freight  126.82  265.09 

           -Others  572.08  546.22 

Liquidated Damages and Penalty etc.  110.12  108.18 

Rectification/Replacement  -    73.99 

Bad Debt Written off  -   

Excess Plan Assets for Superannuation Fund written off  -   

Provision for:  -   

        -Doubtful Debts  320.19  238.72 

        -Doubtful Loans, Advances and Deposits  16.22  119.89 

        - Recoverable account PF  -   

        - Dimunition in the value of investment  42.97  19.22 

        -Stock/Stores Obsolescence  21.92  36.18 

        - TDS Recoverable  1.02 

Auditor's Remuneration:  -   

        -As Auditor  19.37  4.18 

        -For Tax Audit  -    -   

        -For Other Services  2.97  4.99 

        -For Reimbursement Expenses  1.28  0.03 

        -For Taxation matter  -    0.05 

GD- Common expenses  -   

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses  18.05  9.29 

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets  -    1.79 

Net Loss on Foreign Currency Transaction  0.31  3.43 

Miscellaneous Expenses  1,164.58  1,046.01 

Total  7,190.81  6,939.89 
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Note 36 Earning Per Share                                                                                                                                                         Rs (In Lakhs)

Particulars For the year 
ending 31.03.2020 For the year ending 31.03.2019

Earning per Equity share

(A) Basic

(i) Number of Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 488950978 488950978

(ii) Number of Equity shares at the end of the year 488950978 488950978

(iii) Weighted average number of shares 488950978 488950978

(iv) Face value of each equity share 2.00 2.00

(v) Profit after tax available for equity shareholders (2168.50) 561.20

(vi) Basic earning per equity share (0.44) 0.11

(B) Diluted

(i) Dilutive potential equity share Nil Nil

(ii) Diluted Earnings per Equity share (Rs) (0.44) 0.11

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
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Note 37 Employee Benefits
[37.1] 
  [a]  Leave Obligation:-The Company provides for encashment  of leave or leave with pay subject to certain rules. The employees 

are entitled to accumulate leaves subject to certain limits for future encashment. The liability is provided on the basis of number 
of days of accumulated leave at each Balance sheet on actuarial valuation. The scheme is unfunded. The amount of provision 
for leave encashment as on 31st March, 2020 is Rs.1111.30 Lakhs (Rs 1052.10 Lakhs) is presented as current and non-current 
as per actuarial valuation basis. 

  [b]  Medical Benefits:The Medical benefits for the employees for domiciliary treatment is for a block of three years and shall lapse 
yearly thereafter if the concerned employee does not avail it. The liability towards such unavailed quantum of Medical benefits 
has been determined on actual basis instead of actuarial valuation method since the eligible amount will remain fixed during 
the next block. The total amount of liability as on 31st March, 2020 is Rs  276.51 Lakhs(Rs 292.07 Lakhs) has been taken into 
accounts. 

[37.2]    Post employment obligation- Defined benefits plans:
 [a]  Gratuity:- The Company has an obligation towards Gratuity payable to eligible employees as per the Payment of Gratuity 

Act,1972. The plan is being managed by a separate trust created for the purpose and obligation of the Company is to make 
contribution to the trust based on actuarial valuation. The scheme is funded.  

 [b]  Post retirement Medical Scheme:- Under the scheme employee gets one time benefits subject to certain limit of amount. The 
liability for this is determined on actual cost. The scheme is unfunded.

 [c]  Pension fund:- The Company has a defined benefit pension fund for certain eligible employees. The scheme is managed by 
a separate trust created for the purpose.

Rs(In Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019

Gratuity Leave 
Encashment Superannuation Gratuity Leave 

Encashment Superannuation 

(a) Reconciliation of Opening and Closing balances of Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation
Present Value of 
obligations at the 
beginning of the year 

7581.37 1238.74 189.11 6575.66 1301.18 192.15 

Current service cost 366.36 195.81  370.92 221.26 0.00 

Interest expense 560.60 89.77 11.29 465.62 86.83 11.68 

Acturial (gains)/losses arising 
from changes in demographic 
assumptions

(3.77) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Acturial (gains)/losses arising 
from changes in financial 
assumptions

78.49 0.00 (3.95) 147.39 18.26 0.19 

Acturial (gains)/losses arising 
from changes in experience 
assumptions

(1167.80) 0.00 (11.56) 740.08 (105.09) 11.57 

Acturial (Gains)/Loss  (26.58)     

Past service cost 0.00   0.00 0.00 0.00 

Benefits paid (623.72) (272.79) (23.18) (718.30) (283.70) (26.48)

Present Value of 
obligations at the end of 
the year 

6791.54 1224.94 161.71 7581.37 1238.74 189.11 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
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(b) Reconciliation of Opening and Closing balances of the Fair Value of Plan Assets

Fair value of the Plan 
Assets at the beginning of 
the year

5830.88 0.00 554.57 5689.54 0.00 541.55 

Interest Income 420.99 0.00 34.86 415.09 0.00 34.50 

Remeasurement (gains)/
losses

0.00 0.00  0.00 0.00 0.00 

Return on plan assets, 
(excluding amount included in 
net interest Income)

6.57 0.00 (7.47) 21.39 0.00 5.00 

Acturial (gains)/losses arising 
from changes in financial 
assumptions

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Contributions 578.06 272.79 0.00 423.15 283.70 0.00 

Benefits paid (623.72) (272.79) (23.18) (718.29) (283.70) (26.48)

Fair value Plan Assets at 
the end of the year

6212.77 0.00 558.78 5830.88 0.00 554.57 

(c) Reconciliation of the Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the Fair Value of Plan Asset

Present Value of obligations 

at the end of the year 
6791.54 1224.94 161.71 7581.37 1238.74 189.11 

Fair value Plan Assets at the 

end of the year
6212.77 0.00 558.78 5830.88 0.00 554.57 

(Liabilities) recognised in 
the Balance Sheet

(578.77) (1224.94) 397.07 (1750.49) (1238.74) 365.46 

       

(d) Expense recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income 

Remeasurements (gains)/
losses

(1099.64) 0.00 (8.04) 866.08 0.00 6.76 

( e) Expense recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss: 

Current Service Cost 366.36 195.81 0.00 370.92 221.26 0.00 

Past Service Cost 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Net Interest Cost/(Income) 139.61 89.77 (23.57) 50.53 86.83 (22.82)

Acturial (Gain)/Loss  (26.58)   (86.83)  

Total Expenses recognised 505.98 258.99 (23.57) 421.45 308.09 (22.82)

Rs (In Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019

Gratuity Leave 
Encashment Superannuation Gratuity Leave 

Encashment Superannuation 
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(f) The significant actuarial assumptions are as follows

Discount Rate 6.65% 6.65% 6.65% 7.22% 7.22% 6.42%

Expected return on Plan 

Assets
6.65% 6.65% 6.65% 7.22% 7.22% 6.42%

Salary Escalation 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%

Expected Average remaining 

working lives of employees
      

(g)  Sensitivity   
      Analysis

Particulars

Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation 
(DBO) with Discount Rate

Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) with Cost

Change in 
Assumptions

As at 31.03.2020
Change in 

Assumption
As at 

31.03.2020
As at 31.03.2019

Gratuity

Increase by 

0.25%

Increase 

by Rs
(118.69)

Increase 

by 0.25%

Increase 

by Rs
244.67 7867.02

Decrease by 

0.25%

Decrease 

by Rs
142.51 

Decrease 

by 0.25%

Decrease 

by Rs
(206.11) 7313.00

Superannuation

Increase by 

0.25%

Increase 

by Rs
(4.08)

Increase 

by 0.25%

Increase 

by Rs
0.00 189.14

Decrease by 

0.25%

Decrease 

by Rs
4.67 

Decrease 

by 0.25%

Decrease 

by Rs
0.00 189.09

 
Less than 1 

year
Between 
1-2 years

Between 
3-5 years

Total

As on 31.03.2020     

Gratuity 774.48 702.70 2123.60 12957.61

Superannuation 161.72 0.00 0.00 161.72

Total 936.20 702.70 2123.60 13119.33

As on 31.03.2019     

Gratuity 1102.60 754.54 2155.89 7051.48

Superannuation 97.48 103.87 0.00 201.36

Total 1200.09 858.41 2155.89 7252.83
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the period towards Defined contribution plan is as follows:

Rs (In Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019

Contribution to PF 1313.79 1364.34

Contribution to Employees State Insurance Fund 0.28 0.55

[37.4] Since, Hooghly Printing is not operational at present and all the employees have been seconded to Andrew Yule & Company Ltd. in the 

Financial Year 2018-19 and  are absorbed w.e.f 01.04.2019, hence the liability on account of actuarial valuation with respect to theemployees 

seconded from Hooghly Printing has been taken in the accounts of the Company for the Financial Year 2019-20.  

Note 38 Contingent Liabilitiesand commitments

Rs(In Lakhs)

Particulars As on 31.03.2020 As on 31.03.2019

(a) Contingent Liabilities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as Debt 477.71 665.41

Disputed Excise/Custom Duty 513.59 516.26

Disputed Service Tax 23.43 35.89

Disputed Sales Tax/VAT 2143.71 2,182.89

Disputed Income Tax 1934.18 1,934.18

 

(b) Guarantee

Bank Guarantee 4527.58 4,658.22

Other Guarantees given to bank against financial facilities 

availed by subsidiaries 
- 976.00

Unexpired letter of credit 549.30 1,141.43

 

(C') Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed 

on capital account
68.00 36.91

  

[37.3]Post Employment Obligation: -
Defined Contribution plan: - The Company has defined contribution plan viz PF and ESI. The expenses recognized during  
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Note 39 The disclosure under the Micro, Small & Medium Enterprise Development Act,2006 

           Rs(In Lakhs)

Sl.No. Particulars
Amount 

As on 31.03.2020 As on 31.03.2019

1

Outstanding principle amount and interest as on   

i) Principal amount 402.98 483.50

ii) Interest sue thereon   

2 Amount of interest paid alongwith the amounts of payment made 
beyond the appointed day  

3 Amount of interest due and payable (where the principal has already 
been paid but interest has not been paid)   

4 The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 
each Accounting Year   

5

Amount of further interest reamining due and payable even in 
succeeding years, untill such date when the interest dues as above 
are actually paid for the purpose of  disallowance as a deductible 
expenditure  under section 23 of MSMED Act.

 

Note 40 Corporate Social Responsibility

Expenditure related to Corporate Social Responsibility as per Section 135 of Companies Act 2013

Details of CSR spent during the Financial Year 2019-2020

[a] Total amount spent for the Financial Year: Rs 20.18 Lakhs

[b] Amount un spent: - Nil (Approved expenditure:- Rs 10.32 Lakhs & unspent amount of Rs 9.86 Lakhs pertaining to the FY 2018-19) 

[c] Manner in which the amount spent is detailed below:
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                                                                                                      Rs (In Lakhs)

Sl.No. CSR Project/Activities
Sector in which the 
project is covered

Location

Amount

As on 
31.03.2020

As on 31.03.2019

1
Ladies garments &Mordern Design 
Trainning Course

Skill development 
Program

BanarhatDooars  2.44

2
Drinking water distribution to school 
children

Social Service
Perungundi, 

Chennai
 0.68

3
4 Toilet complexes alongwith 
installation of summersible pumps for 
safe drinking water

Social Service DakshinDinajpur  6.17

4

4 nos. Schools: Toilet Complexes (2 
Urinals & 1 WC) alongwith installation 
of submersible pumps for safe drinking 
water)

Social Service DakshinDinajpur 0.49  

5 Contribution to "Clean Ganga Fund" Social Service New Delhi 0.50  

6
Contribution to "Prime Ministers 
National Relief Fund" 

Social Service New Delhi 4.27  

7 Contribution to "Swachh Bharat Kosh" Social Service New Delhi 2.29  

8
Misc.CSR activities in and around our 
functional area / SwachhtaPakhwada

Social Service
Delhi/Kolkata/
Dooars/Assam

2.31  

9
5 Toilet Complexes (2 Urinals+1 WC+1 
Wash Area) 

Social Service Dooars/Assam 6.00  

10
Special Courses with in-depth Training: 
Tailoring / Embroidery / Fabric Printing

Skill development 
Program

Khowang 3.72  

11
Misc.CSR activities in and around our 
functional area 

Social Service Delhi/Kolkata 0.24  

12 PM Cares Fund Social Service New Delhi 0.36  

Total 20.18 9.29
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Note 41 Related Party Disclosure

A. List of Related Parties
Subsidiary Hooghly Printing  Co. Ltd 
 Yule Electrical Ltd.

 Yule Engineering Ltd.

Associates Tide Water Oil Co. (I) Ltd.

 The New Beerbohm Coal Co. Ltd.

 Katrasjherriah Coal Co. Ltd.

Other Related Parties Yule Financing & leasing Co. Ltd.

 The Bengal Coal Co. Ltd.

 Yule Agro Industries Ltd.

Key Managerial Personnel  Mr. Debasis Jana - Chairman & Managing Director 

  Mr. Partha Dasgupta-  Director (Finance)

  Mr. Sanjoy Bhattacharya - Director (Planning)

  Mr. K. Mohan -  Director (Personnel)

  Mrs Sucharita Das  -  Company Secretary 

  Mr. P. P. Munshi -  GM, Elec. Div., Kolkata

  Mr. S. N. Mullick -  GM, Engg. Div.
  Mr. C. Bora -  GM, Tea Div.
  Mr. G. Pugalendhi -   Dy. GM, Elec. Div., Chennai
  Mr. A. P. Roy -  Dy. GM, Corporate F&A
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B. Transactions with related parties  Rs (in Lakhs) 

 
Sl.No. 

 Nature of 
Transaction 

 Year Ended on 31.03.2020  Year Ended on 31.03.2019 

 Subsidiaries  Associates 
 Other 
related 
Parties 

 Holding  Total Sub-
sidiaries Associates 

 Other 
Related 
Parties 

 Holding  Total   

1  Purchase of goods -   27.14 -    27.14 0.92 21.06   21.98 

2  Purchase of services 0.62   0.62     -   

3  Sale of Goods -   241.31   241.31 0.14 1.66  36.74 38.54 

4  Sale of Services -   -   13.26  13.26 18.29 420.18 15.66  454.13 

5  Dividend Income -   1,692.11 -    1,692.11  2,376.92   2,376.92 

6  Interest Expenses -    -    -     3.46  3.46 

7 
 Payment of common 

expenses 
   -      15.50 15.50 

8 
 Rent and hire charges 

received 
-   252.83 -    252.83  264.24 0.82  265.06 

9  Royalty received -   -   -    -       -   

10 
 Advance given during 

the year 
0.80 -   -    0.80     -   

11 

 Repayment of loans 

and advance /Amount 

received 

-   -   -    -    31.44 42.83 74.27 148.54 

12 
 Long Term loans and 

advances 
-   -   -    -   0.79  447.00  447.79 

13 
 Short term loan and 

advances 
5.62 0.60 -    6.22 159.29 0.60 18.05  177.94 

14  Other current assets -   -   -    -     56.00  56.00 

15 
 Other loans and 

advances 
-    -    -   3.68    3.68 

16 

 Other long term 

liabilities (Security 

Deposit) 

   -     28.80  28.80 

17  Corporate Guarantee -   -   -    -   976.00    976.00 

18 
 Amount due from as 

on 31st March 
                  274.38 42.44 43.92 17.71 378.44 164.10 2.09 468.64 17.71 652.54 

19 
 Amount due to as on 

31st March 
-   6.82 61.89 61.89 130.60  18.90 61.89 61.89 142.68 

20  Miscellaneous  0.15 0.83 0.98   0.15 6.80 6.95 
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Note 41.2

Disclosure related to Director’s Fee Rs(In Lakhs)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
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Note 41.1 
 Disclosure related to transactions between the Company and Key 
Managerial Personnel  

Rs (In Lakhs) 

 Key Managerial Personnel  2019-20  2018-19

 [a] Remuneration to Directors 

 Mr. Debasis Jana 29.65 27.50

 Mr. Partha Dasgupta 35.59 23.57

 Mr. Sanjay Bhattacharya 24.54 23.01

 Mr. R.C. Sen - 25.17

 Mr. K.Mohan 33.64 1.62

 Mr. Kaustuv Roy  - 46.51

 [b] Remuneration to Company Secretary 

 Ms Sucharita Das 12.83 11.62

Particulars Year ended 31.03.2020 Year ended 31.03.2019

Testing Fee 35.67 15.51

Subscription to TRA 39.35 37.42

Total 75.02 52.93

Note :  42

The Company has incurred revenue expenditure of Rs 75.02 Lakhs Previous year Rs52.93Lakhs) on account of Research & Development 
expense the break-up of which is as follows:

Independent Directors 2019-2020 2018-19

Dhanpat Ram Agarwal 0.15 1.02

Sipra Goon 0.47 1.10

SudhirJhunjhunwala 0.03 0.35

Anil Kumar Goyal 0.12 -

Anil Kumar Verma 0.12 -

BishwanathGiriraj 0.12 -

Rs (In Lakhs)



ANDREW YULE & COMPANY LIMITED

190

Note 43 Income Tax Expense

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
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Note 43.1

Reconciliation of the tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31st  March 2020 and 31st  
March 2019

Particulars 2019-2020 2018-19

Accounting profit before income tax (2274.31) 739.95

At India's statutory income tax rate of 34.944% 0.00 258.31

At agricultural income tax rate of respective states 0.00 31.32

(Assam 30% & West Bengal 50%)

Effects of:

Deferred Tax movement (105.81) 178.74

Weighted deductions allowable* 0.00 (6.54)

Disallowed expenses* 0.00 3204.48

Exempted dividend* 0.00 (2390.86)

Others 0.00 (1817.94)

Income Tax expense reported in P/L Account (105.81) 178.74

At the effective rate of income tax 0.00 24.18

Income tax expenses reported in the statement of profit and loss (105.81) 178.74

*Due to accounting losses no liability on account of current tax expenses would arise.

Particulars For the year ended 31.03.2020 For the year ended 31.03.2019

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Current Tax

Current Tax on profit for the year

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods

Total Current Tax Expense
Deferred Tax
Decrease/(Increase) in Deferred tax assets  347.66 (948.50)

(Decrease)/Increase in Deferred tax Liabilities  (453.47) 1127.25

Total Deferred Tax (105.81) 178.74

Total Tax expense (105.81) 178.74

Rs (In Lakhs)
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Note 44 Deferred Tax expense

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
Rs (In Lakhs)

2019-20                                                                         2018-19

Particulars
Opening 
Balance

Recognised in 
Profit & Loss

Recognised 
in/

Reclassified 
from OCI

Recoginised 
directly to 

Equity

Closing 
Balance

Opening 
Balance

Recognised 
in Profit & 

Loss

Recognised in/
Reclassified 

from OCI

Recoginised 
directly to 

Equity
Closing Balance

           

Deferred Tax 
Liabilities:

          

           

Depreciation on 
PPE,Intangible 
Assests and 
Investment 
Property

   3,544.62  (162.27)      3,382.35 2573.41 971.21   3544.62

Financial assets at 
Fair Value through 
Profit & Loss

      (51.39) 19.40         (31.99) (64.96) 13.57   (51.39)

Financial assets 
at Fair Value 
through Other 
Comprehensive 
Income

      162.09     (162.85)           (0.76) 163.95  (1.85)  162.09

Investment in Joint 
Ventures

          

Others           

Total Deferred Tax 
Liabilities

   3,655.32     (142.87)    (162.85)                -      3,349.60 2672.40 984.78 (1.85) 0 3655.32

           

Deferred Tax 
Assets:

          

           
Compensated 
Absences and 
Retirement 
Benefits

      245.31               (4.59)    (309.59)        (68.87) 54.8 48.03986 142.47  245.31

Provision for 
Doubtful Debts

                -                      -   0    0

Others    1,550.43             (63.74)   31.28    1,517.96 792.43 757.9985   1550.428

Total Deferred Tax 
Assets

   1,795.74             (68.34)    (309.59)  31.28    1,449.09 847.23 806.0183 142.47 0 1795.735

Net Deferred Tax 

Liabilities
   1,859.54             (74.57)      146.70   (31.32)    1,900.51 1825.10 178.7592 (144.32) 0 1859.54
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Note 44.1

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax 

liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities related to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Note 44.2

During the year ended 31st March 2020, there is no liability of current Income Tax expense on a/c of Central Income Tax Act, 1961 & 

Assam Agricultural Tax, 1939 after adjustment of eligible Tax Allowance & Deductions.

Note 45 Sales & Raw Materials Consumption

Rs(In Lakhs)

(i) Sales

Class of Goods Year ended 31.03.2020 Year ended 31.03.2019

Black & Packet Tea 20476.77 19844.84

Transformers 4846.27 6319.19

Industrial Fans 2158.76 2861.55

LT and HT Switchgears 171.00 234.74

Spares 1458.33 476.32

Sale of Service 372.96 613.35

Others 223.90
113.07

Total (Sale of products ) 29707.99 30463.06

(ii) Raw Material consumed and stores consumed

Items Year ended 31.03.2020 Year ended 31.03.2019

Steel 291.37 569.97

Copper 174.93 845.46

Green Leaf 772.40 1,240.99

Parts of Distribution Transformer 1139.00 521.12

Oil, Chemical etc 168.67 569.28

Others 6254.15 5616.93

Total 8800.52 9417.74
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(b) Value of Impoted and Indigenous Raw Materials and Stores Consumed

(i) Raw Materials
Year ended 31.03.2020 Year ended 31.03.2019

Value % Value %

Imported 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Indigenous 8605.40 100.00 8989.92 100.00

 8605.40 100.00 8989.92 100.00

(ii) Stores     

Imported 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Indigenous 195.12 100.00 427.82 100.00

 195.12 100.00 427.82 100.00

Rs(In Lakhs)

( C) Value of imports on CIF Basis

Raw Materials and Components
Year ended 31.03.2020 Year ended 31.03.2019

- -

(d) Expenditure in Foreign currency:

Foreign expenses 4.64 4.05

( e) Earnings in Foreign exchange

Value of export on FOB basis 359.80 223.16
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Note 46 Segment Reporting:
Rs(In Lakhs)

1. Segment Revenue  100000     
 Electrical Tea Engineering Printing Segment Total Elimination Total
 Division. Division. Division.     

-External Sales
5,303.96 20,476.77 3,554.30  29,335.02   

7,153.69 19,844.84 2,863.68  29,862.21   

-Inter Segment Sales
6.76 0.00 19.92  26.68   

36.58 2.93 38.37  77.88   
Total Revenue From Product 
Sale

5,310.72 20,476.77 3,574.22  29,361.70 26.68 29,335.02

 7,190.27 19,847.77 2,902.05  29,940.09 77.88 29,862.21
Total Revenue From Sale Of 
Service

0.00 0.00 109.23  109.23  109.23

 0.75 0.00 131.75  132.50  132.50

2. Segment Results
-2,296.96 -691.81 -114.39  -3,103.16  -3,103.16

-1,345.66 683.08 -310.93  -973.51  -973.51

3. Unallocated Corporate 
Expenses Net of 
unallocated Income

      -267.00

unallocated Income       151.81

4. Operating Profit
      -3,370.16

      -821.70

5. Interest Expenses
      845.19

      615.15

6. Interest and Dividend Income
      2,089.99

      2,791.61

7. PBT and Items relating to P.Y.
      -2,125.36

      1,051.12

8. Item relating to P.Y.
      0.00

      0.00

9. Net Profit
      -2,125.38

      1,051.12

 Electrical Tea Engineering Printing Segment Total Elimination Total
 Division. Division. Division.     

        

3. Segment Assets
10,274.09 19,885.38 4,840.02 212.72 35,212.21 0.00 35,212.21

11,213.37 18,405.45 4,531.66 711.66 34,862.14  34,862.14

        

-Unallocated Corporate Assets
      25,019.46

      24,218.10

-Total Assets
      60,231.67

      59,080.25
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 Electrical Tea Engineering Printing Segment Total Elimination Total
 Division. Division. Division.     

        

4. Segment Liabilities& Equities
                            -                 -   

          
10,274.09 

        
19,885.38 

      4,840.02 
         

212.72 
35212.21    35,212.21 

 11,213.37 18,405.45 4,531.66 711.66 34,862.14  34862.14

-Unallocated Corporate Liabilities
      25,019.46

      24,218.10

-Total Liabilities
      60,231.67

      59,080.24

        

        

        

4. Others        

        

– Capital Expenditure
21.65 3,109.54 8.47 0.00 3,139.66  3,139.66

22.07 3,434.26 11.46 4.29 3,472.08  3,472.08

        

– Depreciation including 
Impairment

60.51 556.25 28.57 -5.67 639.66  639.66

67.28 580.13 28.50 12.93 688.84  688.84

-Non-Cash expenses other than 
Depreciation

0.00 0.00 0.00  0.00  0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00  0.00  0.00

Note 47 Disclosures related to the Subsidiaries of the Company

Sl.No. Name of the Subsidiary
% of shareholding as at 31st 

March 2020
% of shareholding as at 31st March 2019

1 Hooghly Printing Co. Ltd 100% 100%

2 Yule Engineering Ltd. 100% 100%

3 Yule Electrical Ltd. 100% 100%
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Note 48

Pending transfer of Assets and Liabilities of Engineering and Electrical Division to two 100% subsidiaries incorporate in the name of Yule 
Engineering Ltd and Yule Electrical Ltd as per Sanctioned Rehabilitation Scheme (SRS) all transactions for the year ended 31st March 2018 
related to aforesaid divisions entered into by the Company in the Name of Andrew Yule & Company Ltd. (AYCL) have been accounted for in 
the Books of Accounts.

Note 49

Other Receivables includes Rs23.96 Lakhs paid as Electricity duty which is considered receivable vide Circular Number233-IR/O/IM-4/2003 
dated 25th February, 2014 issued by Govt of West Bengal under “West Bengal Industrial Renewal Scheme ,2001” stated that the amount paid 
as electricity duty under the Provisions of Bengal Electricity Rules, 1935 shall be waived for period of five years with effect from 31st March, 
2006.

Note 50

There is a moratorium period in respect of 6% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares- WEBFIL of Rs179.32 Lakhs (Discounted as 
per IND AS) (previous year Rs 165.51Lakhs ) (Original value Rs 204.40 Lakhs) and zero rated unsecured Redeemable Bond of Rs. 228.80 
Lakhs (Discounted as per IND AS) (Previous year  Rs. 218.58) (Original value Rs. 305.00 Lakhs) of WEBFIL for a period of 7 (Seven) years 
commenced from 1st April, 2014 and 20th Dec, 2014 respectively.

Note 51

Loans & Advances includes a sum of Rs. 205.76 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 157.71 Lakhs) provided to 100% subsidiary, M/s Hooghly Printing 
Company Limited as an expenditure support. Said subsidiary as per order of GOI have closed their Business Operations on 21.01.2019 & is 
scheduled to be merged with AYCL in Financial Year 2020-21.In this regard Form No.- CAA 11 has already been filed with Regional Director- 
ROC, Kolkata for approval of the said scheme of Merger. On completion of said merger, Assets & Liabilities in the Books of said subsidiary as 
on the date of merger will be incorporated in the Books of AYCL.

Note 52

The Company follows the practice of inspection of individual current or non-current asset by a scrap committee before declaring the same as 
scrap and ultimately putting the same for sale.

Note 53

The liability for payment of Gratuity as per the Provisions of the Act is considered for the Company as a whole and not Unit/Division wise.

Note 54

Capital WIP includes nurturing & related expenses of young tea plants amounting to Rs. 7599.70 Lakhs (Rs. 5808.05 Lakhs in 2018-19) in 
compliance with IND-AS.

Note 55

For renewal of land lease of three tea gardens in Dooars, Govt. of W.B. have asked for salami of Rs 177.66 Lakhs, which has been taken up 
by AYCL for waiver with local State Govt. authorities as well as with higher Govt. Authorities at Kolkata. AYCL is hopeful for settlement of the 
issue in favour of the Company which is also indicative from renewal of lease for another Garden of AYCL without payment of salami.

As the matter is related to Govt. & Quasi Govt-Authorities/ Autonomous body  (as applicable) and as the applications of the Company for 
waiver of the demands have not so far been turned down, the included total amount of Rs. 177.66 Lakhs has been included in “Claims against 
the company not acknowledged as debt” as stated in note no. 36.  
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Note 56

The Company has system of seeking year ending balance confirmation certificates from Debtors and Creditors. However, the company has 
maintained the figures available in accounts for cases wherein, no response from Debtors /creditors is received.

Note 57

“Balance With statutory Authorities” under “Note Other Financial assets” (Note 15) includes a sum of Rs 42.97 Lakhs towards refund 
receivable from Provident Fund Authorities in pursuant with an order issued by erstwhile Board of Industrial & Financial 

Reconstruction (BIFR) in F.Yr 2015-16. A claim in this regards has already  been lodged with Central provident Fund (PF) authorities who in 
turn have taken up the same with concerned regional Provident Fund Authorities. This being a due from Government Department, However, 
as a matter of abundant precaution the aforesaid amount has been provided in Accounts.

Note 58 

The worker unions of the Chennai unit of the Electrical Division have gone on strike from mid-August, 2019 due to their unsettled demand 
for wage increase beyond the wage revision offered by management more or less in line with other units. The management thereafter has 
declared Suspension of Work in turn during the same month and as of now there is Status Quo for both Strike and Suspension of Work, as 
aforesaid.

The Company has provided for the impact of wage revision for the FY 2019-20, for the period prior to strike keeping in view the provisions of 
Section 22,23 & 24 of the Industrial Dispute Act 1947 as well as relevant Court case(s) as have been referred therewith.

As regards the premises & the Plant & Machineries and other Fixed Assets of the Unit necessary security arrangement along with preventive 
and routine maintenance has been continued throughout the year, keeping in view the need of maintaining the workability of the machineries 
of the Unit.

Note 59 Impact on Financial position of the Company due to COVID-19 Pandemic

Subject impact actually started almost from the initial days of  Quarter 4 of financial year 2019-20 , though formal lockdown on this account 
was declared by India by the end of March 2020.

Since said lockdown and various restrictions imposed by the Government Authorities in this regard continued for the full quarter 1 of financial 
year 2020-21 there has been considerable adverse impact on turnover of the Company during this period during this period along with 
resultant adverse impact on profitability and cash generation .

Following table depicts a comparison of division-wise turnover in quarter 4 of 2018-19 vis-à-vis quarter 4 of 2019-20 as well as similar 
turnover in April & May 2019 vis-a-vis April & May 2020 (provisional).

Figs Rs/Crores   QUARTER 4  APRIL-MAY (Provisional)

2018-19 2019-20 2019-20 2020-21

Engineering Division 13.48 6.42 3.54 0.50

Electrical Division-Kolkata 13.49 6.42 0.91 1.81

Electrical Division- Chennai 8.88 2.51 7.71 1.10

Tea Division 30.73 25.37 18.74 10.82

Total 66.58 40.72 30.90 14.23
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However, keeping in view some of the events occurring after the Balance Sheet date, any erosion in the year end value of the inventories due 
to impact of COVID-19 could not be forseen as enumerated below

•	 As regards inventory of Tea produced, price realization could be made in Quarter 1 of the FY 2020-21 at a rate higher than the 
book value of inventories.

•	 Also for inventory of other manufactured items of other Divisions are mostly covered by inclusion of impact of COVID-19 under the 
force majeure clause in line with OM no. 18/4/2020-PPD dated 13.05.2020 issued by GOI, Ministry of Finance. 

Note 60

Though HPCL has declared its closure of Business within the Financial Year 2018-19, but its Assets are not held for sale but are to be taken 
over by AYCL on ‘as those are’ basis. As such, in our view in the instant case applicability of IND AS is not there. With regard to merger of 
Hooghly Printing with AYCL the following actions has been taken:

 [a]  Subsequent to approval of Board of Directors of HPCL and AYCL, land taken from West Bengal Small Scale Industries Development 
Corporation Ltd (WBSIDCL) has been handed over to WBSIDCL, a refund of Rs 104.98 Lakhs has been received against the 
same and the amount has been deposited in HPCL’s Cash Credit Account with United Bank of India (UBI) to clear Bank Overdraft 
in full. 

 [b] Consent of Secured Creditors, Unsecured Creditors & shareholders of Hooghly Printing Co. Ltd. for it’s merger with Andrew Yule 
& Company Ltd. has been obtained vide meeting date 14.05.2019. 

 [c]  Valuer has been appointed for valuation of Assets & Liabilities of HPCL as on 30.04.2019 for the purpose of merger of HPCL with 
AYCL. Subsequent upon the approval by the Registrar of Companies (ROC), Management will ensure necessary adjustments of 
Assets & Liabilities as on the date of merger considering further changes if any, subsequent to the valuation date of  21.08.2019.      

Note 61 The details of losses of HPCL from discontinued operations are as under :          Rs (In Lakhs)

Particulars As on 31.03.2020 As on 31.03.2019

Revenue from Operations - 55.88

Other Income 0.07 4.67

Total Income 0.07 60.55

Cost of Materials Consumed - 20.12

Employee Cost - 137.10

Depreciation (5.67) 6.59

Finance Cost - 17.90
Other Expenses 153.95 35.56

Total Expenses 148.27 217.27

Profit/(Loss) before Tax (148.20) (156.72)

Note 62
[a] Figures in Bracket are of previous year.
[b] The fig in these accounts have been rounded off to nearest Lakhs of Rupees.
[c] Previous year figures are rearranged and realigned as required.

For Andrew Yule & Company Limited

SUCHARITA DAS 
Company Secretary

PARTHA DASGUPTA
Director (Finance)
DIN : 07059472

DEBASIS JANA
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 07046349

For S.K Basu & Co.
Chattered Accountant
F.No.: 301026E/Din No.07046349
Rudra Neil Mallick
Partner (M.No.:053983)

Date-  15.07.2020
Place- Kolkata
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FORM AOC - 1
[Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statements of 
Subsidiaries or Associate Companies or Joint Ventures

Part - A : Subsidiaries
(Rs. in lakhs)

1. Sl. No. 1 2 3

2. Name of the Subsidiary Hooghly Printing
Co. Ltd.

Yule 
Engineering Ltd.

Yule 
Electrical Ltd.

3.
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the 
holding Company’s reporting period

N.A. N.A. N.A.

4.
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the 
relevant Financial year, in case of foreign subsidiaries

INR INR INR

5. Share Capital 102.71 5.00 5.00

6. Reserves and surplus (-) 607.33 (-) 7.64 (-) 11.48

7. Total Assets 212.70 0.06 -

8. Total Liabilities 212.70 0.06 -

9. Investments - - -

10. Turnover 0.07 - -

11. Profit before Taxation (-) 148.20 (-) 0.36 (-) 0.36

12. Provision for Taxation 32.44 - -

13. Profit after Taxation (-) 115.76 (-) 0.36 (-) 0.36

14. Proposed Dividend - - -

15. Percentage (%) of Shareholding 100% 100% 100%

Notes:

1.  Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: N.A.

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: N.A.
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Part - B : Associates
(Rs. in lakhs)

Sl. 
No.

Name of Associates
Tide Water Oil 

Co. (I) Ltd.

The New 
Beerbhoom Coal 

Co. Ltd.

Katras Jherriah 
Coal Co. Ltd.

1. Latest Audited Balance Sheet Date 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2020

2. Shares of Associate held by the Company on the year end

i. Number 914223 105355 60260

ii. Amount of Investment in Associate (Rs. in lakhs) 164.56 12.27 6.95

iii. Extent of Holding in % 26.23 32.95 31.67

3. Description of how there is significant influence Note 3 Note 3 Note 3

4. Reason why the Associate is not consolidated Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable

5.
Networth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited 
Balance Sheet (Rs. in lakhs)

68061 6.77 (-) 17.00

6. Profit or Loss for the year 3062.61
- -

. i. Considered in Consolidation (Rs. in lakhs) Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation 914223 105355 60260

Notes: 

1. Names of associates which are yet to commence operations: N.A.

2. Names of associates which have been liquidated or sold during the year: N.A.

3. There is significant influence due to percentage (%) of Shareholding.

4. The Company has no Joint Ventures, therefore Part - B relating to Joint Ventures is not applicable.
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PERFORMANCE AT A GLANCE

Particulars Financial Years
2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Turnover  23,211.70  29,069.19  31,115.22  36,681.36  35,514.83  35,759.86  41,966.72  35,008.18  30,463.06  29,707.98 
Total Income  28,661.95  30,241.96  32,174.07  37,738.87  40,213.71  38,997.73  46,878.76  38,913.50  35,260.32  32,996.23 
Profit Before Taxes  4,139.66  1,199.69  1,400.20  2,542.65  1,389.16  927.36  3,849.95  2,357.32  1,051.12  (2,125.38)
Taxes  7.35  15.06  265.20  313.39  93.10  92.07  589.86  645.73  180.93  (73.37)
Profit After Taxes  4,132.31  1,184.63  1,135.00  2,229.26  1,296.06  835.29  3,260.09  1,711.59  870.19  (2,052.01)
Other 
Comprehensive 
Income

 -    -    -    -    -    -    (276.26)  205.75  (733.19)  484.34 

Total 
Comprehensive 
Income

 -    -    -    -    -    -    2,983.83  1,917.34  136.99  (1,567.67)

Networth (*)  17,309.51  13,467.53  14,620.73  18,133.35  18,990.27  19,813.14  17,571.71  18,900.58 18,802.19  17,234.52 

* Networth does not include the Share Application Money pending allotment
* The details of the Financial Year 2016-17 and 2017-18 is considered as per recast accounts as per the Indian Accounting 
Standards applicable from the Financial Year 2017-18 to Andrew Yule & Co. Ltd.
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